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The Annual Repaort 2002 documents Telenor’s strong
position in the Norwegian market, an enhanced capacity
~ to deliver in the Nordic market and a developed position
~ as an international mobile communications company.
With its modern communications solutions, Telenor
simplifies gaily life for more than 15 million customers.

& telenor
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Norway
Telenor Mobil AS (100%) | zumos:s { ‘ ! .
Telenar Netwarks AS (100%) | ~ / | //
Telenor Plus AS (100%) || UK O o
Canal Digital AS (100%) || Telenor UK Ltd. (100%) o P
Telenor Business Solutions AS (100%/ Telenor Business Sol. UKLtd.  (100%) /
~ ¢
Sweden Greece Hungary ,
Telenor Plus AB (100%)  Cosmote S.A (18.00%) Pannon GSM (100%)
Canal Digital Sverige AB (100%) ; Nextra Kft (100%)
Telenor Vision International AB  (100%) Slovakia
Telenor Business Solutions AB (100%) | | Telenor Networks a.s. SK (100%) Austria
Utfors AB (80.00%) ) | Nextrasro (100%) J | Connect Austria GmbH (17.45%) ) | Thailand
) Total Access Comm. PLC (DTAC)  (40.28%)
Denmark The Czech Republic Montenegro
sonofen Holding A/S (53.50%) | | Telenor Networks Czechsro  (100%) ProMonte GSM (44.10%) Malaysia
Canal Digital Danmark A/S (100%) / | Nextra Czech Republicsro  (99.30%) ) — DuGi.Com bhd (61.00%)
Russia
Finland » Ukraine VimpelCom (28.98%) Bangladesh
Canal Digital Finland OY (100%) Kyivstar G.S.M. JSC (54.21%) Comincom/Combellga (75.00%) GrameenPhone Ltd. (46.41%)
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MARKET INFGRMATION
[
200 2081 2000 189g 1838
MOBILE COMMUNICATION o o
Morway
_Mobile subscriptions (NMT - GSH) (000s) 2,382 N
GSM subscriptions {000s) e Z,32C 1,280
- of which prepaid (GG0s} - T 36
Reverue ner HSM subscription per mmonkh (ARPU)YY 348 3656
_iraffic minutes per GSM subseription permanth tAMPY; - 18D 18
Market share GSM (service providey) Bl1% -
Customer churn - mobile subseript:ons 175% 131%
Pannon GSM {Hungary}
GSM subscriptions (000s} 2,450 e
— of which prepaid (000s) 1810 - - - -
Revenue ner GSM subscription per month (ARPU)" o N - - -
Traffic minutes per 5M subscrigtion per monii (AMBPU) 13 e -
Marker sharg GSM 28% - - - ~
DiGLCom {Mataysia)
St subscriptions (000s) ok 1038 - - -
-~ of which propaid (000s) 1,59 352 e
Revenue per GSM subscripticn per menth (ARPUY 152 18¢ ~ - -
Traffic minutes per GSM subscrintion permeonth (ANMPY) . 188 2t - - -
Market share GSM o e e 1% - -
Kylvstar GSM {Likraing}
GSM subscrintions {000s) o . = -
- of which grepaid {000s) e N -
Revenue per GSM subscription per month (ARPL)? 107 - = -
Traffic iminutes per SSM subscription per month (AMPU) 48 - o
_Market share G54 50% - - - -
_GrameenPhone {Bangladesh]
GSM subscriptions {000s) 189 454 9 a8 34
- of which prepaid (J00s} 563 278 43 & -
Revenue per GSM subscription per month (ARPU)" 172 1G0 260 - -
Treffic minutes per GSM subscrigtion per menth (AMPL) 298 315 358 - e
Marict sharc GSM G65% 90% es% ___- =
FIXED LINF IN NORWAY L
_PSTN subscriptions {000s) 1,467 1,545
ISON subscriptions {tines) (000s) o G2 178E
PSTN/ISDN generated traffic {ininvtas in millions) 15,52 98¢
Fixed line marke? share of traffic minutes (including Internat) 12.2% %
Bperator access lines {000s) 42 2
INTERNET {N NORWAY
Intevnet subscriptions residentiat market (000s) 880 at
- af which Frisurf (000s) 533 437
—of which ADSL {800s) g3 23 -
Internet subscriptions business market Nonway (800s) 7 16 i3 2 4
— of waich ADSY {000s} 4 i - - -
ADSL-lines wholesale market (000s) ic2 24 - - -
Revenue per subscription per manth residential market (ARBU}” o -
~ Frisurf 237 A2 S e
—ADSL R 4,488 - - -
Market share ADSL ~ _73% B - = -
Customer churn, internet subscrintions 20.0% 25,5% 14.0% %
TV BISTRIBUTIGN
Pay television subscribers in the Nordic region (0G0s) e
- Cable-TY (CATV} 270
— Smati antenna networks (SMATY) .. BBo
~ Home satelitte dish (07TH) . _3h2
Revenue per subscription per month (ARPLY R
— Cable--1V {CATV) in Norway -
- Small antenna networks (SMATV) in Nordic Regian -
- - Home satelitte disii (OTH) in Merdic Reqion o ) 3, -
Customer churn, Home satelitte dish (DTH) 23% 29.2%

' Average manthly revenue per GSM subscription (ARPU) is calcuiatzd tased on total reverues from 5SM subscy
incaming and sutgoing traffic {ees, voaming and revenues from vaiue~-addes services, dividad on the average numbe

relevant pericd.

ubscrintion fees,
bscriptians fer the

3 Average revenug per sudscriser s calculaied as total revenue divided on the erimetic meanr of annuat opening and c:oslng balonce of sugscripiions.
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TELENGOR = INTERNATIONALISATION AND GROWTH

Telenor is Norway's largest telecommunications group, with
supstantial international mobile operations. Continued devel-
ogment of the international maobile portfolio is an integral part
of Telenor’s strategy, as well as a basis for further growtn.

Telenor underwent a period of strong international expansion
in the 1990s. The company registers international demand for
products developed and tested in the Norwegian market, not
least from international growth markets. The company’s strat-
egy is therefore strongly associated with international growth,
based on the strong Norwegian position and the enhanced
position in the Nordic region.

Telenor was listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange and Nasdaq on 4
December 2000. At the end of 2002, the company had 55,840
shareholders, the Norwegian State being the majority share-
holder (holding 77.6% of the shares). The Telenor group’s rev-
enues in 2002 totalled NOK 48.8 billion. The company’s market
value as of 31 December 2002 was NOK 47.8billion, which made
it the third largest company on the Oslo Stock Exchange.

HISTORY

Telenor’s origins go all the way back to 1855, and for 150 years
the company has been Norway’s leading telecoms player. In
the 199Gs, Telenor went from being a state monopoly to
become a commercial enterprise and the company is today
positioned as an innovative player in international mobile
communications.

in 1994, the then Norwegian Telecom was established as a
public corporation. In December 2000, the company was
partly privatised and listed on the stock exchange. This trans-
formation took place as a gradual adaptation to increasing
competition in the Norwegian telecoms market after deregu-
lation in the 1990s, with free competition for all services from
1998. Telenor has successfully defended its strong position in
the Norwegian market.

Telenor’s strong international expansion in recent years has
been based on leading-edge expertise, acquired in the Nor-
wegian and Nordic markets, which are among the maost highly
developed technology markets in the world. Internationalisa-
tion was achieved on the basis of strang positions in satellite
communications, in mobile communications and in domestic
Internet activities. Telenor has been one of the world’s leading
suppliers of satellite communications for many years. Norway
and the Nordic region have been in the forefront of the devel-
opment of mobile communications, and Internet use has
quickly gained ground in this market.

Telenor is a pioneer in mobile communications. Manual mobile
telephony services were introduced in Norway in 1966, as a
forerunner to the automatic NMT system, which appeared in
1981. Its digital successor, GSM, was introduced in 1993,

in the same year, Telenor made its first international mobile
investment, in Pannon GSM. Telenor opened its UMTS network
(third-generation mobile network) in 2001 .

INTERNATIONALISATION

In the second half of the 1980s, Telenor became involved in
mobile operations in a number of countries: Russia (1994),
Bangladesh, Greece, Ireland, Germany and Austria (1997),
Ukraine (1998), Malaysia (1999), Denmark and Thailand
(2000). Telenor's strategy was to take positions based on the
company’s core expertise. In 1997, Telenor’s international
investments exceeded investments made in the domestic
market — mainly as a result of the mobile commitments,

Telenor holds a prominent position in the Nordic TV market,
both with regard to the number of subscribers and to the
extent of coverage. At the end of 2002, Telenor distributed TV
to 2.4 million Nordic customers through Canal Digital and
Telenor's cable operations. The TV activities widen the scope
of Telenor's Norwegian and Nordic operations, primarily by
supplying new products and services, but also by providing
access to an extensive customer base.

OBJECTIVES, VISION AND VALUES

Telenor’s principal objective is to create value for sharehold-
ers through a commitment to our customers, employees and
joint venture partners, and the interest of the general public.
In a long-term perspective, a strong customer and market
focus, coupled with a strong sense of responsibility for socie-
ty and the welfare of our employees, will provide the best basis
for increased value creation.

Financial value will be created through profitable and consis-
tent growth, based on the development of solutions that sim-
plify the use of, and increase the benefits of, modern commu-
nications technology. In this way, customers (individual
customers as well as business customers) will be offered
greater freedom of choice and wider opportunities. Telenor’s
solutions shall simplify people’s daily lives, make companies’




TELENOR: STRATEG!IC AND BUSINESS RELATED DEVELOPMENT, 2003
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TELENCR'S REPORTING STRUCTURE, 2002
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operations more efficient and increase companies’ competi-
tive power.

Telenor has therefore adopted the following vision for the
development of its organisation and market position: Telenor
— Ideas that simplify.

With this vision in mind, Telenor shall be a driving force in
creating, simplifying and introducing communications and
content solutions to the market. The vision is built on Telenor's
tradition as an innovator, and as one of the first to introduce
new products to the market. Telenor is committed to simplify
the use of services and the channels through which customers
interact with the company.

Telenor's focus is on realising the company’s core values. All
employees’ conduct shall be based on three core values. To be
dynamic requires insight and active involvement, coupled with
a drive to accomptish. To be innovative entails continuously
being attentive to new opportunities for development and
growth. To be responsible requires active participation in the
community surrounding the company. All employees shall be
responsible for their own actions and always put the needs of
the customers first.

MANAGEMENT

As a responsible company, Telenor remains committed to
internal management and control, both in relation to its man-
agement practices and its social responsibilities. Good corpo-
rate governance has for a number of years been an important
concern for Telenor, and was further strengthened in 2002.

To achieve good corporate governance, Telenor places great
emphasis on establishing and implementing internal guide-
lines, routines and processes that shall form the basis for a
responsible management of the group. The corporate gover-
nance is built on external legislation and internal guidelines
which'shall be observed in all parts of the organisation. [More
on Telenor's corporate governance on p.18]

Telenor has developed and implemented an integrated man-
agement model to strengthen the group’s ability and power to
realise its strategic objectives.

The group’s management model identifies a set of primary
financial and non-financial factors (value drivers) both on
group level and in the different business areas. The model shall
contribute to long-term optimisation of shareholder values.
[More on the management model on p. 34]

STRATEGY
Telenor shall consolidate its leading position in the Norwegian
market, strengthen its position in the Nordic market and con-
centrate and continue to develop its international mobile
operations.

In addition to consolidation and cost control, Telenor’s strate-
gy is also based on the development of mobile operations in
growth markets. This will be done based on a broad range of
services, and our considerable experience from working with
customers and markets in the highly developed Norwegian
and Nordic markets.

The international focus is primarily on mobile services in mar-
kets where Telenor has opportunities for creating long-term
value. These commitments are based on the company’s docu-
mented expertise in establishing and developing mobile oper-
ations, within the areas of technology. distribution, manage-
ment and markets.

Telenor's value creation is primarily based on three strategic
areas:

- focused core activities
- focused market prioritising

© — focused mobile communications

Core activities: Telenor’s core activities comprise mobilte
communications, fixed network communications and TV distri-
bution, organised through three business areas. Additional
substantial activities are organised under Other activities. The
mobile and fixed network operations underpin Telenor’s posi-
tion in the Norwegian market, but they also include substantial
international operations, particularly within mobile telephony.
Mobile communications is the main basis for the company’s
internationalisation and growth. As from 2003, TV distribution
is being developed as a core activity in the Nordic market.




Market priorities:
Telenor’s Nordic market platform. In addition, Telenor has
established itself in the international market, geographically
concentrated in countries in two regions outside the Nordic
region: Central and Eastern Europe and South East Asia.

The Norwegian market is the basis for

Telenor shall defend its leading position in the Norwegian
market as well as strengthen its service delivery in the Nordic
market. On the international arena, Telenor will primarily sup-
ply mobile communications solutions, with focus on regions
where the company already has activities. These are markets
where strong growth can be expected., and markets which
Telenor has the required strength and credibility to operate.

Wobile communicetions: Telenor’s primary strategic focus,
both in the Norwegian and international markets, is on mobile
communications, concentrated in selected countries in South
East Asia and Central and Eastern Europe, i.e. markets with a
major growth potential. Telenor's internationalisation is based
chiefly on its position as @ mobile operator, and the company
already has a special emphasis on this segment.

The portfolio strategy within the mobile operations is to devel-
op established positions, with focus on profitable growth and
on achieving operational and financial control, which will
release important synergies between the companies. Where
operational control cannot be established in the foreseeable
future, Telenor will seek to dispose of its interests. At the out-
set of 2003, Telenor had substantial commitments in 12
mobile companies in 12 countries.

Telenor places a great deal of emphasis on the mobile portfo-
lio’s balance, i.e. that mature activities in saturated markets
are balanced against new operations in growth areas. The
mature activities shall create enough value to give the owners
a long-term return as well as contribute to the company’s
financial strength.

Telenor’s financial basis and commercial innovation give it
credibility as a company that is able to deliver, with docu-
mented results, in the growth markets.

ORGANISATION

In 2002, the organisational structure comprised the business
areas Telenor Mobile, Telenor Networks, Telenor Plus and
Telenor Business Solutions as well as Other activities.

At the end of 2002, the group had 23,450 employees, 14,150
of them in Norway. As part of the strategic programme for
operational efficiency, Telenor undertook workforce reduc-
tions in 2002, mainly affecting the Norwegian operations.
Total number of employees was reduced by 1,500.

In accordance with its business strategy, Telenor has decided to
simplify its corporate structure into three business areas
(Telenor Mobile, Telenor Networks and Telenor Broadcast),
plus Other activities, effective from 2003. In order to provide
better follow-up and improve customer services in the Nor-
wegian market, a separate market organisation has been
established: Telenor Norge.



POSITIONED FOR GROWTH

“2002 was a chalienging year for the industry and for Telenor.
Cost control and consclidation have been given first priority. At
this juncture, it is important to underline that Telenor is in fact
financially solid and well positioned for further growth,” says

Telenor CEC lon Fredrik Baksaas.

Jon Fredrik Baksaas$ is now well into his first full year as CEO of
Telenor. He is by no means a newcomer, in fact he has served
the company since 1989, and a number of these years have
been spent in the group management. The economist has
taken the reins at a time when the industry has been seeing a
lot of turbulence, but where Telenor remains financially solid,
and well-positioned for continued growth.

Optimism

" Many operators are now heavily burdened with debt, and the
industry has had to take substantial write-downs,” says the
Telenor CEQ. “The industry is suffering from the fact that large
sums of money were invested inlicence fees for unknown serv-
ices, on unknown terminals, based on untried business models.
The debt burden requires us to revise our outlook on the future
ot the industry,” maintains Baksaas. "Many companies are now
struggling with high exposure to UMTS. Telenor has only limit-
ed UMTS commitments.”

Acquisitions and debt burdens are familiar words at Telenar
too. “0ur mobile portfolio contains examples of acquisitions
purchased at an excessive price,” admits the CEO. “We too
have had to take write-downs in 2002, but to a lesser extent
than other companies in the industry. And Telenor's debt expo-
sure is modest in comparison with the industry as a whole.”

Jon Fredrik Baksaas is an optimist, and maintains that Telenor
shall continue to grow, on the following basis: “Telenor is
financially solid, and well positioned for continued develop-
ment and new growth. The key issues ahead will be consolida-
tion and focus on the development of those areas where the
company has its strengths.”

Controt initiatives

“Consolidation and concentration form the basis for Telenor’s
strategy as well as the basis for further international growth, *
explains Baksaas. “The creation of future value requires firm
management, and in 2002, we felt that we had to take a new
hold on the company'’s commercial challenges.”

“Cost control and investment rationalisation has already pro-
duced visible results, and more will follow in the years to come.
Telenor's cost reduction programme, Delta 4, is on schedule.
We shall reduce out annual operating costs by the end of 2004

by NOK 4 billion gross in relation to the cost level in 2001. The
goals remain the same; a total annual saving of NOK 1.1 billion
in 2002, an expected NOK 1.3 billion in 2003, and total savings
of NOK 4 billion by the end of 2004. *

“The establishment of the new market organisation Norway
was made in recognition of a lower growth rate in the Norwe-
gian market. We are also seeing increased competition and
certain regulatory issues need to be settled. When other play-
ers move in on our markets we have to respond by being more
efficient and more innovative. We have to live up to our vision:
ideas that simplify. Customers must recognise improvements
in our products and services, communication and follow-up.”

“The establishment of the business area Telenor Broadcast was
made in recognition of the fact that TV distribution affords us
a special position in relation to our competitors. With 2.4 mil-
lion TV customers, this is a significant operation in the Nordic
market for digital entertainment and information services,”
says Baksaas, before painting out that these activities were
further strengtened in 2002.

“The new headquarters are an asset. Our innovative way of
combining people, environment and technology gives us the
means to further develop our corporate culture. We have cre-
ated the basis for creative interaction and working methods
that are suited to a modern organisation such as Telenor’s.The
technologically advanced ICT solution Telenor Arena is now
being launched commercially. ”

Strategy initiatives
The control initiatives are crucial to the continued develop-
ment of Telenor, and the CEQ is eager to emphasise two strate-
gic aspects that were introduced in 2002, and which will also
be pursued in 2003:

“The international mobile commitments are undergoing a period
of consolidation, and we will continue to develop the portfolio.
Telenor’s internationalisation is essentially based on mobile
communications, but within limited geographical areas. Our
geographical focus is centred on markets that have substantial-
ly higher growth potential, and correspondingly lower mobile
penetration, than Western Europe. This involves a significant
potential for growth, and Telenor's strategy is to take positions




that will allow us to take part in that growth. Our commitments
in Russia and Ukraine are central to us in this respect, and we
have entered into agreements to make further commitments.”

Telenor is also looking to win positions in the Nordic business
market: "It is important that we strengthen our ability to deliv-
er in a market that to an increasing extent is looking for Scan-
dinavian and Nordic solutions. Through our acquisition of
Swedish Utfors, and our agreement with Tele2 for mobile
operator access to their network in Sweden, we have strength-
ened our position. | also believe that the new TeliaSonera con-
stellation will drive this market further. In this situation, it is
crucial that we maintain our ability to deliver, not least to the
Swedish market.”

Internationalisation

Telenor is an international group, but a small player on the
global arena. In selected markets, however, Telenor is consid-
ered to be a major player. Does the CED see a clear road ahead
for Telenor?

"Our capacity for growth lies in internationalisation. Telenot's
traditional domestic market in Norway, with 4.5 million people,
and where we have market shares of 60-70%, provides limit-
ed room for new growth. The Nordic market is saturated, and
characterised by fierce competition. Which is why we find our
growth potential outside Norway and the Nordic region, and
primarily within mobile communications,” says Baksaas.
Before going on to say:

"The internationalisation, however, is not only about geo-
graphical expansion and growth, but also about development
in the direction of real integration between companies in the

group, and above all, between the mobile companies in which
Telenor has a controlling position. Developing synergies from
our ownership is our top priority, and we are making gocd
pragress in this area.”

Customer focus

“"Whether we will succeed depends mainly on ourselves,” says
Baksaas: “To succeed we need to strengthen our organisa-
tional culture. Our recently occupied headquarters, with its
revolutionary new work concept, provide us with a unique
starting point. We perceive the new digital working platform,
Telenor Arena, to be a powerful tool in this effort, through the
way in which people, technology and environment interact.
This platform is now being adopted throughout the group. We
also need to strengthen our leadership, and furthermore, we
have focus on the significance of customer follow-up to
Telenor’s value creation.”

“We shall strengthen our customer and market awareness,”
declares the CEO. in this respect he finds it useful to also be a
customer. Baksaas characterises himself as a fairly advanced
user of Telenor’s services: “The mobile phone and laptop PC
provide me with access and availability that | benefit from
every day. However, as a customer, | also see that there is room
for improvement in customer fottow-up and support.”

And Jon Fredrik Baksaas clearly intends to follow up on this
issue: "Neither | nor Telenor shall be satisfied with our efforts if
Telenor does not emerge from the challenges of 2003 as a less
complex company, simplifying the workday of our customers!”

Jon Fredrik Baksaas was interviewed by Dag Leraand.
[See also presentation, p. 22]




TELENOR IN 2002

NORWAY = In February, Telenor closed the takeover of 74.22% of the

o In 2002, Telenor consolidated its position as Norway's lead- shares in Pannon GSM from KPN, Sonera and TDC, at a price
ing supplier of mobile communications solutions to the resi- of EUR 1002 million, thereby increasing its ownership share
dential and business markets, with close to 2.4 million regis- to 100%. In July, Telenor entered into an agreement with
tered mobile subscribers. In March, Telenor launched next- Sputnik Funds for the acquisition of 16.5% of the shares in the
generation messaging, MMS, with new multimedia services for Ukrainian mobile operator Kyivstar GSM, at a price of USD
mobile phones. More than 100,000 Norwegian mobile cus- 66.5 million. In September Tetenor sold 7.7% of Kyivstar GSM
tomers were registered as subscribers to the payment solu- to Storm LLC for USD 31,0 million. thereby reducing its
tion SmartPay™, which facilitates the use of mobile phones as ownership share to 54.2%. Pannon was consolidated in Feb-
terminals for payment. ruary 2002, and Kyivistar in September in the same year.

= Telenor was clearly Norway's leading operator for fixed net-  « An agreement for further mobile service expansion in Russia
work services, and Telenor was also the largest supplier of was signed in Oslo in November, in the presence of the Russ-

Internet access in the Norwegian residential market, both ian President, Vladimir Putin, and the Norwegian Prime Min-
over ISDN/PSTN, ADSL and cable. ister, Kjell Magne Bondevik. Telenor and the Russian compa-
nies VimpelCom and Alfa Group each contributed one third of

THE NORDIC REGION the total investment of USD 175.4 million.
= In 2002, Telenor strengthened its position as the largest sup- - In December, Telenor sold its ownership share of 49% in the
plier of TV distribution in the Nordic region, with approximate- regional Russian mobile operator Extel to VimpelCom, with an

ly 2.4 million TV customers. In June, Telenor and Canal+signed accounting gain of approximately NOK 45 million after tax.

an agreement for the takeover of the remaining shares in - Telenor’s international Internet commitments were further

Canal Digital. In 2002, Telenor, together with four other reduced in 2002.

Nordic TV companies, held the rights to distribute the FIFA

World Cup in the Nordic region. Telenor also entered intoa  ORGANISATION

partnership agreement with the Norwegian National Lottery - InJune, Jon Fredrik Baksaas took over as CEO of Telenor, suc-

for the development of interactive money games for TV. ceeding Tormod Hermansen, who had held the position since
- Telenor also strengthened its position in the Swedish busi- 1991. In December, Tom Vidar Rygh resigned as the Chairman

ness market by entering into an agreement for the takeover of the Board of Telenor to take up a new position in Sweden.

of 0% of the shares in the Utfors group, at a price of SEK 264 Vice-chairman Ashild Bendiktsen acted as chairman until a

million Telenor won a contract for the supply of comprehen- new chairman, Thorleif Enger, was appointed in March.

sive fixed network and mobile services to 28 of the 33 munici- - InDecember, Telenor decided to simplify its corporate struc-

palities in the Swedish County of Skane, a contract worth SEK ture into three business areas: Telenor Mobile, Telenor Net-

150 million. Through Utfors, the company also entered into a works and Telenor Broadcast, plus a portfalio of Other activ-

three-year agreement with the Swedish National Labour ities. At the same time a separate market organisation for

Market Board for the supply of a data communications solu- Norway was established, Telenor Norge. The new structure
tion worth SEK 120 million. became operative as of 1 January 2003.

»In September, Telenor opened its new headquarters at

INTERNATIONAL ACTIVITIES Fornebu, just outside Oslo. At the same time, Telenor

= In 2002, Telenor continued to develop its position as an launched a new ICT solution, Tetenor Arena. In November,

international player in mobile communications, with partic- Telenor’s new premises in Kristiansand were opened as a

ular focus on Central and Eastern Europe, through a regional office and a technological showcase for the Agder
strengthening of its involvement in Russia. region of Southern Norway.
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The Directors’ R@[@@ﬁt shows Telenor as a so'id
organisation well-positioned for profitable growtl

The board considers that revenues of NUK 48. ‘d ilion
in 2002 and a strengthened international pasition
indicate a robust financial situation and a good
platform for further value creation.
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DIRECTORS” REPORT 2002

2002 was a challenging year for the European tele-
communications industry. in response to this new market
reality, Telenor made write-downs and implemented workforce
reductions amounting to NOK 7.5 billion. As a conseguence,
the result before taxes and minority interasts showed a loss

of NOK 5,136 million.

1. HIGHLIGHTS

At the beginning of 2003, Telenor’s financial situation is solid,
and the group has a good platform for further value creation.
In 2002, the company worked on cost control and improved
efficiency through the Delta 4 reorganisation programme,
which has successfully improved margins in basic operations.
Revenues, excluding gains, amounted to NOK 48.7 billion. This
is a growth of NOK 8.1 billion, or about 20%, compared with
2001 . Combined with the growth in the company’s internation-
al activities, this should form the basis for positive financial
development in the future.

During 2002, workforce reductions were implemented, affect-
ing slightly more than 1,500 employees in Telenor’s Norwegian
operations.

In 2002, Telenor took important steps towards increased
internationalisation, among other things by acquiring majori-
ty holdings in the mobile operators Panncn (Hungary) and
Kyivstar GSM (Ukraine), while at the same time selling minority
interests in the Russian companies Extel and StavTeleSot. By
consolidating companies outside Norway, Telenor is estab-
lishing itself as aniinternational group. In the fourth quarter of
2002, 35% of Telenor’s revenues were from its international
activities, and 40% of the group’s employees worked outside
Norway.

Telenor ASA is registered in Norway, and in 2002, the company
opened its new headquarters at Fornebu, outside Oslo. On 21
June, Jon Fredrik Baksaas succeeded Tormod Hermansen as
Group CEO.

To simplify and reinforce Telenor’s position in the domestic
market, a separate market area was created at the beginning of
2003, comprising all sales and marketing activities in the
mobile and fixed network areas in Norway. This means that from
1 January 2003, Telenor has three business areas, which com-
prise mobile operations, fixed network operations and TV oper-
ations, and in addition, Other Activities. Financial reporting
from the first quarter of 2003 will be based on this structure.

As of 31 December 2002, Telenor ASA had 55,840 share-
holders, with the Norwegian State representing the largest
single shareholding (77.6%). The ten largest owners repre-

sented 85.38% of the existing shares. Shareholders held
1.803.426.127 shares in the company, representing a total
share capital of NOK 10,820,557,032. The Telenor share is
quoted on the Oslo Stock Exchange and Nasdaq.

On 31 December 2002, Telenor's shares were quoted at NOK
26.50 on the Oslo Stock Exchange, compared with NOK 38.50
one year earlier. While this represents a fall of 31%, the Dow
Jones European Telecom Index fell by 38% in the same period,
and the OSE Benchmark Index by 31 %. Once again, Telenor was
among the ten most traded shares on the Oslo Stock
Exchange.

2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Key figures In 2002, Telenor’s result after taxes and minor-
ity interests was a loss of NOK 4,298 million, or a loss of NOK
2.42 per share. The corresponding figures for 2001 were a
profit of NOK 7,679 million and NOK 3.99 per share.

In 2002, loss before taxes and minority interests was NOK 5,136
million, compared with a profit of NOK 10,255 million in 2001.
The result for 2002 was charged with a total of NOK 7.6 billion
in the form of costs associated with workforce reductions, net
losses on disposals and write-downs. This compares with sig-
nificant sales gains realised in 2001. The result before taxes and
minority interests increased by NOK 2.9 billion to NOK 2.5 bil-
lion for 2002, after adjustment for the net effects of gains,
losses, write-downs and costs associated with restructuring.
This is related to underlying growth, cost reductions and the
acquisition of new activities. During the year, cost reductions
amounting to approximately NOK 1.1 billion were implemented
in connection with the Delta 4 programme for improving oper-
ational efficiency.

In 2002, the book value of the publicly listed company DiGi.Com
in Malaysia was written down by NOK 2.1 billion, DTAC/UCOM in
Thailand by NOK 0.9 billion and Sonofon AS in Denmark by NOK
1.0 billion, based on the continuing fall in the value of mobile
companies. Telenor also found it necessary to make a number of
other write-downs as a consequence of declining asset values.
In addition, approximately NOK 1.0 billion was charged as an
expense in connection with restructuring measures, of which
costs in connection with workforce reductions comprised
approximately NOK 0.7 billion for the entire group.
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The operating result for 2002 was a loss of NOK 320 million,
compared with a profit of NOK 3,177 million in 2001. The
decline is attributable to the same factors as those mentioned
above, and the operating profit after adjustment for the net
effect of sales gains and losses, write~-downs and costs far
restructuring, increased by NOK 2.0billion to NOK 4.3 billionin
2002. The operating result was positively influenced by devel-
opments in Telenor Mobile, including the effect of the consol-
idation of former associated companies in 2001 and 2002. The
operating result was charged with costs for the marketing of
ADSL in Telenor Plus, as well as the consolidation of Canal Dig-
ital, while the operating loss in Telenor Business Solutions was
reduced, mainly as a result of fewer loss-making operations in
Nextra International. The adjusted operating result in Telenor
Networks was in line with 2001.

The result for associated companies was a loss of NOK 2,450
million, compared with a profit of NOX 8,237 million in 2001.
The decline was connected with significant sales gains in 2001,
The results were also influenced by the fact that a number of
companies were converted from associated companies to sub-
sidiaries in 2001 and 2002, as weil as by the effects of write-
downs in both 2001 and 2002. There was a good underlying
growth in revenues and profits in a number of the associated
companies, principally in the international mabile operations.

Net financial costs increased by NOK 1,207 million to NOK
2,366 million in 2002, mainly as a result of lower gains from
sales of shareholdings and increased net interest expenses.
Significant write-downs of shareholdings were made both in
2001 and in 2002. In connection with the acquisition of busi-
nesses, net interest-bearing liabilities increased in the course
of 2001 and 2002, contributing to higher interest expenses.

Current and deferred taxes totalled an income of NOK 480
million in 2002. Tax-deductible losses were realised in con-
nection with the liquidation and sale of companies. This was
partly offset by a tax claim in relation to a challenge of
Telenor's 2001 tax return associated with the group internal
sale of shares in Sonofon Holding A/S and a lawsuit in Greece,
both of which were recorded as tax expenses in 2002. In Janu-
ary 2003, Telenor issued a writ against the Norwegian tax
authorities in connection with the Sonofon case.

The cash flow from operating activities increased by NOK 5.9
billion from 2001 to NOK12.9 billion in 2602. This was principal-
ly the result of increases in revenues, and operating margins and
accruals, which were partly offset by increased tax and interest
payments. The consolidation of DiGi.Com in 2001 and Pannon
GSM and Kyivstar in 2002 contributed NOK 3.1 billion.

Telenor invested NOK 21.3 billion in 2002, of which NOK 12.4
billion was acquisition of businesses. COMSAT Mobile Commu-
nications was acquired with effect from 11 January 2002, the
acquisition of Pannon GSM in Hungary was completed on 4
February 2002 and the acquisition of the remaining 50% of the
shares in the Canal Digital group (Norway, Sweden, Denmark
and Finland) was finalised on 30 June 2002.

At the end of 2002, Telenor’s total balance was NOK 89.5 bil-
lion and the equity ratio (including minority interests) was
41.7%, which is a reduction from 55.3% in 2001. Net interest-
bearing liabilities totalled NOK 26.9 billion, anincrease of NOK
13.7 billion during the year. In the opinion of the Board,
Telenor’s financial position is satisfactory.

Pursuant to Section 3-3 of the Norwegian Accounting Act we
confirm that the accounts have been prepared on the basis of
a going concern assumption.

Comments regarding the business areas

Telenor Mobile Telenor Mobile provides mobile voice, data,
Internet and content services, as well as electronic commerce,
in Norway and a selection of countries abroad. The business
area is by far the leading supplier of such services to the Norwe-
gian market, and a pioneer in the development of new services
in the field of mobile communications. Telenor Mobile is among
the 12 largest mobile communications operators in the world.

Operating profit, Telenor Group; 1998-2002
NOK in millions :

2002 } (3200
2001 3.177
2000 35629
1999 4002
1998 3.797
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The total revenues in Telenor Mobile increased by NOK 7,788
million to NOK 20,346 million in 2002. NOK 7.0 billion of this
increase resulted from the consolidation of DiGi.Com, Pannon
GSM and Kyivstar GSM during 2001 and 2002. In addition to
this, there was good underlying growth due to the increase in
the number of subscriptions, both at GrameenPhone in
Bangladesh and in Norway, where the revenue per subscriber
also increased.

The operating profit was reduced by NOK 1,081 million to NOK
1,414 million in 2002, largely as a consequence of the write-
down of DiGi.Com in 2002. Apart from this, there was an
underlying positive trend associated with improved margins
and new companies.

The results from Telenor Mobile’s associated companies and
jointventure activities fellby NOK 11.7 billion to aloss of NOK 2.0
billion in 2002. The decline must be seen in the context of con-
siderable sales gains achieved in 2001. The 2002 loss is attrib-~
utable to depreciation and write-downs of Telenor’s excess val-
ues, while the net income after tax in the associated companies
was positive as a consequence of considerable increases in their
customer bases. After adjustment for Pannon and Kyivstar,
which are now consolidated as subsidiaries, and Extel, which was
sold at the end of 2002, there was an increase of 2.1 million in
Telenor's pro rata share of subscriptions in international associ-
ated mobile telecommunications companies, which reached 5.1
million at the end of 2002. The growth was particularly high in
DTAC in Thailand and in VimpelCom in Russia.

Telenor Networks Telenor Networks provides fixed network
telecommunications services in Norway. Telenor Networks
offers traditional analogue fixed telephony services (PSTN),
digital fixed telephony services (ISDN) and value-added serv-
ices to the residential market. Telenor Networks also offers
PSTN and ISDN and leased lines to businesses and the public
sector. Additionally, this business area provides interconnec-
tion and capacity services such as leased lines and operator
access to other network operators and service providers.

The total revenues decreased by NOK 80 million to NOK 16,488
mitlion in 2002. The totat traffic minutes in the fixed network on
the Norwegian market fell by 8.5% in 2002, as a result of the
trend towards wireless traffic and the increase in the use of

ADSL, where the volume of traffic is not measured. Telenor Net-
works’ market share of traffic minutes fell by five percentage
points to 63% by the end of 2002, but was compensated for
Telenor as a whole by increased market shares in the Telenor
Plus and Business Solutions business areas.

Telenor Networks' operating result increased by NOK 351 mil-
lion to NOK 2,526 million in 2002, mainly as a consequence of
reduced write-downs.

Telenor Plus The Telenor Plus business area is the leading
supplier of TV-based services in the Nordic region. The services
comprise the transmission of TV and radio signals through the
operators Norkring and Satellite Broadcasting. Through Canal
Digital, Telenor Avidi, Sweden On-Line and Telenor Vision, a
range of TV services, Pay-TV and digital services are provided
to customers in the Nordic region via satellite dish, cable TV
and smaller closed networks. The business area is also a lead-
ing supplier of Internet access and services to the residential
market in Norway.

Total revenues increased by NOK 1,476 million to NOK 4,862
million in 2002, primarily as a result of the consolidation of
new companies, including Canal Digital, and the increase in
ADSL sales. The number of TV subscribers increased by 3.5%
to 2.4 million in 2002, while the number of ADSL subscribers
increased by 67,000, to reach 90,000.

The operating loss in 2002 was NOK 883 million, compared
with a loss of NOK 841 millionin 2001 . Theincreased loss is con-
nected with the effects of new companies and the increased
sales of and marketing activities for ADSL, which were partly
counteracted by lower write-downs as compared with 2001 .

Telenor Business Sclutions Telenor Business Solutions pro-
vides a broad range of communications solutions and solutions
for application services (ASP) to the business market in Nor-
way. The business area also provides IP-based communica-
tions services in a selection of European countries, in addition
to systems integration in the UK. Telephony, IP-based commu-
nications solutions, data communications and advanced net-
work services are also supplied to the business marketin Swe-
den. The Russian company Comincom/Combellga supplies
telecommunications services mainly in the Moscow area.




The total revenues of Telenor Business Solutions increased by
NOK 217 million to NOK 6,157 million in 2002, as a result of the
full year effect of the consolidation of Telenordia in Sweden,
increased internal group sales of data services connected to
ADSL sales in Telenor Pius, and increased revenues in Comin-
com/Combeillga in Russia. This was partly counteracted by the
lower sales of ASP, managed services and software, resulting
from weak market conditions, and fewer units in Nextra Inter-
national.

The operating loss in 2002 was NOK 1,807 million, compared
with a loss of NOK 2,968 mitlion in 200t. The improvement is
associated with cost reductions and a reduction in loss-mak-
ing business in Nextra International, improved margins con-
nected with internal group sales of access network and com-
munications services in Norway, as well as lower write-downs
and costs resulting from restructuring and loss-making con-
tracts. This was partly counteracted by reduced sales of ASP,
managed services and software.

Other activities Other activities consist mainly of the listed
subsidiary EDB Business Partner ASA, in which Telenor had a
shareholding of 51.8% at the end of 2002, as well as other
business units, Corporate Functions and Group Activities.

The totat revenues in EDB Business Partner ASA were reduced
by NOK 470 million to NOK 4,341 million in 2002. The decline
is attributable to lower demand, especially from other Telenor
companies, as a result of weak market conditions. The operat-
ing loss in 2002 was NOK 409 million, which represents an
improvement of NOK 799 million, compared to 200t. Both in
2001 and 2002, write-downs were implemented, and costs
were incurred in connection with restructuring activities.
Adjusted for these effects, the operating result showed a
decline compared with 2001, resulting from tower revenues.

The total revenues far other business units were NOK 3,978
million in 2002, which is slightly tower than in 2001. The rev-
enues in Satellite Services increased, principally as a result of
the consolidation of COMSAT in the US. The revenues in Satel-
lite Networks also increased as a result of new contracts.
Itworks filed for bankruptcy in April 2002, contributing to
reduced revenues. The combined operating loss for other
business activities was NOX 90million, but this represented an

improvement over 2001 of almast NOK 600 million, as a con-
sequence of the improved performance of Satellite Services
and Satellite Networks, as well as the cessation of the losses in
ltworks and TTYL. In 2002, expenses were recorded in Tele-
service, and write-downs in Telenor Innovation atso had a
negative effect compared with 2001.

Total revenues in Corporate Functions and Group Activities
were NOK 2,850 million in 2002, representing a reduction of
approximately NOK 5 billion resulting from gains from the sale
of Telenor Media in 2001. The operating result fell by NOK
5,324 million to give a loss of NOK 1,185 million, as a conse-
quence of lower net sales gains in 2002, restructuring costs
and increased deprecations connected with the new Fornebu
headquarters and new computer systems.

3. NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The day-to-day management of Telenor requires emphasis on
both financial and non-financial objectives and management
parameters. Certain non-financial factors receive particular
attention, such as the expertise of employees, the company’s
customer relations and its position in the various markets.
Customer satisfaction and brand name recognition are essen-
tial for the long-term development of results and assets.

Working environment In 2002, Telenor continued to con-
centrate on following up sick leave, ergonomics, fire preven-
tion, and subcontractors and the systematic improvement of
the working environment at all levels in the group. A total of
7 audits were carried out in order to monitor these areas in the
group’s subsidiaries. Sick leave in 2002 was 5.0%, as com-
pared with 4.9% in 2001. The long-term objective is to reduce
sick leave to 4.0%. In 2002, 1 2injuries leading to absence were
reported, none of which were serious, in addition to a total

Operating profit {loss); 1999-2002

NCOK Business

inmillions Mobile WNetworks: Plus Solutions Other
2002 144 2526  (883) (1.807) (1.570)
2001 2.495 2175 (841) (2.968) 2316
2000 1594 3047 135 (1173) 26
1999 1.106 2.884 132 {430) 310
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of 16 injuries (which did not lead to absences) and 5 near-
accidents.

The external environment The environmental impact per
employee in Telenor is low. The group has an impact on its sur-
roundings primarily as a result of its size, and that impact is
largely associated with energy consumption, travel and
installation activities.

Efforts to reduce Telenor's energy consumption in Norway
resulted in a fall of 5.6%, to 507 GWh, of which an estimated 87%
comes from renewable energy sources such as hydro-electrici-
ty and district heating. In 2002, the total emissions of CO2 from
Telenor's operations in Norway amounted to 17,000 tonnes,
which is a reduction of 13.7% from 2001 .

Telenor’s new office buildings at Fornebu, Kokstad in Bergen
and Elvebredden in Kristiansand are innovative in their use of
environmentally friendly solutions, which are leading to lower
costs for the company as well as a reduced impact on the envi-
ronment.

Indexes In 2002, Telenor was quoted on the Dow Jones Sus-
tainability indexes. The company also maintained its position
on the FTSE4Good index and was awarded the “Best in Class”
distinction by Storebrand Kapitalforvaltning for its work on
social responsibility.

Skitls and education Telenor considers it important to
attract and retain skilled employees, and continues to devel-
op its open internal labour market. Regular monitoring of
employees’ attitudes and experience of various aspects of
their workplace is carried out, and the results are used in the
company's improvement wark.

A survey of Norwegian students placed Telenor in second
place among the companies they would most like to work for.

As an element of Telenor’s efforts to attract and retain good
managers, an options programme was implemented which
applied to approximately 80 employees. The programme will
probably cover 1 00 employees in 2003, and managers and key
personnel did not receive the usual salary adjustment on
1lanuary 2003.

4. ALLOCATICNS
In 2002, the parent company, Telenor ASA, recorded a net loss
of NOK 2,626 million.

The Board of Directors proposes that the Shareholder's meet-
ing approve the payment of a dividend of NOK 0.45 per share
for 2002.

The Board of Directors also proposes the payment of a Group
Contribution of NOK 137 million after taxes.

The Board of Directors proposes the following allocations (in
NOK milllions):

Dividends 799
Transferred from other equity (3,425)
Total __(2,626)

After these allocations, the campany’s distributable equity as
of 31 December 2002 totalled NOK 7,652 million.

5. REGULATORY MATTERS

Telenor’s regulatory framework conditions are of significant
importance for the company’s ability to create value for its
shareholders and for society. The authorities can exert influ-
ence which can result in significant changes in the balance of
the market, Telenor’s revenues and the profitability of invest-
ing in new technology and new services. In recent years the
regulatory authorities in Norway have chosen to pursue an
active policy of regulation and monitoring which has present-
ed significant challenges for Telenor’s business activities.

The Board of Directors emphasises the need for Telenor to
contribute to an efficiently run telecommunications market in
Norway. In the opinion of the Board, it is inappropriate to sub-
jectindividual operators in Norway to controls which are more
detailed and radical than those of other European countries.
Such controls may also lead to significant socio-economic
costs. In the long term, this may weaken the incentives for
future investments in Norwegian infrastructure and service
development. Telecommunications prices in Norway are
already among the lowest in the OECD, and Norway is current-
ly among the world leaders in mobile communications servic-
es such as SMS, MMS and mobile payment solutions. In spite of




this, Norwegian regulatory authorities appear to have chosen
to exercise a control and monitoring policy involving consider-
able regulatory risk for the company and its investors by cre-
ating uncertainty regarding the profitability of Telenor’s large
investments in network and service development.

Telenor pays particular attention to regulatory factors in its
international portfolio, and the development in regulatory
framework conditions for the company’s activities outside
Norway in 2002 has on the whole been positive. It is assumed
that the development in the direction of more stable frame-
work conditions will continue in 2003.

The Ministry of Transport and Communications has initiated a
revision of Norwegian telecommunications legislation after
the EU passed new resolutions on electronic communications
networks and services. The aim of the regulations is to ensure
that consumers receive high quality services at acceptable
prices through effective competition. The Board considers this
an important principle, and expects the EU regulations to be
implemented and enforced in a harmonised fashion in all
EU/EEA countries.

In the spring of 2003, the Norwegian Government presented a
white paper to the Norwegian Parliament regarding mobile
communications activities in Norway. The Board considers it
positive that the Government in the white paper indicates that
regulatory measures must consider the need to provide
incentives for further development of infrastructure and new
services in the Norwegian market.

6. COMPANY MANAGEMENT

Corporate governance In 2002, Telenor continued to pay
considerable attention to the formal and fundamental frame-
work for the management of the company, both as regards
management practices and social responsibility, with the main
focus on safeguarding the long-term interests of the owners.
Following the passing of the Sarbanes-0Oxley act in 2002. The
new regulations will lead to greater awareness with respect to
internal control, reporting and accounting matters, among
other things by placing requirements on the documentation of
work practices and assessments. The Board will ensure that
Tetenor fulfils these new requirements.

Formany years, Telenor has made use of internal regutations and
directives as management tools, to supplement the legally
imposed regulations. The Board has appointed a subcammittee
{Compensation Committee) which at the request of the Board will
assess the total remuneration of the group CEO, as well as the
policy regarding remuneration of managers at various levels.

In 2002, Telenar continued to provide active communication
with the financial market and provide information to the
shareholders, thereby ensuring that all the basic information
essential for the external assessment of the company was
publicised in accordance with applicable rules and guidelines.

Throughout 2002, the Board kept up-to-date with the com-
pany’s strategic planning, placing particular emphasis on the
monitoring of financial performance, work on cost-reducing
measures and investment matters. Earlier investments have
been followed up by way of special evaluation reports.

The Board On 18 June 2002, the Corporate Assembly of
Telenor elected Hanne de Mora as a new shareholder-elected
member of the Board of Telenor ASA. At the same time, Vice-
Chairman Ashild Bendiktsen was re-elected as shareholder-
elected member. Both appointments are valid for one year. At
the same time, Bente Neegard Halvorsen left the Board.

All the shareholder-elected Board members are up for re-
election in the spring to summer of 2003.

On 3 December 2002, Tom Vidar Rygh resigned as the Chair-
man of the Board of Telenor ASA to take up the position of CEO
of Enskilda Securities AB. Vice-chairman Ashild Bendiktsen
acted as chairman until the new chairman, Thorleif Enger, was
appointed in March.

in January 2002, the President and CEQ, Tormod Hermansen,
notified the Board that he wished to step down at the end of
the first half of 2002. On 26 April, the Board decided to
appoint Jon Fredrik Baksaas as the new CEO of Telenor, and he
took up the position on 21 June 2002.

With the exception of the representatives elected by the
employees, no Board members are employed by Telenor or
engaged in work for Telenor.
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The Board of Telenor works in accordance with guidelines for its
work and procedures. The Board held 1 5Board Meetings in 2002.

7. ORGANISATION AND PERSONNEL

At the end of 2002, the Telenor Group had 23,450 employees,
representing 22,100 man-years. 14,150 of these worked in
Norway and 9,300 outside Norway. The total number of
employees at the end of 2001 was 22,050, 60% are male and
40% are female.

Based on the market developments in recent years, there was
a need to reduce costs and rationalise operations. As part of
the company’s efforts to achieve this, a significant workforce
reduction was imptemented in the Norwegian operations in
2002. To ensureithe greatest possible consideration for those
affected, the company has provided financial support and
councelling, in addition to internal labour market initiatives.

The company has also practiced a partial hiring freeze, and
greatly reduced its use of consultants.

Co-operation between the management and the employees’
organisations functions well within the framework of the gen-
eral agreement between the employers’ association, the Nor-
wegian Assaciation of Publicly Gwned Companies (NAVQ), and
the central organisations(SAN).

Telenor decided to implement an organisational adjustment
from 1 January 2003 to reinforce the organisation and there-
by form the best possible starting point for the continued
development of activities in Norway while at the same time
ensuring continued international growth in the mobile
telecommunications field. From this date, the business activi-
ties are operated through three business areas, Telenor
Mobile, Telenor Networks and Telenor Broadcast, which from
the same date form the basis of the company’s financial
reporting structure, with the addition of Other activities.
A separate market organisation, Telenor Norge, has been
established to simplify and reinforce Telenor’s position in the
domestic market, while a new group management, adapted to
the altered organisational structure, has been set up.

8. RISK FACTORS
Telenor’s activities are exposed to a number of risk factors,

principally of regulatory, legal, financial and political nature. It
is important for the Board to ensure that the company imple-
ments measures to control and reduce the risk factors, to
ensure that the total risk is at all times kept within commer-
cially acceptable limits.

In the Norwegian market, new and modified regulations by
regulatory authorities and civil action based on alleged
breaches of the telecommunications regulations present a
considerable challenge and an element of uncertainty. In the
international market, there are special risk elements in certain
countries, such as political climate, exchange rate fluctua-
tions, regulatory conditions, partner risk in joint projects, etc.

Telenor assesses these risk factors in detail, both in connec-
tion with new investments, and continuously in the case of
existing investments. In its international ventures, the compa-
ny has attempted to balance the risk situation for investments
outside Norway by distributing its portfolio between mature
and immature markets. The Board has systematically
reviewed and evaluated the company’s commitments so as to
assess the development of the individual projects in the light
of an up-to-date risk situation.

Telenor is exposed to financial market risks related to changes
ininterest rates and foreign exchange rate fluctuations. Finan-
cial instruments are used to reduce such risks. The group has
taken the necessary steps to maintain a satisfactory financial
flexibility in the aftermath of the turbulence in the capitaimar-
kets in recent years.

9. OUTLOOK FOR 2003

The rationalization of operations will continue in 2003, with
the focus on keeping the costs down and thereby increase the
cash flow from operations.

Telenor expects continued growth, particularly from our inter-
national mobile companies. In addition, the full-year effect of
the consolidation of Kyivstar GSM, Pannon GSM and Canal
Digital will be realised. Revenues are expected to increase for
the group as a whote.

The rationalization of operations through Delta 4, will contin-
ue in 2003 and is expected to contribute to increased margins




in the Norwegian part of the group. In the international part of
the group, several of the companies are now in a mature
phase, which is expected to have a positive effect on the mar-
gins. Combined with the increase in revenues, this is expected
to result in a considerable improvement in the underlying
EBITDA and in the operating profit.

Capital expenditure is expected to be in line with 2002 despite
the consolidation of Kyivstar GSM, Canal Digital and Pannon
GSM.
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Ashild M. Bendiktsen

Telenor believes that an increasing proportion of the revenues
and profits will come from international operations, with a
higher degree of exposure to exchange rate fluctuations than
previously. Simultaneously, the risk will increase due to
greater exposure to emerging markets. In addition, significant
portians of the company’s activities are experiencing regula-
tory risk, both in Norway and internationally.

Hanne de Mora

Board Chairman Board Vice-chairman Board member
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Harald Stavn Per Gunnar Salomonsen Irma Tystad
Board member Board member Board member

Jon Fredrik Baksaas
President & CEQ



TELENOR’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

in 2002, Telenor continued its endeavours to achieve pest
practice in its standards of corporate governance. A consider-
able effort was made to introduce and implement internal
guidelines, processes and routines. Telenor’s corporate gover-
nance is founded on public legislation and internal guidelines.

PRINCIPLES OF GOVERNANCE

Telenor's legal management structure is partly set by a body of
laws that regulates the activities, and partly by its own regula-
tions, internal bodies and directions. Telenor ASAis a Norwegian
company, but Telenor is also an international group. Interna-
tional subsidiaries have their own management bodies, which
actin accordance with the prevailing legislation in each country.

MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Telenor’s operations are organised under a formal corporate
structure with Telenor ASA as the parent company; a holding
company that includes group management and group units,
regulated in accordance with the Act relating to Public Limit-
ed Companies

As of 2003, the Telenor group is divided into three business
areas, plus one area for Other activities and a market organi-
sation for Norway. The President and Board of Telenor ASA
correspond to the CED and Board of the Telenor group. The
Board of Telenor ASA is responsible for the operations in
underlying subsidiaries via the CEQ, and the CEOQ via the heads
of the relevant areas.

MANAGEMENT BODIES

The formal governance of Telenor ASA is undertaken through
the central bodies, the Annual General Meeting (AGM), the
Corporate Assembly and the Board of Directors.

The AGM is the body through which the shareholders exercise
their overall authority, based on one vote per share. The AGM
is authorised to approve the annual accounts, the Directors’
report and the dividend to be paid out - all on the recommen-
dation of the Board and the Corporate Assembly. The AGM
appoints the ten shareholder-elected members to the corpo-
rate assembly, it appoints two of the four members sitting on
the Nomination Committee, as well as the external auditor.

The Corporate Assembly elects the Board members and
Chairman, supervises the Board and management’s adminis-
tration of the company, and is empowered to make decisions
on certain issues. The Corporate Assembly submits a state-
ment to the AGM on whether the Board’s proposed profit and
loss account and balance sheet should be approved, plus a
proposal for the application of profit or coverage of loss.

Telenor ASA’s corporate assembly consists of 1 5 members who
are normally elected for two years at a time. Ten of these
members are elected from the shareholders at the AGM, and
five are selected from and by the employees.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for submitting to
the AGM recommendations on the choice of shareholder-
elected members and deputy members to the corporate
assembly, plus a recommendation to the corporate assembly
on the choice of shareholder-elected Board members. Telenor
ASA’s Nomination Committee consists of four members, all of
them representing the shareholders. The members are elect-
ed for a two-year period. Two members are elected by the
AGM, and two by and from the corporate assembly’s share-
holder-elected members, the leader of the corporate assem-
bly being one.

The Board is responsible for the direction and proper organi-
sation of the company. This includes a responsibility to super-
vise and exercise control of activities. The Board submits an
annual report and financial statements to the AGM, as well as
a recommendation for the application of profit or the covering
of any losses. Telenor ASA’s Board consists of 10 members,
seven of which are elected by the Corporate Assembly, and
three from and by the employees. Allmembers are elected for
a two-year period. The Corporate Assembly also elects the
Board Chairman and Board Vice-Chairman.

The Remuneration Committee is a working committee re-
sponsible for evaluating the total remuneration to the CEO and
to managers reporting directly to the CEQ. The committee
shall also recommend a proposal for policies and schemes
that affect companies’ management salary policies, including
bonus programmes, share schemes, etc.

The CEQis in charge of the day-to-day management of oper-
ations in Telenor ASA and the Telenor group. The CEO is
responsible for ensuring that the company and group are
organised, run and developed in accordance with current leg-
islation, regulations and resclutions passed by the Board, the
corporate assembly and the AGM. Telenor ASA’s CEO is
appointed by the Board and is under obligation to report to the
Board. The CEO and the group management have corporate
staff and units that support them in their work. The CEQ is also
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TELENOR'S MANAGEMENT SYSTEM, 20022003
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Ltompliance Officer [ Group Management j Disclosure Committee }

[ Business Areas

head of the Ethical Council, which shall ensure the observance
of corporate ethical guidelines. The Council shall evaluate
concrete ethical questions, assessing day-to-day situations
as well as business-related matters.

The Group Management now consists of seven members,
including the CEO, CFQ and CTO, as well as the heads of the busi-
ness areas and the head of the Norwegian market organisation.

The Compliance Officer shall ensure that the company acts in
accordance with applicable law, regulations and legally bind-
ing directions issued by public authorities, and furthermore,
that internal conduct in the organisation does not conflict with
Telenor’s own policies, regulations and guidelines. The compli-
ance officer reports to the CEO and shall ensure that the group
takes sufficient measures to secure that prevailing regulations
are cbserved.

The Group Auditor (internal auditor) performs random revi-

sions throughout the group, based on risk analyses. The audi-
tor submits evaluations and advice on internal control, gover-
nance and operational efficiency. The work is undertaken in
accordance with international standards. The Group Auditor
reports to the CED, and accasionally to the Board.

The Disclosure Committee shall support efforts to meet the
requirements in the American “Sarbanes-0Oxley Act”, which is
making increasingly strong formal demands with respect to
accounting, internal control and corporate governance. The
committee shall issue internal directives, provide follow-up
and contribute to ensure that requirements are met. The com-
mittee is chaired by the CFO, and all members have relevant
expertise.

The investment Committee shall give advise to the CEQ and
the group management on investment issues of a certain size,
The committee is chaired by the CFO, and all members have
relevant expertise.
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lgrgen Lindegaard (1248)
BOARD MEMBER

largen Lindegaard was elected to
the Board on 1 October 2001. He
is the CEO of SAS. Jorgen
Lindegaard's background is in the
telecommunications industry,
and since 1975 he has held
managerial positions in Fyns
Tetefon A/S, Kebenhavn Telefon
A/S and TeleDanmark A/S. He is
Chairman of the Board of
Sonofon Holding A/S and a Board
member of Finansieringsinstitut-
tet for Industri og Handvaerk A/S.
Lindegaard is a Graduate Engi-
neer with telecommunications
and is a member of The Academy
for Technical Sciences in
Denmark and Norway.




TELENDOR' S MANAGEMENT

- e
Arveignansan, jan Edvard Thygesen, Torstein Moland, Jon Fredrik Baksaas, Berit Svendsen, Morten Karlsen Serby. Stig Eide Si

Jon Fredrik Baksaas (1254)

President and CEO

lon Fredrik Baksaas joined Telenor in 1989 and has held positions as
Director of Corporate Finance, Executive Vice President and CEQ of
TBK AS. He was appointed Deputy CEQ of Telenor in 1997 and has
served as Telenor’s CEQ since 21 june 2002. Before joining Telenor,
Jon Fredrik Baksaas held finance-retated positions in Aker AS,
Stolt-Nielsen Seaway and Det norske Veritas. He holds a Master of
Science in Business Administration from the Norwegian School of
Economics and Business Administration in Bergen and has additional
qualifications from IMD in Lausanne, Switzerland.

Torstein Moland (1245)

Senior Executive Vice President and CFO

Torstein Moland joined Telenor in 1997 as Senior Executive Vice
President with responsibility for finance and economics. Prior to taking
up this post, he was Head of the Central Bank of Norway and President
of Norske Skog. He also served in the Norwegian Ministry of Finance
where he developed economic policies. He was later appointed State
Secretary to the Prime Minister. Torstein Moland is a graduate
economist with additional qualifications from Massachusetts Institute
of Technology.

Arve lohansen (1249)

Senior Executive Vice President and CEQ of Telenor Mobile

Arve Johansen joined Telenor in 1989 and has held several pasitions
including CEQ of Telenor International AS. He has been Senior
Executive Vice President since 1999 and CEO of Telenor Mobile since
2000. Prior to this, he was Executive Vice President of EB Telecom,
Research Engineer at the Narwegian Institute of Technology, and he
also worked at ELAB. Arve Johansen graduated as an electronics
engineer (telecommunications) from the Norwegian Institute of
Technology in Trondheim and took part in the Programme for
Management Development at Harvard Business School.

Jan Edvard Thygesen (12571)

Executive Vice President and CEO of Telenor Networks

lan Edvard Thygesen joined Telenor in 1979 and has held several
positions including Executive Vice President of Telenor Mobile, CEQ of
Telenor Invest AS, Executive Vice President of Telenor Bedrift AS and
CEO of Telenor Nett AS. He has been the head of Telenor Networks since
1998. Jan Edvard Thygesen graduated in electronics and telecom-
munications from the Norwegian Institute of Technology in Trondheim.

Stig Eide Sivertsen (1859)

Executive Vice President and CEO of Telenor Broadcast

Stig Eide Sivertsen joined Telenor in 1997 as Director of Corporate
Finance for Telenor Link AS. He has previously held positions as CEQ
of Nettavisen and Director of Corporate Finance in Petroleum Geo-
Services ASA and Schibsted ASA. Stig Eide Sivertsen studied law at
the University of Bergen and has an MBA from Durham University.

Morten Karlsen Serby (1959)

Executive Vice President and CEO of Telenor Norge

Morten Karlsen Serby joined Telenor in 1393 and has held a number of
different positions in the group, including Finance Director and CEO of
Telenor International, Executive Vice President of Telenor Mobile from
2000 to 2002, and CEQ of Telenor Norge from 2003. He has previously
worked at Arthur Andersen & Co in Oslo, primarily in IT, telecom and
media. Morten Karlsen Sarby holds a Master of Science in Business
Administration and is a state authorised public accountant (Norway).
He atso has qualifications from IMD, Lausanne.

Berit Svendsen (19563)

Executive Vice President for Technology (CTO)

Berit Svendsen joined Telenor in 1988 and has held a number of
different positions, most recently as Project Director for FMC (Fixed
Mobile Convergence) and as CED of data services. She was appointed
Executive Vice President and CTO in 2000. Berit Svendsen has an MSEE
degree from the Norwegian University of Science and Technology and a
Master of Technology Management degree from the Norwegian Schoot
of Economics in Bergen and Massachusetts Institute of Technology.
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oo in Telenor’s four business areas in 2002,
were characterised by consolidation angd cost control
The international focus on mobile cperations

was strengthened.




ACTIVITIES AND VALUE CREATION

Telenor has extenced the scope of its non-financial reporting
activities and this is reflected in the Annual Report for 200°2.
Non-financial information provides important indications of the
group's long-term value creation potential.

Non-financial information is central to the improvement of
efficiency and innovation and the strengthening of customer
and market awareness. it will provide greater insight into cen-
tral factors in the group’s value creation, and markets and the
surrounding world will be better equipped to evaluate the com-
pany. Such information is also included in the sections from the
individual business areas, in the Financial review.

MANAGEMENT MODEL

Telenor has developed a management model for its activities,
which includes both financial and non-financial parameters.
The management model is the framework for the business
planning and follow-up of activities in the business areas. The
purpose of the management model is to contribute to the long-
term optimisation of shareholder values, strengthen the
group’s ability and power to realise its strategic objectives and
ensure the overall. administration and control of activities.

In addition to financial information, Telenor’s management
model builds on four core areas for management information:

Customers, Markets and Society The group’s social respon-
sibility, the behaviour and attitudes of customers and suppliers
in relation to customer care and market positioning.

Internal processes The quality and efficiency of the group’s
internal business and support processes and systems.

Innovation The group’s innovation and creativity with respect
to technology, products, services and markets.

Expertise and learning The group’s ability to attract, devel-
op and retain the proper expertise, including its reputation as
an employer, skills development, motivation, commitment and
leadership.

A set of performance indicators (value drivers) has been
defined for each of the business areas. These are based on
important success factors for achieving Telenor's strategy and
are part of the management system. They include strategy
development, the drawing-up of business plans and budgets,
reporting, result follow-up and incentives.

CUSTOMERS, MARKETS AND SOCIETY
Purpose The purpose of Telenor’s efforts in the management
area Customers, Markets and Society are:

High-quality customer awareness and customer care  Detailed
monitoring of customer care and market positioning shall form
the basis for initiatives to ensure high quality and satisfactory
customer service and customer care in Telenor.

A strong position and a strong brand A good teputation and a
strong market position are determining factors in ensuring cus-
tomer loyalty and market appeal. In the markets where Telenor

MAIN ELEMENTS IN TELENOR'S INTEGRATED MANAGEMENT MODEL

Financial

[ Customer, Markets, Society 1 ‘

Internal processes

Innovation
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has activities, the company shall be seen as dynamic, innova-
tive and responsible, and as a company that rethinks solutions
and services and systematically simplifies its customers’ work-
day. The brands of fully owned Telenor subsidiaries will be given
similar follow-up.

A commitment to social responsibility  Telenor shall strive to
achieve best practice with respect to its social responsibilities
in the markets where the group has activities. Our concern for
our social responsibility considerations shall be integral to the
group’s business development and operation, in relation to
products and services, employees, partners, suppliers and
other parties.

The year 2002 The Telenor group operates under a variety
of brand names in the markets where it has activities. In Nor-
way, the Telenor brand forms the basis for our future commer-
cial market arientation. In January 2002, we initiatied a project
to develop Telenor’s branding strategy and underpin the
group’s vision of simplifying and improving products and serv-
ices, and increase customer satisfaction. The aim of this work is
toenhance Telenor's reputation as a simplifier and an innovator.

Telenor’s Norwegian customer and market surveys have been
improved in an effort to achieve better follow-up of customer
satisfaction and customer perception. It is a clear goal to
increase customer satisfaction in the Norwegian market this
year. This will also improve our market position. Our surveys
have already given us valuable information about areas where
customer satisfaction levels need to be improved.

Telenor works systematically with questions relating to busi-
ness ethics and social responsibilities. In 2002, particular
emphasis was placed on drawing up common guidelines for
ethical conduct among managers and employees in the group.

in 2002, Telenor was listed on the Dow Jones Sustainability
Indexes. The group also maintained its listing on FTSE4Good
and was recently awarded the distinction “Best in class” by
Storebrand Kapitalforvaltning for its efforts in environmental
and social responsibility.

Telenor's environmental work showed a positive development
from 2001 to 2002. The company’s new office buildings at

Fornebu, Bergen and Kristiansand have all contributed to mas-
sive reductions in the group’s energy consumption in Norway.

Initiatives  The co-ordination of the activities in Norway is
important to strengthen the group’s customer care. The new
market organisation, Telenor Norge, was made operative on 1
January 2003, to bring together all sales and market activities
for the mobile, Internet and fixed network activities in Norway,
in both the residential and business markets. The co-ordina-
tion of customer services and simplified internal work
processes shall contribute to better follow-up and customer
care.

INTERMAL PROCESSES

Purpose Telenor is working systematically to improve busi-
ness and support processes that can contribute to improved
customer awareness and cost-effectiveness. This work focus-
es on better co-ordination along the value chains and between
the different units in the group, in order to simplify and improve
the efficiency of the work. These efforts will be strengthened in
the future.

Delta 4 is a group pregramme which aims ta reduce the com-
pany’s cost base in 2004 by NOK 4 million gross in relation to
the cost base in 2001. Delta 4 shall improve the efficiency of
operations, and ensure that Telenor works as an integrated
group. Its aims shall be achieved through initiatives such as
standardisation, simplification and reuse; vigorous cost cut-
ting, more integration of management, systems, routines and
investments, also with relation to the markets.

The year 2002 Project based work is central to Telenor's
performance. To strengthen our achievements in this area we
have introduced a joint project model and a special training
programme, which provide a framework for this form of work.

Delta 4 was initiated in 2002, and has provided analyses of
potential areas of improvement, design of new solutions and
suggested joint initiatives for the whole group. In 2002, cost
reductions totalling NOK 1.1 billion have so far been realised.
This includes workforce reductions of 1500 employees. The
largest cost reductions come through efficiency measures in
the group’s IT systems, by introducing common system plat-
forms and joint purchasing agreements.



Initiatives As of 2003, Telenor’s joint training programme
for project managers will form the basis for the internal certi-
fication of new project managers. The efficiency of project
work will be assessed in the annual internal value creation
survey.

Delta 4 shall primarily realise gains across the business area
structure, but the programme will also achieve gains via cost
reduction initiatives launched separately in the business
areas. The gains from these initiatives will be reported at the
group’s quarterly result presentations. A number of projects
associated with purchasing, IT systems, customer relations,
network structure and management, staff and support func-
tions and economy functions have been launched as part of
the Delta 4 programme.

INNOVATION

Purpose Telenor's innovation activities comprise anything
from the development of differentiated price structures and
new subscription plans for telephony and mobile telephony to
the development of broadband services, mobile data services,
and new business opportunities.

The aim of Telenor’s innovation activities is primarily to increase
the group's turnover through the development of new products,
services and business concepts. We also aim to make innova-
tion activities more targeted and efficient though concrete
evaluations and initiatives.

The year 2002 Telenor now has a more integrated strategy
tor the management of its innovation activities, and will be fol-
lowing a milestone schedule in its future resource allocation to
the major initiatives. In addition, a number of smaller innovation
groups have been co-ordinated into one powerful unit. Telenor
has made certain advanced commitments to services such as
mobile Internet and interactive services for TV, and has adjust-
ed its commitments in relation to the commercial success of
these services.

Telenor’s integrated management system has been strength-
ened in 2002, by introducing clear value drivers for innovation
throughout the organisation, and by increasing its focus on
innovation at the quarterly result presentations.

Initiatives The most important focus areas will be:

Mobile data services and applications  Telenor has developed
leading-edge expertise both within third generation mobile
telephony (UMTS) and new mobile netwark structures such as
Wireless LAN (WLAN). To speed up the development of new
data services for the mobile phone, open user interfaces are
being prepared, to allow new services (such as the mobile wal-
let) to be developed in collaboration with external partners.

Broadband solutions and applications ICanal, which is
involved in providing attractive content (such as games), is one
of Telenor's most important commitments in the broadband
area and shall contribute to customer growth. Telenor is
involved in developing concepts that will allow interaction and
viewing of such content on both TVs and PCs.

Communication solutions to private industry and public admin-
istration  Telenor Arena is Telenor’s solution for interaction
between people, environment and technology. It is marketed to
private industry and to public administration. The solution has
been developed based on Telenor's own ICT solution at
Fornebu, and involves a full outsourcing of ICT services.

Opportunities for new business
new opportunities for business.

Development trends can offer

Examples of such development trends are:

» Spontaneous networks set up between users, such as in a
WirelessLAN zone, or with the help of Bluetooth. The networks
are characterised by being independent of any network oper-
ator, and that the traffic avoids invoicing. The option of com-
munication between PCs and mobile telephones or between
mobile telephones via Bluetooth has already been imple-
mented in standard PCs and mobile phones.

 So-called omnipresent computing is based on future com-
puter technology on a level where we all not only own a PC,
but where invisible data power is built into parts of our sur-
roundings, allowing applications to “think” for themselves.
This wilt greatly alter our future communication needs.

EXPERTISE AND LEARNING
Purpose Telenor aims to attract, retain and develop its own
expertise in order to remain a leading knowledge-based com-
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pany. To realise this, particular emphasis will be placed on
forming close ties between skills development and training and
commercial operations; on developing new ways of working
and improved ICT tools; on maintaining and developing a solid
reputation as an attractive employer, and on learning quicker
and more effectively than our competitors.

The year 2002  Telenor regularly conducts: systematic
employee surveys to find out how well employees adapt to their
working environment.

Surveys made in 2002 show that 70% of the employees are
satisfied with how the Telenor headquarters at Fornebu live up
to the vision of being the leading workplace for innovative
activities in the Nordic region. This includes the use of new
electronic equipment. The result of external surveys in 2002

showed that Telenor is second on the list of companies for
whom Norwegian students would most like to work.

Initiatives A main focus in 2003 will be to clarify the compa-
ny's managerial principles. Management development will
be strengthened by such means as coaching, job rotation,
e-learning and other management programmes.

The incentive scheme for 2003 is formulated such that all
bonus agreements for managers and key personnel will contain
common group objectives linked to financial and customer-
related parameters, and Telenor's social responsibilities.
Greater emphasis will also be placed on strengthening the
Telenor culture, and on further development of Telenor Arena
as a tool for the efficient co-operation of people, their environ-
ment and technology.




TELENOR MOBILE
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is Telenor’s principal channel for future growth.
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INTRODUCTICN

Telenor Mobile is Telenor’s business area for the development
and operation of mobile services for voice, data, Internet, con-
tent services and electronic commerce in the Norwegian,
Nordic and international markets. Telenor Mobile has owner-
ship interests in 12 mobile operations in 12 countries. Six of
these are consolidated in Telenor’s accounts, and six have sta-
tus as associated companies. The international commitments
are geographically concentrated in selected countries in
Europe and South East Asia.

Telenor Mobile's international commitments are based on
Telenor’s experience, expertise, products and solutions devel-
oped in the Norwegian market. In 2002, Telenor Mobile imple-
mented a reorganisation of its activities to enable greater
focus on synergy effects between the mobile operations.

Consolidated subsidiaries:

Telenor Mobil AS, Norway Established in 1993, Telenor
Mobil AS is Norway's leading provider of mobile telephony and
mobile data communications, and one of the country’s two
digital mobile telephony operators. The company provides
services in three mobile telephony networks and one person-
al paging network. Telenor Mobil is the only operator providing
analague mabile services in the Norwegian market. The com-
pany's GSM 900 licence is valid until 2005, and the GSM 1800
licence untit 2010. Both can be extended. The NMT 450licence
expires in 2004, and the personal paging network, established
in 1984, will be phased out in September 2003. The nationwide
GSM network was upgraded with the addition of GPRS in 2C01.
Telenor Mobil is one of the two remaining licence holders for
UMTS in Norway. The first part of the network was opened in
December 2001.

Telenor Mobil supplies a range of digital mobile telephony
services, with a number of subscription alternatives and an
extensive portfolio of additional services. Telenor Mobil con-
tinues to develop new, advanced additional services, with spe-
cial focus on mobile Internet and mobile data services. In
March 2002, Telenor Mobil introduced MMS, and the compa-
ny also provides m-Commerce services, including payment
solutions through Content Provider Access (CPA), using Public
Key Infrastructure {PKI) technology.

Pannon GSM, Hungary Established in 1993, Pannon GSM is
the second largest of three mobile operators in Hungary.
Telenor was involved in founding the company and at the end of
2002 held a 100% ownership share, after increasing its share by
74.22% in February of that year. Pannon launched commercial
operations for its GSM 800 network in 1394, and opened its
GSM 1800 network early in 2001. GPRS was launched in 2001.
The company plans to participate in the auction bidding for
UMTS licences if the conditions are right, and aims to become
the leading supplier of mobile services in Hungary.

DiGi.Com Berhad, Malaysia Establishedin 1995, DiGi.Com s
the third largest of five mobile operators in Malaysia. Telenor
became part owner in 1999, and held, at the end of 2002, an
ownership share of 61.00%. DiGi.Com has been listed on the
stock exchange in Kuala Lumpur since 1997. The company
operates a GSM 1800 network, and launched GPRS in 2002.
DiGi.com has a special focus on younger subscribers and
djuice™ was launched in Malaysia in 2000. The company has
made a strategic decision not to apply for a UMTS licence, and
aims to offer its customers 3G access through partnerships
with other network operators.

Kyivstar GSM, Ukraine  Established in 1997, Kyivstar
became the leading mobile operator in the Ukraine in 2002.
Telenor became part owner in 1998, and at the end of 2001
held an ownership share of 54.21%. The company operates a
GSM 900 network, and in 2001 the company became market
leader; a position the company intends to keep.

GrameenPhone Ltd, Bangladesh  Established in 1997,
GrameenPhone is the largest of four mobile operators in
Bangladesh. Telenor became part owner in 1997, and at the
end of 2002 held an ownership share of 46.40%, representing
51.00% of the votes. GrameenPhone launched its GSM 900
network in 1997 and the company is the only one in
Bangladesh with nationwide service coverage. Grameen-
Phone has developed a rural network with a special Village
Phone programme, which in 2002 had 23,000 terminals in
operation in more than 21,500 villages.

Associated companies and shared activities:
Sonofon Holding A/S, Denmark Established in 1991, Sono-
fon is the second largest of four mobile operators in Denmark.
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Telenor is a leading player in international mobile communications, and our ability to develop advanced solutions is interna-
tionally recognised. The increasing popularity of mobile solutions, is being driven in part by service portfolio enhancements.
The third generation mobile system UMTS will add additional functicnality.

Telenor became part owner in 2000, and at the end of 200
held an ownership share of 53.50%. Sonofon operates GSM
900 and 1800 networks; GPRS was launched in 2000, and
broadband via Fixed Wireless Access in 2001. MMS services
were introduced in 2002.

VimpelCom, Russia Established in 1992, VimpelCom is one
of Russia’s leading mobile operators, and market leader in the
Moscow region. Telenor became part owner in 1999, and at the
end of 2002 held an ownership share of 28.98%. The compa-
ny is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. VimpelCom oper-
ates a D-AMPS network in addition to GSM 900 and 1800 net-
works, and launched GPRS in 2001.

Total Access Communication Company PCL (DTAC), Thai-
land Established in 1989, DTAC is Thailand’s second largest
maobile operator. Telenor became part owner in 2000, and at
the end of 2001 held an ownership share of 40.30%, with
29.90% in DTAC and 24.9C% in its former parent company,
United Communication Industry PCL (UCOM). DTAC is listed on
the Singapore stock exchange and UCOM on the Bangkok
stock exchange. DTAC operates an AMPS BOO mobile service
and a GSM 1800 service. GPRS was launched in 2002.

Connect Austria GmbH, Austria Established in 1997, Con-
nect Austria is the third largest of four mobile operators in
Austria. Telenor became part owner in 1997, and at the end of
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COMPANY PORTFOL!O AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2002, TELENOR MOBILE

Owner- Subscriptions {(000s)" Population
Company ship {%) 2002 2001 2000 Market {millions)
Telenar Mobil AS 100.00 2,382 2,307 2,199 Norway 45
PannonGSM? _ ...eepo 2450 1853 1217 . Hungary _ 10.2
DiGi.ComBerhad _ = . 6100 1Bl6_ 1039 824 _ Malaysia_ 23,8
Kyivstar G.S.M.1SC 54,21 1,856 1,095 302 Ukraine 49,8
GrameenPhone Ltd. 46.41 769 464 _191 _Bangladesh 131
Sonofon Holding A/S? 53.50 1,103 941 875 Denmark 54
VimpelCom?. . o 28.98 5158 2112 . 834 _ _ . Moscow-area_ 153
Total Access Comm. Co. PCL (DTAC)®  40.30 5,455 2,738 1,403 Thailand 61,2
Connect Austria GmbH? 17.45 1,337 1,301 1133 Austia . B1
Cosmote? 18.00 3,506 2,943 2,061 Greece 109
ProMonte GSM? 44.10 267 159 108 _ Montenegro 0,7
StavTeleSot 49.00 175 70 28 Stavrapol 2,7

"Subscriptions are calculated after three months’ churn for pre-paid subscriptions unless stated otherwise.

# Subscriptions are calculated after twelve months’ churn for pre~paid.
*Subscriptions are calculated after six months’ churn for pre-paid .
“ Subscriptions are calculated after two months’ churn for pre-paid.

2002 held an ownership share of 17.45%. Connect Austria
operates a nationwide GSM 1800 network, as well as being a
provider of Internet and fixed line solutions. GPRS was
launched in 2002. In 2000, the company was awarded a UMTS
licence through auction.

Cosmote, Greece  Established in 1998, Cosmote is the
largest operator in the Greek mobile market. Telenor became
part owner in 1998, and at the end of 2002 held an ownership
share of 18.00%. Cosmote is listed on the stock exchanges in
Athens and London. Cosmote operates a nationwide GSM 1800
network and an EGSM 900system. GPRS was launched in 2001.
In the same year the company was awarded a UMTS licence.

ProMonte GSM, WMontenegro Established in 1996,
Proiionte is Montenegro’s first mobile operator. Telenor
became part owner in 1896, and at the end of 2002 held an
indirect ownership share of 44.10%, throughits shareholding in
ETL Luxembourg.

StavTeleSot, Russia StavTeleSot was established in 1997,
and is one of two mobile operators in Stavropol County in the
Northern Caucasus. At the end of 2002, Telenor held a 49.00%
ownership share in the company, which was sold to VimpelCom
in January 2003.

THE YEAR 2002

Telenar became the majority shareholder in a further two com-
panies in 2002, as Hungarian Pannon GSM and Ukrainian Kyivstar
GSM were consolidated. The purchase of 74.22% of the shares in
Pannon GSM from KPN, Sonera and TDC was finalised in Febru-
ary, at a price of EUR 1002,0 million. Subsequent to the transac-
tion, Telenor became sole owner of the Hungarian mobile
operator. InJuly 2002, Telenorentered into anagreement for the
acquisition of 16.50% in Kyivstar GSM from Sputnik Funds. The
cost of this transaction was USD 665 million. In September,
Telenor entered into an agreement with Storm LLC, involving the
sale of a 7.7% share in Kyivstar GSM, at a price of USD 31.0mil-
lion, thereby reducing Telenor’s ownership share to 54.21%.




SMS and content messages in Norway; 1998~2002
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in 2002, Telenor Mobile reinforced its commitment in Russia
through its interest in VimpelCom. The company aims to
become a nationwide service provider through VimpelCom-
Region, of which Telenor became part owner in 2002. An
agreement for further mobile service expansion in Russia was
signed in Oslo in November, in the presence of Russian Presi-
dent Vtadimir Putin and Norway'’s Prime Minister Kjell Magne
Bondevik. In December, Telenor sold its 49.00% shareholding
in the Russian operator Extel to VimpelCom.

In September, Telenor Mobile entered into two agreements
with Tele2, giving the companies MVND access to each other’s
GSM and future UMTS networks in Norway and Sweden. This
will represent the first ventures into Mobile Virtual Network
Operations in the two countries. The agreements have a five-
year duration, and pave the way for commercial launch in
2003.

Four companies in Telenor's mobile portfolio hold UMTS
licences, but due to the general situation with regard to the
development of terminals, commercial operations have yet to
be launched. In Norway, Telenor opened the first part of its
network in December 2001. Cosmote in Greece and Connect
Austria tested their networks in 2002, and services could be
taunched in 2003. Telenor Mabil in Norway, Cosmote in Greece
and Sonofon in Denmark launched Multimedia Messaging Ser-
vices (MMS) in 2002. In March, Telenor Mobile, through
djuice™, signed an agreement with the Walt Disney Internet
Group for the distribution of mobile content to the Nordic
market.

VALUE CREATION

Throughout 2002, Telenor strengthened its position as a
mobile operator, primarily through continued growth in the
international markets. At the close of 2002, the total number
of subscribers in Telenor’s portfolio of mobile companies was
26.07 million, compared with 17.12 million the previous year.
The highest subscriber figures were from DTAC in Thailand
(5.46 million) and VimpelCom in Russia (5.16 million), where
Telenor held ownership shares of 40.30% and 28.90% respec-
tively. Telenor's six consolidated mobile companies had a total
of 9.07 million subscribers. Kyivstar has a stated aim of reach~
ing three million subscribers by the end of 2003. Grameen
Phone exceeded 750.000 subscribers in 2002, and was iden-

tified percentage wise as the fastest growing mobile operator
in South East Asia. In the same year, the number of mobile sub-
scribers also exceeded the number of fixed line subscribers in
Bangladesh. In February, Pannon exceeded two million sub-
scribers, and is now capable of covering 96% of the Hungarian
population. Both VimpelCom and and Sonofon passed impor-
tant milestones in 2002, five and one million subscribers
respectively.

In 2002, Telenor Mobile developed its internationat mobile
portfolia through a systematic transfer of skills and by com-
paring best practice between companies. Telenor Mobile also
sought to realise scale advantages, through negotiations of
purchasing contracts and by harmonising technical infra-
structure, products and brands between companies.

Telenor Mobil AS consolidated its position as market leader
within mobile telephony in the Norwegian market, a customer
base which has seen strong growth in recent years, although
the growth has been flattening in the last two years. At the end
of 2002, the number of subscribers was 2,38 million, a market
share of 61%, at the same level as at the end of 2001. In 2002,
approximately 100.000 people were registered as subscribers
to the payment solution SmartPay™, which enables customers
to use their mobile handset as a wallet. Telenor Mobil also
launched the service MMS. A number of new initiatives were
taunched to strengthen the company’s competitive power,
such as new contractual subscriptions, improved customer
services and more efficient interactive channels of contact.
[See also Financial review; pp. 54-59]

Key figures, Telenor Mobile; 2000-2002

NOK in milliohs 2002 2001 2000
Total revenues 20346 12558 9779
EBITDA 7482 4,067 2,720
Operating profit 1,414 2,495 1,594
Associated companies ~_(2,030) 9677  (460)
Investments 12625 7211 32843
Number of full-time equivalent

6,551 4,217 2,481

employees



TELENCR NETWORKS

Telenor Networks handles the group's fixed network aperations
in Norway, Sweden, Russia and Central Europe. In the
company’s international commitments, the focus is on market
niches in the field of business communication. The demand

for capacity and oroadband services is growing in all markets.

INTRODUCTION

Telenor Networks is Telenor’s business area for the develop-
ment, operation and supply of communications solutions
based on the fixed network. The solutions are supplied to the
private, commercial and wholesale markets in Norway, as well
as to the international business and wholesale markets.

Telenor Networks has its customers in both the end user mar-
ket and the wholesale market. In the residential market,
telephony/ISDN is supplied directly to end users, but in the
business market the services are mainly provided via agents
and partners. In the wholesale market, which consists of oper-
ators and various service providers, Telenor Networks supplies
a broad range of services, from access to basic infrastructure
to full value network services, that are re-sold through other
companies. Telenor Networks’ key market is Norway, with lim-
ited activities in selected European markets.

At the end of 2002, Telenor Networks consisted of four units:

o Sales, Markets and Products, which has the profit responsi-
bility for Telenor Networks' product portfolio. The portfolio
consists of Telephony and of the EOR product groups
(expansion, operations and group co-location of technical
equipment), Broadband access, Emergency services,
Capacity, Value adding services, Interconnection and
Operator access.

o Operations and supply, which handles the processes for
operating and supplying communication solutions, in addi-
tion to operational planning and expansion. This unit com-
prises well over half of the employees in the business area.

o Network solutions, which is respansible for the production
platforms, infrastructure, telephony services, advanced net-
work services, maritime radio and purchasing.

o T and Focus, which co-ordinates and manages the develop-
ment of IT systems, as well as supervising a strategic pro-
gramme for improvement measures and cost reductions in
the business area.

Inthe international market, solutions such as direct dialling and
capacity are offered through Telenor Global Services AS.
Telenor Networks has established its own activity in Slovakia
(Telenor Telecom Slovakia s.r.o) and the Czech Republic
(Telenor Networks Czech s.r.0) — in addition to Svalbard, via
Telenor Svalbard AS. As a result of the restructuring of the

group, Telenor Networks assumes responsibility in 2003 for the
Russian fixed network company Combellga and the merged
companies Utfors AB and Telenor Business Solutions AB, which
serve the Swedish wholesale and commercial market.

THE YEAR 2002

At the end of 2001, the Norwegian Post and Telecommunica-
tions Authority instructed Telenor to offer subscriptions
unbundled from traffic. Throughout 2002, work progressed to
develop and arrange IT systems to handle this type of service,
which is offered as an ordinary service from 1 lanuary 2003.

In October, the largest and most advanced operations centre
in Northern Europe was opened at Telenar’s new headquarters
at Fornebu, outside Oslo. In addition to monitoring Telenor’s
own network, the centre also handles the operation of a num-
ber of external customers’ networks. The establishment of the
operations centre is an element in Telenor Networks’ work to
automate and improve the efficiency of operations and supply
processes.

VALUE CREATION

With approximately 1.7 million private subscribers, Telenor is
by far the leading operator of fixed network services on the
Norwegian market. The total number of traffic minutes gener-
ated by Telenor Networks’ subscribers was 15,527 million, a
decline of 14.5% in the residential market and 11.9% in the busi-
ness market. The decline is primarily due to the fact that ADSL
use is measured in terms of capacity rather than registered
traffic minutes. Increased traffic over mobile networks also
contributes to this trend.

At the end of 2002, Telenor had a market share in the end user
market for fixed network telephony of 72%, including Telenor
Internet. This was the same share as at the end of the previous
year. The market share was 71% in the residential market and
76% in the business market. At the end of 2002, Telenor had
approximately 1,210,000 PSTN subscriptions and approxi-
mately 500,000 ISON subscriptions in the residential market.
242.000 PSTN subscriptions and 280.000 ISDN subscriptions
were registered in the business market. This corresponds to an
ISBN penetration of 35%, which is the highest in the world.

As the result of an early commitment to ISDN, and the digitali-
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Telenor is the leading provider of fixed line services to the Norwegian market. Steadily increasing data traffic underpins the
importance of fixed line services. Increasing network capacity and access to broadband is providing opportunities for new
services, especially in the transmissian of content services to PC and TV.

sation of the telecommunications network, Telenor today oper-
ates a fixed network of high quality and low error rate. This has
enabled us to offer high-quality ADSL access. At the end of
2002, approximately 109,000 ADSL subscriptions were regis-
tered, and 1.3 million accesses were prepared for ADSL. This
resulted in 58% coverage nationwide and more than 90% in the
largest towns. The corresponding figure for ISDN is 99%.

There has also been a sharp increase in the number of operator
accesses, from 12,000 at the end of 2001 to 49,000 at the end
of 2002. Approximately 70% of these accesses are used for
ADSL. The number of leased lines was approximately 78,000. To
strengthen customer awareness, all products aimed at opera-
tors and service providers have been brought together under

the brand name Jara. Enquiries and orders are to an increasing
extent made electronically through Jara Netbusiness.
[See also Financial review pp. 59-61]

Key figures, Telenor Networks; 2000-2002

NOK in millions 2002 2001 2000
Total revenues 16,488 16,568 16,685
EBITDA 5717 5666 5672
Operating profit L 2526 2175 3,047
Investments 1853 __ 3,718 3603
Number of full-time equivalent

employees 3820 3,964 4,004




TELENGR PLUS

In 2002, Telenor Plus was the business area responsible for the
development, sales and distribution of communications and

content services in the Noraic residential market.

INTRODUCTION
Telenor Plus became a leading player within TV distribution in
Norway and the Nordic market.

At the end of 2002, Telenor Plus consisted of four divisions:

= Broadcast, providing TV services to Nordic househaolds and
distribution services to broadcasters and other contentand
service providers.

» Content & Interactive, responsible for developing and pro-
viding interactive services, including the management of
content and rights, as well as administrating Telenor Plus’
shareholding inNorwegian media companies.

o Internet, providing Internet access and services to the Nor-
wegian and Swedish residential markets.

o Customer Services, serving Telenor's fixed network tele-
phony and Internet customers.

THE YEAR 2002

In July 2001, Telenor signed an agreement with Canal+ for the
purchase of the remaining 50.0% of Canal Digital AS. The pur-
chase was finalised in June 2002, at a price of NOK 2.1 billion.
An agreement for the exclusive satellite broadcasting of the
Canal+ group’s TV channels in the Nordic region was also
signed. In connection with the consolidation of Canal Digital,
certain structural changes were made, including the merger of
activities in Denmark, Norway and Sweden.

In October Telenor Plus signed an agreement for the sale of its
customer base in Telenordia Privat AB to the Swedish compa-
ny Glocalnet AB, in exchange for a 37.20% shareholding in the
company, making Glocalnet AB the third largest telephony
and Internet service provider in the Swedish market. The
transaction is conditional upon the approval of the Swedish
authorities.

VALUE CREATION

In 2002, Telenor reinforced its position as the largest provider
of TV services to the Nordic residential market, both as
regards the number of paying subscribers and the extent of
coverage. At the same time, the company is the Nordic
region’s largest provider of transmission services to broad-
casters. At the end of 2002, Telenor was responsible for the
distribution, either directly or indirectly, of TV based services
to three million Nordic households.

Telenor Plus, together with four Nordic TV companies, held the
TV broadcasting rights in the Nordic region for the 2002 Foot-
ball World Cup. With this move, Telenor drew attention to the
market for Pay TV, and marketed Canal Digital as a distributor
of such services. In February, Telenor Plus purchased the Pay
TVrights to Norwegian football's top league, and Canal Digital
obtained the rights for live coverage of the Swedish ice hockey
Elite Series.

In 2002, Telenor Plus was also responsible for the broadcast-
ing of the Norwegian Big Brother programmes, both via iCanal
and on TV. The service functioned primarily as a test of view-
ers’ interest in Internet-based payment solutions, and
approximately 50,000 transactions were made through
Telenor Mobil’s MobilHandel™. Zonavi entered into a wide-
ranging agreement with the Norwegian National Lottery on
the development of interactive money games on TV, and
assisted the Norwegian bank OnB with the launch of the first
TV-based interactive bank services in Norway.
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Telenor is the leading provider of TV services in the Nordic market. increased bandwidth is driving an increasing service port-

folio, especially in entertainment and other content services, like Interactive TV.

In 2002, Telenor was the largest supplier of Internet access
via ISDN/PSTN, ADSL and cable in the Norwegian and
Swedish residential markets. High demand, and insufficiently
developed supply lines caused some dissatisfaction with cus-
tomer services. Areas where improvement is needed have
now been identified, and these will be given special follow-up
in 2003.

The childproof Internet subscription Kidsurf, and the free-of-
charge service SurfeFilter, which prevents unintentional
dialling of international phone numbers from telephones and
PCs, were both launched in 2002. The trend towards conver-
gence between broadband Internet and other media has been
slower than previously assumed, and this activity was there-
fore scaled down in 2002. However, there is continued activi-

ty in this field, particularly through Canal Digital and Telenor's
broadband portal, iCanal.
[See also Financial review pp. 61-621

Key figures, Telenor Plus; 2000—-2002

NOK in millions 2002 2001 2000
Total revenues 4,862 3,386 2.875
EBITDA 139 a8 Bl
Operatingprofit _ . (883)y (841 135
Associated companies (270) (547y 20
Investments 2925 1741 2113
Number of full-time equivalent

employees 1,332 1,344 1,148



TELENDOR BUSINESS SCLUTICNS

In 2002, Telenor Business Solutions was the business area for
communication ana IT solutions to the Norwegian, Nordic ana
Furopean business markets. Telenor strengthened its position
in the Swedish business market, primarily through the

acquisition of Utfors AB.

INTRODUCTION

Telenor Business Solutions attained the position of Norway’s
teading supplier of ICT solutions to the business market. The
principal market was the Nardic region, with the main focus on
medium-sized and large businesses. Telenor Business Solu-
tions developed and supplied a broad range of services within
telecoms and data communication, with the emphasis on
combining the application and communication sides, IT and IP.

As of 31 December 2002 Telenor Business Solutions consist-

ed of five divisions:

o Communications, which supplies access, business networks
and communication services, based on services within
advanced networks, IP-based communication (including
Virtual Private Networks, VPN), data communication and
telephony services to the Norwegian business market,
including customer contact and support services.

> Managed services, which provides operation of local net-
works, applications, service integration, e-business solu-
tions and consultancy work.

> Business Solutions Sweden, which provides telephony, in
addition to advanced networks, IP-based communication,
data communication and application services in the Swedish
business market.

o Nextra International, which provides |P-based services in
selected countries in Europe (Great Britain, the Czech
Republic, Slovakia, Hungary, Austria and lItaly) under the
trademark Nextra.

» Comincom/Combellga, which provides telecommunication
services to the Russian market, primarily in the Moscow and
St Petersburg regions.

On1January 2003, as a result of the restructuring of Telenor,
the responsibility for the activities in Communications,
Managed services, Business Solutions Sweden and Comin-
com/Combellga was transferred to the business area Telenor
Networks, and Nextra International was transferred to Other
activities. The activities in all the units will be continued.

In the second half of 2002, Telenor Business Solutions sepa-
rated Software Services from Communications, and restruc-
tured the Managed Services division.

THE YEAR 2002

As of 1 January 2002, Telenor Business Solutions gathered all
its activities in Sweden in Telenor Business Solutions AB. The
position in the Swedish market was further strengthened by
acquisitions in 2002: In November Telenor Business Solutions
signed an agreement to become the principal shareholder in
the Swedish data communication company Utfors AB, at a
total cost of SEK 264 million, for 90% ownership plus 2% in
convertible bonds. Parallel to this, Telenor Business Solutions
AB was sold to Utfors AB for a further 4.1% ownership in the
form of convertible bonds. The new company, Telenor Busi-
ness Solutions AB, has become a primary challenger in the
market for business communication in Sweden.

In Nextra International, the operations in the Czech Republic
and Slovakia merged. The activities in the UK changed name
from Nextra to Telenor Business Solutions. On 30 December
2002 an agreement was signed for the sale of the Hungarian
Nextra to the management of that company. The transaction
was executed in January 2003. The strongest growth in 2002
came in Russia, where Comincom/Combellga strengthened
its position in existing markets and prepared for regional
expansion.

VALUE CREATION

In April, Telenor Business Solutions entered into agreements
with Orkla ASA and Carlsberg Breweries A/S for the supply of
fixed and maobile telephony services to the group’s companies
in Scandinavia, worth approximately NOK 300 million. In July,
two major agreements were signed in Norway: with Nordea
Bank Norge ASA for the supply of telephony and customer
contact services to the tune of NOK 60 million, with the Public
Roads Administration (Norway) for the supply of networks for
data communication and operation of T services worth NOK
134 million.

In Sweden, an agreement was signed for a total solution for
fixed telephony and mobile services covering 28 of Skdnes’ 33
municipalities, worth SEK 150 million. In December, a three-
year agreement was signed via Utfors, with the possibility for
a two-year extension, with the Labour Inspection Authority in
Sweden for a data communication solutiocn covering approxi-
mately 600 IP portals. The agreement has a turnover of
approximately SEK 120 million during its maturity.




Telenor develops advanced communications sotutions for the business market. Telenor specialises in solutions allowing large

companies to connect multiple components in seamiess networks. The Telenor Arena model provides maximum flexibility and

mobility by utilising mobile network solutions.

In line with international developments, the year 2002 was
characterised by low investment activity and lengthy deci-
sion-making processes. Within telecommunication products
such as ADSL, data communication and IP VPN, the markets
were characterised by a good steady demand. This also had an
effect on the results of Telenor Business Solutions, where
managed services and outsourcing activities suffered consid-
erable losses, while the Communications division experienced
a relatively positive and stable market.

In 2002, Telenor Business Solutions launched the IT platform
eRAF for the Telenor centre at Fornebu, a solution which has
since also been adopted in other parts of the organisation. The
- solution, called Telenor Arena, will be marketed in 2003 as a
complete modutar business solution. The product ‘Wireless
Zone', which is a secure Wireless Local Area Network (WLAN)
was introduced to the business market. This solution supplies
employees, customers and partners wireless access to Inter-

net and e-mail services through a secure, encoded logon
function.

The results from Telenor Business Solutions were considerably

better in 2002 than in 2001.
[See also Financial review pp. 63-64]

Key figures, Telenor Business Solutions; 2000-2002

NOK in millicns 2002 2001 2000
Total revenues 6,157 5,940 4316
EBITDA o o 26 (828)  (600)
Operatingprofit (1.807) (2,968) (1,173)
Associated companies e (69
Investments 1104 1572 4,664
Number of full-time equivalent o T
employees 3,886 4,225 3,992




OTHER ACTIVITIES

Telenor has substantial activities ocutside the four business
areas, also including various staff ana support functions: EDB
Business Partner, Telenor Satellite Networks, Telenor Satellite
Services, Teleservice, Telenor R&D, Telenor Key Partner, Telenor

Fiendom ana Telenor Venture.

EDB BUSINESS PARTNER ASA

EDB Business Partner ASA is ane of the Nordic region’s leading
{T groups, with a turnover in 2002 of NOK 4.3 billion and close to
2800employees. EDB Business Partner is a supplier of software
solutions and offers consultancy and management services
with special expertise in telecoms, banking and finance. The
group is a major player in the Norwegian market, and has
activities in the US, Sweden, the UK, Benelux, Switzerland,
France, Spain, Poland and Hungary. At the close of 2002, Tele-
nor had a 51.8% ownership share in EDB Business Partner ASA.

TELENOR SATELLITE NETWORKS

Telenor Satellite Networks is fully owned by Telenor. The com-
pany supplies satellite-based communications solutions and
VSAT technology to the business markets and national and
international organisations in Europe, the Middle East and
Africa. The company’s complete communications solutions
encompass network design, implementation, management
and service. The services are supplied via subsidiaries in Nor-
way, the Netherlands, Poland, Slovakia and the Czech Republic.

TELENOR SATELLITE SERVICES

Telenor Satellite Services is fully owned by Telenor. The com-
pany supplies satellite-based speech and data services for
use on land, in the maritime industry and in aviation. Subse-
quent to the acquisition of Telenor Satellite Services Inc. (for-
merly COMSAT Mobile communications) in January 2002 and
Marlink (formerly Sait Communications) in March 2001,
Telenor Satellite Services has become one of the world’s lead-
ing suppliers of global, mobile communications solutions via
satellite. The services are marketed through a broad interna-
tional chain of distributors as well as from own offices around
the world.

TELESERVICE AS

Teleservice AS is fully owned by Telenor. The company is
responsible for Directory Enquiries 1881 (Opplysningen 1881),
International Directory Enquiries 1882, MeetAt 119 (telephone
and data conferences) and other Contact Centre services. The
company aims to make information and communication serv-
ices easily accessible to users. In February 2002, the market
for directory enquiries was opened to competition in Norway,
but Directory Inquiries 1881 is still the dominant player in the
Norwegian market with 75% of the traffic.

TELENOR FORSKNING OG UTVIKLING (R&D)

Telenor Forskning og Utvikling is Norway’s largest research
enviranment in the field of ICT technology. Activities comprise
technology, services and markets. In 2002, R&D participated
in 33 international projects, most of them under the direction
of the EU or EURESCOM, Telenor’s R&D commitments are
focused around two main areas: future broadband networks
and future mobile systems.

TELENOR VENTURE AS

Telenor Venture AS is seeking to create value through active
ownership in companies in the areas of telecommunications
and 1T. A new company, Telenor Venture |l ASA, was estab-
lished in September 2000 with the purpose of continuing and
expanding the investments activities, and in December 2002,
Telenor Venture Il was established, to continue activities for-
merly organised under Telenor Innovasjon AS and other parts
of the Telenor group. Telenor's ownership share in Telenor
Venture is 63.7%, in Telenor Venture Il ASA the ownership
share is 50.1% and in Telenor Venture |l it is 100%. The Telenor
Venture companies are managed and administered by
TeleVenture Management AS in which Telenor has a ownership
share of 23.9%.

TELENOR KEY PARTNER AS

Telenor Key Partner AS is fully owned by Telenor. The compa-
ny supplies technology-based administrative services within
economy, personnel and communication to the group’s busi-
ness areas and subsidiaries. Telenor Key Partner shall be a
driving force in achieving standardisation and quality
improvements in the administrative running of the whole
group. All services shall be based on viable business principles
and have market-oriented prices.

TELENOR EIENDOM HOLDING AS (PROPERTY
MANAGEMENT)

Telenor Eiendom Holding AS is fully owned by Telenor and was
set up as a private limited company in 2002, as a continuation
of Telenor Communication AS. At the close of 2002, Telenor
Eiendom Holding AS managed close to 1.1 million sg. meters of
owned and leased floor space spread out over approximately
4500 buildings. The company’s main task is to ensure that the
Telenor group has at its disposal sufficient premises to allow
its main activities to be performed in a cost effective manner.
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The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consoli-
dated financial stetements, which hove been prepared in accordance
with Norwegian GAAP, which differ in certain respecis from US GAAP. For
o reconciliotion of the material differences batween Norwegian and US
GAAP, see note 31 io the consolidated financial statements.

4

Telenor has implemented changes in the business ares struciure effec-
tive from 1 January 2303, as described in rote 3 to the consolidated
financial statements. The discussion gelow reflects the business area
struciure in 2002.The discussion is inainly on 2302 compared to 2031,
For a fuli discussion on 2001 compared to 2000 you shaou'd read the
annuyalregort for 200! or Telenor's annuat report on Form 20-F.

Revenuss
Externat revenues excluding gains on dispasal of fixed asszis and cpar-
ations increased by 19.9% in 2002 compared to 2001 In 2002, 32% of
external revenues derived from ifobile, cempared 10 27% in 2057, The
formerly associated companies, DiCL.Com, waich was consclizated
from 1 Septemoer 2001, Pannon GSM, which was consolidated from 4
Fevruary 2002, and Kyivstar, which was consolidated {rom 1 Septem-
ber 2002, generated 87% of the increase in Mobiie’s externai revenuss.
Teienor’s mobile operations both in Norway anc outside Nornway
showed a hzalthy growth. Networks' external revenues decreased
compared tc 2001, due to reduced traffic as a result of transiticn to
ADSL, migraticn of fixead traffic to mobile traffic and internal pre-selec-
tion traflic, where externel revenues are reported in Plus and Business
Solutions. The increase in Plus' external revenues was mainty dus to
the conso:idation of Canal Digital from 30 Jun= 2002, increased sale of
ADSL and pre-selection traffic (interneat). The decrease in Business
Scwtions' external revenues releted primarily to the weak marke? for
operating services and saftware. External revenues in EDB Business
Partner showed a marginal increase cue to the efiect of acguired Lusi-
nesses inits Operating area, while tha underying devalcpmant was
negative due to weak market conditions. The increase in external rev-
enues for other business units was due to the acquisition of businesses
in Sateliite Services and increased sales in Satellite Networls, ofiset in
part by decreased revenuas from the former subsidiary ltwarks.

The tadle below shows conssiicated revenues oroken cown 8y cpera-
tiens in and outside Norway. Telenor's praportional share of revenues
irom tha associated companies and joint ventures are not included in
the consolidated revenues. Many of the international operations are
carried out in associated companies and joint ventures, especially
mobile operations. The revenues in ihe iable for consolidated compa~
nies are based on company location and do not include gains on dis-
posel of fixad assets and oparations.
INCXInmillions} 200z 2201 2000
Consclidated revenues

Norway 33,085 34,032 33,197
Qutsidza Norway 15,583 6,572 3,333
Tetal revenues excluding gains 48,858 43,624 35,520

Gains on disposal of fixec assets and operations in 2052 were cue
primarity to the sale of properties and some operations in Corporate
functions and Group activities. Gains on disposal of fixed assets and
operations in 2001 were primarily related to the sate of Telenor Media
with a gain of NOK 5,828 million, the sale of the subsidiary Norcom
Network Communication Inc. with & gain of NCK 259 million and sale of
aroperiias.

Az

f see the notes to the consolidated fingnciai statements for
furiher specification of tha operating exganses.

Cost of materials and traffic charges (see nate 4] Tralfic charges —

netwerik capacity consist mainly of traffic charges for groviding fixeg
and mooile services, nrimariy in the Mobile, Networis and Business
Sowtions cusiness areas. The increase in natwork capacity costs in
2002 cormpared tc 220% was due nrimarily to consclidation of fermerly
associated comoanies in Mobile and Business Seluticns in 2207 and
€02, Treiiic charges — satellite capacity are related 10 sales of Satel-
‘te V.chiis services, that are part of Satellite Services, and satellite
Croadcasting servicas, that are part of Pius. Tne increase in satellite
capacity cesis was cue io the acguisition of COVSAT Medile Communi-
cations (included in Teienor Satellite Servicas inc.) in 2CC2. Cost ol
materiels etc. were incurred (0 ali businass areas. n particuler, Mobie
end Plus in the aggregate generated approximetaly two-thirgs of the
total cost of materials in 20602, due primarily (o sawes of customer
eguipment in Molile end TV-program fees in Plus. The increas2 in cost
ci materiai etc. was due primarily 20 Pannon GSIV. and Canatl Bigitel,
wnicn was consolidated during 2022, end imore than cffsat the
decrease due to the sale of the former subsiciary Teienor Viedia in
2307 and the bankrupicy of itworks in 2032, Adjustad Tor acguisition
and disposal of companies, all business areas showad a dacrease in
cost of materiais etc. in 2822, due grimarily io & cecrease insales of
eguinment.

t
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Cwn work capitelized (seencte 3)  Own work capitalized is
presented as a seneraie captisn and is not natied against the v
exnanses in tha nrofit and loss statement. The various Group
compenies consolidaied in Telenor perform work on thelr own leng-
livad assets, which is capitalizad, i¥ aopropriate. The Group compenies
exnense the reiated costs in the line items cost of materials, salaries
anad perscanai cesis, or other gperating expanses gs appropriate. The
Costs that are caniialized are tnen reversad as change in owin work
capitalized. Several companies in the Group perform workon and
deliver leng-lived asseis to other Group comaanies. These long-iived
assets are capitatized oy the purchasing comzany. Farthe Grecuses a
who'a this is regardad as a change in own work capitatized and the
expenses reccrced in the selling companies are reversad as a change
in cwn work capitalized for tha Group. The decrease in 2002 compared
o 2001 was due to the lower ievel of invesimants.
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Selzries and perscnnel costs (seencte Band 7)  The decreasein
nersennsl cosis in 2002 com3ared to 2037 was cue
arimariy to the disncsal of certain businasses, espaciglly Telencr
MVadia, 'tworks and companies in Nexira International. This was offset
3y the consclidation cf {ermerly associated compaanies as wellas the
acguisition of COMSAT. Adiusted for acquisition end disposal of compza-
nies, total sataries and personnel costs were in tne with 2330, There

was a decrease in activities, especially in EDB Business Partnar, Busi-

nass Solutions and Teweservice Cus to weak mariet concitions. This
dacrease was partly ofiset by wage infiation. (n 2002, Telencr staried
‘m3izmenting a program to improve operationat efficiency, Deita 4.
Juring 2002, narticuiarny at the end of the year, certain ampicyess
were offered voluntary termination. Many of thase employees were
still employed as of 31 Secember 2002. As a resuit, aithough this
dacraase in the number of employees nad some effect on salaries and
personnal cosis in 2002, the effect is expected to be more significant
during 2003, Expenses for workiorce recduciion are recorded as & pert
of “Cther gparating expensaes” and are not included in selaries and per-
sonnel costs.




The number of full-time equivalent employees at 31 December 2002
increased by approximately 1,100 compared to December 31, 2001, due
to consolidation of companies. The average number of full-time equiv-
alent employees was higher in 2002 than for 2001. The consolidation
of Pannon GSM as of 4 February 2002, Canal Digital as of 30June
2002 and Kyivstar as of 1 September 2002 increased the total number
of the full-time equivalent employees by approximately 2,700.

Pension costs, including social security tax, increased in 2002 com-
pared to 2001, primarily as a result of a one time NOK 82 million effect
related to the accounting of previousty granied pension benefits in
Teleservice and Networks, an increase in salaries that was higher than
estimated, increased interest cost and increased amortization of actu-
arial losses. Actuarial losses have increased in the course of the last
three years mainly due to the reduction in the discount rate imple-
mented as of 31 Decembper 1999, as well as lower actual return on plan
assets than estimated resulting from the reduction in share prices in
the course of the last three years. In addition, salary increases and
pensions adjustments, which were higher than originally estimated,
contributed to an increase in actuarial losses. Pension costs including
social security tax may continue to increase in the future due to high
actuarial losses which are not reflected in the balance sheet or in the
profit and loss statement. You should read note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements for additional information about pension costs.

Other cperating expenses (see notss 8 — 17)  Otner operating
expenses increased by approximately NOK 0.8 billion, or 6.4%, in 2002
compared to 2001. Adjusted for the increased costs for workforce
reductions, loss contracts and exit from activities of approximatety
NOK 0.4 villion and the net increase of approximately NOK 1.4 billion
related to companies acquired and disposed of (excluding costs for
workforce reductions, loss contracts and exit from activities), operating
expenses decreased oy approximately NOK 1 billion. In 2002, Telenor
began implementing a program to improve operational efficiency,
Delta 4, which contributed to reducing other operating expenses, in
particular consultancy fees, external personnel and travel costs. In
2002, Tetenor incurred expenses related to workforce reductions, loss
contracts and exit from activities of NOK 982 million, an increase of
NOK 357 million compared to 2001. Of the amount expensed in 2002,
approximately NOX 0.7 villion was related to workforce reduction, and
NOK 0.2 billion was related to loss contracts, especially property leas-
as. You should read note 11 to the consclidated financial statements for
additional information about costs for warkforce reductions, loss con-
tracts and exit from activities.

Reduced costs for cost of premises, vehicles and office equipment in
2002 compared to 2001 was due to the replacement of leased proper-
ties with owned properties. especially Telenor’s new headguarters at
Forneou outsice of Oslo, and lower activity in some areas. This was part-
ly offset oy the effect of consolidating additional companies in Mobile.

Increased operation and mainienance expenses in 2002 compared to
2001 was related to new companies in Mobile and new operations in
ECB Business Partner.

Telenor's total marketing, sales commissions and advertising expenses
increased by NOK 0.6 billion in 2002 compared toc 2001 due to the net
effect of companies acquired and disposed of, especially Pannon GSM,
DiGi.Com, Kyivstar and Canal Digital. Adjusted for these companies,
there was a reduction in these expenses mainly in Mobile in Norway
due to lower sales of new subscriptions and lower level of sales com-
mission per subscription, as well as lower marketing activity and

reduced activity in Nextra International in Business Solutions. Market-
ing, sales commissions and advertising related to ADSL increased.
Approximately NOK 0.2 billion of the increase in concession fees in
2002 compared to 2001 related to DiGi.Com and Pannon GSM.

Loss ondispesal of fixed assels end gperaticns Losses on disposal
of fixed assets and operations was for 2001 primarily related to discon-
tinuance of equipment and sale of properties, and in 2002 Telenor also
incurred losses in connection with the sale of companies in Business
Solutions and the bankruptcy of the former subsidiary ltworks AS.

Depreciation, amortizetion and write-downs

{NOK in miliions) 2002 200° goc
Depreciation of tangible assets 8.272 6,266 5,201
Amortization of goodwill 1,002 668 496
Amortization of other intangible assets 962 317 124
Total depreciation and amortization 10,238 7,25 5,821
Write-downs of tangible and

other intangible assets 921 1.556 113
Write-downs of goodwill 2,632 2,266 -
Total write-downs 3,553 3,822 113
Tote! depreciation, amcrtizaticn and

write-downs 13,788 14,073 5,934

Specification of amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets

(NOK in millicns) 2002 2001 2230

DiGi.Com 304 115 -
Pannon GSM 765 - -
Kyivstar 87 - -
Other Mobite 58 38 72
Total Maodile 1,214 153 72
Software licenses 134 155 72
Other Business Solutions 186 274 174
Total Business Sclutions 20 429 248
Canal Digitat 108 - -
Other Plus 91 70 37
Total Ptus 129 70 37
EDB Business Partner 169 186 152
Other 62 137 113
Total L2684 285 &0
Specification of write-downs

{NOX in millions) 2002 2601 2083
Mobile 2,289 22 34
Networks 18 570 14
Plus 135 494 12
Business Sotutions 734 1,110 5
EDB Business Partner 364 1,262 1
Other 13 364 47
Total 3,553 3.822 173

Depreciation of tangible assets increased by approximately NOK 2 biltion
in 2002 compared to 2001. Mobiie contributed with approximately NOK
1.2 billion of the increase, due primarily to the consolidation of formerly
associated companies. Canal Digital contributed with NOK 147 million.
Shortened depreciation periods from 1 April 2021 for scme fixed assets in
the Norwegian fixed and mobile networks alsa increased depreciation by
approximataly NOX 90 million in 2002 for assets acquired prior to 1 April
2001. Bepreciation also increased in Business Solutions by NOK 177 mit-
lion, in Networks by NOK 255 million, and in Corporate functions and
Group activities by NOK 215 million, where the increase was due to
Telenor’s new headquarters at Fornebu and new {T-solutions.



Telenor made significent write-downs in 2001 ang 2802, mainiy due o
2 decline in market vaiues and depressed market conditions in some of
the operaticns. In 2001 and 2002, Telency eveluaied the carrying
vatues of the assets, and made the resulting write-downs dased on the
market conditions and asset-spacific circumstances in sach paricd. i,
among other things, mar«et values continuve to decline and mearket
conditions continu2 to deteriorate, Telenor may have to continue to
perform imoairment tests, as well as the annual impairment test of
gooowill according to US GAAP. You shouid read “Other Issues —
Critical accountiing policies under Norwegien GAAP and estimates” fer
additional information on Telenor’s impairment tests.

Of the total write-downs in 2002, NCK 2,138 millicn was goodwiil relat-
ed to DiGi.Com as a result of continued tow puslicly guoted share
prices. Tha write-down was based on tha publicly quoied share pricz at
31 Decemoer 2002, adjusted to reflect e control nremium.

'n conrnection with the integration of the oparating service tusiness in

Business Solutions with the internal iT ogerating environment, Teienor
dacided tc reduce the number of operating platforms and fecus the
activity of the aperations. Telengr also considared the sales poieniial
for CA-scitware and the value of service coniracts, dlatforims end
equizment. Furthermore Telenor evaluaied goodwill related to tne
remaining Nextra Internztionat companies. Based on these evalua-
tions, Teienor wrote down {ixed assets gocdwill and otner intangidle
assets in Business Solutions by a total of NOK 734 mitlion in 2002.

In 2302, goodwill in EBB Businass Pariner related tc the Banking &
Financing area and Consutiing aree was written down by NCK 353
million based on discounted cash flows.

The write-downs in Puus in 2002 primarity rewaied to the lower demend
intha SMATV meriet inCenmerk and Sweden, delayed commercialisa-
tion of naw oroedcasting standards, as weli as reduced expeciations
forthe use of interactive TV as a payment facility.

Cperating profis (loss)
Gperating less in 2002 was NOK 320 m'ilion, compared to an eperating
profit of NOC 3,177 mililon in 20301, The operating loss in 2032 was cue
primarily to write-downs of NOK 3,553 million, compared to NOK 3,822
million in 200, anc expenses fcr warkicrce reductions, loss contracts,
exit from activities ang previously grented pension beneiits in Teleser-
ice, totalling NOK 1,048 millicn, compared 1o NOK 825 miition in 2021,
in 2001, Telenor also recorded nei geins on disposal of lixed asszis ang
sparations totawing NOK 2,373 million, of whnich NCK 5,C02 million wes
recorded in Corparate funciians and Grouo activities as a resuit of the
saie of Tewenor Mediz, anc NCK 258 miilion was recorded in Mobile as a
resuit of to the sale cf Narcom Networks, compared te NOK 11 miltion in
2802. The ioliowing tabie shows the brealkdown of expenses for woric-
force reductions, loss contracts and exit from activities by tusiness
area. This tabie and the table showing the dreakdown of write-downs
under “Depreciation, amertization end write-downs” exniain in part the
cevelooment in operating profit in each tusiness area.

INCK in mitlicns} 2030 2C¢T 2000
Zxzenses {or workliaree reducticns, ©ss

contracts and exit fram ectivities

Mouiie 120 - -
Netwarks 161 - -
Plus 92 49 (40)
Businass Salutions 88 229 -
EDB Business Partner i1 170 -
Other " 476 177 30
Tctzl 1,248 23 {10}

"This tine item corresponcs to the same linz item in “other e

vating expensas”,

@
except for 2002, where NOK 65 million related to previous'y granted pension

benelits in Telasarvica is included in “salarias and parsonnal cosis™

The foilowing discussion of Telenar's ggerating profit exciudes ne
effect of write~-downs and expenses {or workiorce reduciions, (oss con-
fracts and exit {rom activities, as well as nat gains on dispasal of fixed
assets and operations. Excweaing these eifects, aciusted ogerating
profit increasad by NOK 2,319 million, or 3%, tc NOK 4,27C millian in
2002. A substantial portion of this increase resuiled from the Mo3ile
usiness aree, cue °c & nealthy growin and a pesitive effect of the con-
solidation of formerly associated companies during 203 and 2C02.
Adiusted gozrating prelitin the Networks ousiness area decreased mar-
ginally compared to 2001 due to higher depreciaticn which o

effects of otner cost recucticns. Adivsied operating profiting t
vusiness area decreasec mainly due to expenses related to the seles of
ADSL anc the opareting loss dus to the consslidation of Canal Jigital
(approximately NOK 183 midion, inciuding amortization of nat excess
valuas). Adjusted oparating prefit in Business Szluiicns increasad dus
arimarily to the seie or terminetion of ioss-gensrating comoenies in
nextra iniernaticnaw. £53 Business Pariner's adiusted oparating provit
decreased due to weaker marker conditicns and ediusted cperating
profit from Other Business Units increased mainwy cue to thz eflect of
tusinasses acquired or dispaszd of. In 200!, Telersr Media was scid and
the oparating araiit in Telenor Media for the period on the date of ine
disposei of the company wes NCK 252 million.

Associated companies

-

{NCK inmillicns) 2002 233t 23l
Tzlenor's share of: "

Net income (loss} 341 (3i8) (1,0853)
Amartization af Telenar's net excess valuas (862) (3,427) (773)
Write-downs of Telenor's excess values (1.985) (11.597) -
Gain an disposa! cf cwnership interesis 36 21579 1170
Netresult from assodieled comnenias 12453) 8,237 1ze2)

* Tha figures are aartly basad on the managament's estimaies in connection
with the preparation of Telenor's consolidated financiat siatements. Telanor's
consa.dated prafit end loss statement contains only tha tinz item"nat result
from associated companies”. Telenor's share of the other itams shown in the
table gre notincluded in tha consolidated financial statemants, but this
information is set {orth in note 16 to tha consolidated financial statements.
Nat excess valuas are tha difference between Telenor's acqu'sition cost and
Telenor's share of eguity &t the dime of ihe acquisition of the associated com-

panies.

Tha results from associated compeanies were influencad gy the ecouisi-
tions, ¢isposals and consotidation of subsidiaries in 2030, 233! and
2022 and by write-cowns in 2001 end 2002, Bravida bacame an asso-
ciated company as of I November 2033. 3iGi.Com was consclidated as
a subsidiary as of | Septemuoer 2001, Teienordia was consolidated es @




subsidiary as of 1 October 2001, Pannon was consolidated as a sub-
sidiary as of 4 February 2002, Canal Digital was consolidated as a sub-
sidiary as of 30 June 2002 and Kyivstar was consolidated as subsidiary
as of 1 September 2002. VIAG Interkom and Esat Digifone were sold at
the beginning of 2001. Extel was sold at the end of 2002 and StavTele-
Sot at the beginning of 2003 to VimpelCom-Region.

Net income in 2002 also reflects a write-down of Oni\Way of NOK 316
million recorded at the end of 2002. The net effect of companies that
weria consolidated during 2001 and 2002 was an increase in net
income from associated companies in 2002 compared to 2001. Apart
from the effect of associated companies acquired, sold or consolidated
as subsidiaries, there was underlying growth in the results of most of
the associated mobile companies, especially Vimpelcom, Cosmote and
Connect Austria.

Decreased amortization of net excess values in 2002 compared to
2001 was due to companies which were consolidated during 2001 and
2002, as well as to the effect of write-downs in 2001. Write-downs of
net excess values in 2002 were mainly related to Sonofon, with NOK
1,000 million, and DTAC/UCOM, with NOK 881 million. Buring 2002, the
market values of mobile companies continued to decline and the write-
downs, both in 2002 and 2001, were made on the basis of discounted
cash flows and comparison to the value of similar companies, in the
case of Sonofon, and quoted share prices in the case of DTAC/UCOM.
You should read " - Dther ltems — Criticat accounting policies under
Norwegian GAAP and estimates” for additional information about the
write-downs. Gains on disposal in 2002 related to the sale of Extel.

Write-downs in 2001 related primarily to Sonofon and Telenordia as of
30 June (NOX 7,500 million and NOK 685 mitlion, respectively) and
DOTAC/UCOM as of 31 December (NOK 3,400 million).

Telenor sold the ownership stakes in VIAG Interkom and Esat Digifone in
2C01, with a combined gain before taxes of NOK 21.4 billion in 2001. The
sale of Ephorma AS and European Medical Sotutions Group AS by EDB
Business Partner contributed a combined gain of NOK 141 million in 2001

Financisl income and expenses (see note 12)

The reduction in total financial income in 2002 compared to 2001 was
mainly related to reduced interest income on investmenis in interest-
oearing financial assets. in 2001, a portion of the proceeds from the large
disposals was held in liquid assets in anticipation of payment of invest-
ments and repayments of liabilities. The satellite organizations were
incorporated in 2000 and 2001, and distributed no dividends in 2002.

Theincrease in total financial expenses in 2002 compared to 2001 was
due to increased interest bearing liabilities and higher average interest
rates. At the beginning of 2002, Telenor’s interest bearing liabilities
increased significantly due primarily to the acquisition of Pannon GSM.
At the end of 2002, interest bearing liabilities increased by NOK 2.4
villion due to a tax claim regarding the sale of Sonofon Holding A/S
and by NOK 0.5 villion due to a judicial proceeding in Greece. Telenor
expensed interest of approximately NOK 160 miltion on these claims in
2002. A guarantee for the tax claim of NOK 2.4 billion has been provid-
ed and, as a result of the decision to expense the tax claim at the end
of 2002, Telenor expect to continue to expense a 12% interest in
arrears on the tax claim for as long as the guarantee remains out-
standing. Increased average interest rates compared to 2001 were due
to financing activities by some subsidiaries, which have their own
external financing, while the average interest rates for financing
through the parent company were reduced slightly. Capitalized interest

decreased in 2002 compared to 2001 due to the lower level of invest-
ments in Telenor’s fixed network in Norway and the completion of the
new headquarters at Fornebu outside of Oslo.

Net foreign currency losses in 2002 were primarily related to currency
hedging of the purchase price for the shares in Pannon GSi in Euro,
accounts receivabte in foreign currency and interest bearing liabilities
in consolidated entities abroad. Hedge accounting is not permitted for
currency hedging of forecasted equity investments, as Pannon GSM.
The value of the Euro relative to the Norwegian Kroner decreased
between the execution of the hedging transaction and its settlement
and a foreign currency loss was accordingly recorded in connection
with the hedging transaction. The reported investment amount for
Pannon GSM in Norwegian Kroner was reduced corresponadingly.

The loss and write-down of financial assets related mainly to the write-
down of the shares in Inmarsat, New Skies, Sponsor Sevvice ASA and
Venture companies in addition to NOX 78 million in capital contribution
to Telenor Pension fund written down to the book value of the equity in
the Fund. The Inmarsat shares are valued in U.S. Dollars and the write
down of NOK 422 million was a result of the weakening of the U.S. Dol-
lar against the Norwegian Kroner during 2002. The shares in New Skies
were written down by NOK 24 million to the current quoted market
price as of 31 December 2002, due to a significant decline in the pub-
licly quoted share price. Sponsor Service ASA filed for bankruptcy in
the beginning of 2003, and a loss of NOK 66 million was recognised in
2002. In 2002, Telenor realized small gains and losses on shares com-
pared to previous years.

Income 2axes {see nolte i3

The corporate income tax rate in Norway is 28.0%. In 2002, a loss
before taxes and minority interests and a tax income was recorded.
Telenor’s effective tax rate (income taxes as a percentage of profit
before taxes) was 38.0% in 2001 and 43.0% in 2000. The main items
affecting Telenor’s income taxes are discussed in note 13 to the finan-
cial statements.

Prior to the IPO in December 2003, a new parent company for the Group
(Telenor ASA) was incorporated and atl shares in Telenor AS were con-
tributed to Telenor ASA as an in kind contribution. At the same time,
Telenor AS changed its name to Telenor Communications AS and in 2002
to Telenor Eiendom Holding AS. The tax cost base of the Telenor Eiendom
Holding AS shares equaled estimated fair value at the time whan the in
kind contribution was made. As a necessary part of the overall restruc-
turing of the Telenor Group, in 2001 and 2002 Telenor demerged or sold
entities from Telenor Eiendom Holding AS to holding companies for the
different business areas. To the extent Telenor ASA should dispose of
shares in Telenor Eiendom Holding AS, or dispose of shares in entities
demerged from Telenor Eiendom Holding AS, any taxes will be computed
on the difference between the consideration received and the high tax
base cost, as established through the in kind contribution.

Minority interesis

See the consolidated statement of shareholders equity. The minori-
ty part of net income for EDB Business Partner for 2001 and 2002 was
affected by amortization and write-downs of net excess values of NOK
328 million and 285 million, respectively. The net excess values arose
mainty in 1398 and 2000 in connection with Telencr’s purchase of EDB
ASA and the decrease in the ownership interest in EDB Business Part-
ner, where the minority interests were recorded at fair value, which was
in excess of book value of the minority’s part of equity in EDB Business
Partner.



The {cliowing taslies seis forth selected financial date fer the Business (NDHin millians]

{Uions) 200z 2001 2T0C0

areas for the period 2000-2302. External revenues

miNorway 9,441 8,746 8,244
(NOK i railifons) 2002 o ) Pannon GSM 4,502 - -
Revarnues excluding geins on disposal of DiGi.Com 2,702 201 -
fhed essets and operglions GrameenPhonea 1,589 1,185 537
Maaile 20,346 12,2¢8 2,776 Kyivstar 708 - -
Netwaorks 16,487 16,562 16,365 ther units in Mabile 137 168 143
Plus 4,851 3,374 2,862 Tatel extarrel revenias 13,079 L2271 8,244
Business Saotutions 6,157 5,940 4,316 internal revenues 1,267 1,298 1,532
ED3 Business Partner 4,338 4,770 3,244 Gains on disposal of fixed assats and
Other pusiness units 3,978 4,033 4,029 gperations - 252 23
Corporate functions and Group activiiies 2,707 2,774 3,152 Total revenues T3 12,538 g,7¢8
Media" - 1,338 1,655 “otal operating exnenses 18,932 10,0583 8,205
Bravida® - - 4,222 Cparating profit L4 2,483 1,394
Eliminations (10,186) (10,488) (13,791) Associated companies (2,030} 9,677 (450)
Totel revenues excilting gains 48,368 432,604 35530 Net financial items (2,058) (496) (821)
Gains on distosal of fined assels Zrofit belore taxes and minorily interests (2,833} 11,676 313
and ezeraticns 128 5,438 w142
Total revernues 42826 45040 37,572 Recernciiiation of ZBITCA to coerating profit

EBITCA 7,482 4,057 2,720

Depreciation, amortization and write-downs 6,068 1,572 1,126

Cpereting profit 1,414 2,483 1,32
(NS Immillis 22C2 2807 2CCT
Cper EBITDA /total revenues 37% 32% 28%
Vobile 1414 2,495 1,584 Operating profit/total revenues 7% 20% 16%
Networks 2,526 2,175 3,047
Pius (883) (841} 135 [nvesiments:
Business Solutions (1,807) (2,968) (1,173) ~ Cajex 3,731 2,716 7,978
EDB Business Pariner (409)  (1,208) 201 — Investmeants in cusinesses 8,894 4,495 30,855
Gther business units (¢0) (686) (181) Toiel fell-time eguivalent emrioyeses
Corporate functions and Group activities (1,185) 4,139 16 (pariod end) 6,551 4217 2,481
Madia" - 262 30 — Ciwhich outside Narway 4,673 2,084 531
Bravida? - - )
Eliminations _ 14 (191)  (302)  The Mooiie business area’s resuits in 2002 and 2001 were affecied by
Totel cperating profit (loss) (32C) 3,177  3,Ba¢ “ha consclidation of:
"9 monins in 2001. o Kyivstar as @ subsidiary effective from 1 September 2002 when
21 Cmonths in 2003 Telenorincreasad the ownership interest in the Ukreine operator from

45.4% 10 54.2%.

o Pannon GSM as a subsidiary eflective from 1 February 2002 when
Teiencr increasad the ownarshin inferest in the Hungarian operator
from 25.8% to 1C0%.

- DiGi.Com as a subsiciary effective 1 September 200 when Teleror
increasad the ownership interest in the Melaysian operator from
32.8% tc 51.0%.

In addition ic the effects from the consolication of Kyivstar, Pannon
GSV ang BiGi.Com, there was &n underiying growth in revenues without
a corresacnding growin in expenses in all cempenies. This cantricuted
te ar increase in operating profit bafore amortization, depraciation and
write-downs (referred to as EBITDA) in 2002 comgared to 2001, while
amortization and depreciation increased, mainly due to consslidation
of these campanies. The reduction in operating profit compared o
2001 was due to the write-down of goodwill by NGK 2.1 Gillion related
to DiGi.Com.

An increasing propartion of Telenor's revenuss and profits (lossas) are
derived from our international mobile operations and investmants.
rluctuations in currency exchange rates between the Norwagian Kre-
ner and the functional currencies of the international mobile sub-




sidiaries and associated companies could afiect the reported earnings
and the value in Norwegian Kroner of the investments. For example, in
2002 the significant strengthening of the Norwegian Kroner had an
adverse effect on the results of operations and the values of the
investments reported in Norwegian Kroner of the mobile subsidiaries
DiGi.Com (Malaysia), Kyivstar (Ukraine) and GrameenPhone
(Bangladesh), respectively.

Telenor Mcobile — mNorway

(NOX{ in mitlions) 2002 200t 2000
Bxternal revenues

Mobile outgoing traffic 3,880 3,500 3,104
Mobile incoming traffic 389 392 289
Roaming 1,220 1,209 1,084
Total traific 5,489 5,101 4,478
SMS/Mobilinfo/CPA 1,530 1,187 792
Subscription and connection fees 1,350 1.328 1,318
Customer equipment 616 620 720
Service providers and other 456 510 257
Total @xternal revenues 9,441 8,745 7,584
Internal revenues ° 1,254 1,310 1,532
Gains on disposal of fixed assets and operations - - -
Totel revenues 1,595 10,058 9,083
Reconcitiation of EBITDA o operating profit

EBITDA 4,330 3,731 3,181
Depreciation, amortization and write-downs 1,322 1,105 965
Operating profit 3008 2,626 2,216
EBiTDA/total revenues 40% 37% 35%
Operating profit/total revenues 28% 26% 24%
Capex 750 1,674 1,485
Total full-time equivalent employees

(period end) 1,713 1,825 1,754
No. of subscriptions {in thousand) 2,382 2,307 2,189

Operating profit end EXNTOA — miNorway

Operating profit in 2002 was NOK 3,008 million, anincrease of 14.6%
compared to 2001. Tnis includes depreciation, amortization and write-
downs of tangible and intangible assets, which increased as an effect
of high investments during 2001, the shortening of depreciation
periods as of 1 Aprit 2001 and a write down related to the IT-systems
portfolio in 2002. Operating profit before depreciation, amortization
and write-downs (EBITDA) increased in 2002 compared to 2001 due to
change in the revenue mix, with a larger share of the ravenues being
generated irom higher margin products. Adjusted for expenses of NOK
104 million for workforce reductions in 2002, other operating expenses
were reduced as an effect of cost reduction actions through 2002.

Revenues — mNorway

Telenor's market share for GSM subscriptions at 31 December 2002
was B61%, at the same level as at 31 December 2C01.

During the same period, the estimated mobile penetration in Norway
increased from 80% to 84%.

In 2002, increased external revenues from outgoing mobile traffic in
Norway were due prirmarily {o the increase in the number of subscrip-
tions and tc the increase in traffic generated on average by each sub-
scription.

Increased traffic per subscription and a higher number of text mes-

sages more than offset the price reduction in incoming traffic, which
led to an increase in the average monthly revenue per subscription
(ARPU) in 2002.

External revenues from incoming mobile traffic in 2002 were in line
with 2001 due primarily to an increase in volume, which offset the price
reduction effective from 5 May 2001.

Externat revenues from roaming remained stable despite an increase in
volume generated by Norwegians abroad due to the strengthening of
the Norwegian Kroner.

The increase in external revenues from SMS and Content Provicer
Access was due to a higher number of messages and subscrigtions. The
number of messages increased by 322 millions to 1,692 mittions in
2002. Revenues increased more than volume as a result of a higher
average price in 2002 compared to 2001,

External revenues from subscription and connection fee were relatively
stable due to a change in subscription mix to lower priced subscrip-
tions, which was offset by the effect of a higher number of subscrip-~
tions.

External revenues from sales of customer equipment primarily related
to sales of handsets and computer equipment through the wholly-
owned distributors.

External revenues from service providers were staodle in 2002 com-
pared to 2001. Price reduction was offset by a higher number of sub-

scriptions and a smaltincrease in traffic.

Other external revenues decreased in 2002 compared to 2601 as a result
of lower sales of SIM cards to service providers and foreign operators.

Decrease in internal revenues was due to lower prices in 2002 com-
pared to 2001.

Operating exgenses — mNorway

(NCI in milliens) 2002 200t 2230
External costs of materials and traffic charges 1,872 1,793 1,740
Internal costs of materials and traffic charges 722 814 743
Totzl costs of materials and traffic charges 2,584 2,807 2,483
Own work capitalized (52) (55) (14)
Salaries and personnel costs 1,064 976 888
Other external operating expenses 1,870 2,021 1,854
Cther internal operating expenses 788 776 704
Depreciation and amortization 1,207 1,083 a31
Write-downs 115 22 34
Losses on disposal of fixed assets

and operations - - -
Total operating expenses 7,587 7,430 5,880

Increased operating expenses in 2002 compared to 2001 were mainty
due to higher depreciation, amortization and write-downs, and
expenses in connection with staff reductions.

Costs of materials and traffic charges in 2002 were slightly tower than
in 2001 mainly due to reduced expenses for traffic abroad as a result of
the strengthening of the Norwegian Kroner and lower sales of S|V
cards. This was partly offset by nigher traffic charges from the increase
in generated trafiic (voice and SMS) to subscribers in other telecom
onerators' networks,



Salaries and personnel costs increased in 2002 compared tc 2831 due
to increese in salaries and number of employees.

Other operating expenses cecreased in 2002 compared to 2001
despite expenses for warkiorce reducticns of NCK 104 millicn which
were recorded at the end of 2002. Tne decrease in expenses was due
to cost reduction measures, aspecially recuced usage of consuitants
and reduced marketing and sales commissions.

Depreciation and amortizetion increasad in 2002 compared to 2001
due to the relatively high level of investments during 2001, and the
shcriening of dapreciation periods as of T April 2001, Increasad write-
downs in 2002 were mainly related to assets no longer in use incur iT-
sysiem portiolio.

Capital exnenditure — mNorwey

Capitel expendituraes were substantiaily iower in 2002 compared io
2001 due to diminishing capacity and coverage invesiments as growth
in treffic decreasad.

Pannon G$

M — Mungery

o

(NDKL in mitlicns) 2002" 2001 2000
Mobile retated revenuas 4,187 - -
Other revenues 318 - -
TolEl revenues £,505 - -
Recorciliation of EBITDA to eperating nrofit

EBITDA 1,586 - -
Depreciation, amortization and wiite-downs 715 - -
Qperating profic 871 - -
EBITDA/total revenues 35% - -
Operating profit/total revenues 19% - -
Capex 825 - -
Totat full-time equivalent employees

(period end) 1,523 - -
No. of subscriptions {100% in thousand) 2,450 - -

" The table shows figures included in the accounts for Teienor from the date
of acguisition.

Tetenor consolidated Pennon GSM as a sutsidiary effective 4 February
2002, when Tetznar increased the ownersrin interest in the company
from 25.8% to 103%. The fcllowing discussion and analysis of Pannon
GSM's resuits of operations is based on Pannon GSM’s financial state-
ments for the years endad 31 December 2001 and 2002, &s prepered
oy Pannan GSM, adjusted to conform materiatly with Norwegian GAAR.
Teienor believe that sucn information provides a more useful measura
of comparative financiai performance for a pericd when Pannon GSM
was not yet consolidated. However, such information doeas not purport
to represent what the actual resulis of oparations would have bzen had
Panncn GSM been consolidated from January 2001 and is not neces-
serily indicative of future operating results.

werating profit and EBITIA — Pannon GSY
Operating profii increased in 2002 compared to 2001, including depre-
ciation, amortization and write-downs of tangible and intangible
assets, which increased due to write-downs of outdated networi ele~-
ments. Operating profit before depreciation, amortization and write-
downs (EBITDA) increasad in 2002 compared to 2021 by NOK 0.3 bil-
lion due to higher traffic as a result of more subscriptions, and

increased use of text messagas (SMS), which more than effset
increasad operating exsenses. Provisions of NCK 55 miltions were
made in 2002 for the estimated effect of charges relefed o intredue-
tion of Universal Service Cuidgaiion with effect from 1February 2002,
The operating profit margin increased in 2032 compared tc 220, and
the £BITDA margin increased from 35% to 36% in 2002.

Revenues — Pannon GSM
in 2022, Pannon had an 18% increase in revenues to NDK 4.9 vitlicn

rasutting from an incraase of 575,0001n the number of subscriztions in
2002. However, 00 average each sudscripiion generaied ess revenue,
as new customers andg customers with prepaid sudscripticns reduced
thz aveyage numaar of call minutes and revenues per subscripiion.

Tne market share of GSM subscriptions at 31 December 2002 was
mated to be 38% ecmpared 10 40% at 31 Decemacer 282, The reduc-
tian was due to increased competition. During the same 2zriad, the
estimatea mobile penetration in Hungary increased from 42% to 58%.

Crereting expenses — Panncn GSY

Cperating expenses increased by NOK 0.6 billion in 2002 comaared ‘¢
2001 primarily due to increased costs of materials and traffic charges
and increasad depreciation causad by higher invesiments. Other oper-
ating axpenses also increased in 2002 comoared to 2831 due to provi-
sions of NOK 56 million to cover the estimated eifect of charges relat-
ed to ihe introduction of Universal Service Gbligations with eifect from
1 February, 2C02.

Capital axpenditure — Panncn GSM

CiGl.Lom ~ Walaysia
{ownership interest §1.0% as of 30 Decembar 2CC2)

INTXin millions) 20022 2047 22CC
Mobile related revenues 2.273 691 -
Other revenues 442 215 -
Total revenues 2,718 jlegc -
Reconciligtion cf EBITDA to operating profit

EBITDA 1,022 306 -
Depreciation, amortization and write-downs 591 125 -
Ozerating profit 431 181 -
EBITDA/total revenues 38% 34% -
Cperating profit/total revenues 16% 20% -
Capex 1,457 459 -
Total full-time equivalent employees

(period end) 1,443 1,477 -
No. of subscrintions (100% in thousand) 1,616 1,039 -

"The table shows figures included in the accounts for Telenar from tha date
of acouisition.

Telenor consolidated BiGi.Com as a sudsidiary etfective | September
2C01, when Telenor increased the cwnership interest in the ccmpany
from 32.9% t0 B1.0%. The foliowing discussion and analysis of
DiGl.Com’s results of gparations is based on DiGL.Com’s financial state~
mants for the years ended 31 December 2001 and 2002, as presared
by DiGi.Com, adjusted to conform materially with Norwegian GAAR.




Telenor believe that such information provides a more useful measure
of comparative financial performance for a period when DiGi.Com was
not yet consolidated for a full year. However, such information does
not purport to represent what the actual results of operations would
nave been had DiGi.Com been consolidated from January 2001 and is
not necessarily indicative of future operating results.

COpereting crofit and EBITDA — DiGLCom

Operating profit decreased in 2002 compared to 2001 if measured in
NOK due to the strengihening of the Norwegian Kroner. Measured in
local currency, operating profit increased. Operating profit includes
depreciation, amortization and write-downs of tangible and intangible
assets, which increased due to a shorter depreciation period for net-
work-based equipment with effect from 1July 2002. Operating profit
before depreciation, amortization and write-downs (EBITDA) increased
in 2002 compared to 2001 by NOK G.15 billion due to higher traffic as a
result of more subscriptions and increased use of short text messages
(SMS), which more than offset increased operating expenses. The
EBITDA margin increased from 34% to 38% in 2002, while the operat-
ing profit margin decreased.

Ravenues — DiGLCom

'n 2002, the company had an 18% increase in revenues measured in
local currency compared to 2001, Converted to NOX, the increase was
only 5% due to the strengthening of the Norwegian Kroner. Growth in
revenue was due primarily to the increased traffic resulting from an
increase of 577,000 in the number of subscriptions and increased use
of text messages {SMS) in 2002. However, on average each subscrip-
tion generated less revenue, as new customers and customers with
nrepaid subscriptions reduced the average number of call minutes and
revenues per subscription.

The market share of GSM subscriptions at 31 December 2002 was esti-
mated to be 19% compared to 17% at 31 December 2001. During the
same period, the estimated mobile penetration in Malaysia increased
from 31% to 37%.

Operating expenses — DiGLCom

Dperating expenses increased by NOK 0.1 billion in 2002 compared to
2801, mainly due to increased depreciation. Effective 1July 2002,
BiGi.Com reduced the depreciation period for network-based equip-
ment, which increased depreciation by NOK 0.2 bitlion in 2002.

[
”

al excenditure — BIGLCom
Capital expenditures decreased by NOK 0.2 billion in 2002 compared
to 2001 mainly due to currency fluctuations.

Kylvstar — Ukraine
{ownership interest 34.2% as of 31 December 2002)

{NOK in millicns) 20c2" 20C1 2c.oC
Mobile related revenues 68i - -
Other revenues 27 - -
Total revenues 708 - -
Recencitiation of EBITDA to oparating profit

EBITDA 403 - -
Depreciation, amortization and write-downs a8 - -
Operating profit 205 - -
EBITDA/total revenues 57% - -
QOperating piofit/total revenues 43% - -
Capex 329 - -
Total full-time equivalent employees

(period end) 994 - -
No. of subscriptions {100% in thousand) 1,856 - -

"The table shows figures included in the accounts for Telenor from the date
of acquisition.

Telenor increased the ewnership interest in the company from 45.4% to
54.2% and Telenor consolidated Kyivstar as a subsidiary effective 1
September 2002, The following discussion and analysis of Kyivstar's
results of operations is based on Kyivstar's financial statements for the
years ended 31 December 2001 and 2002, as prepared by Kyivstar,
adjusted to conform materially with Norwegian GAAP. Telenor Delieve
that such information provides a more useful measure of comparative
financial performance for a period when Kyivstar was not yet consoli~
dated. However, such information does not purport to represent wnat
the actual results of operations would have been had Kyivstar been
consolidated from January 2001 and is not necessarily indicative for
future operating results.

Opereting profit end EBITCA ~ Kyivstar

Operating profit in 2002 increased compared to 2001, inciuding
depreciation, amortization and write-downs of tangible and iniangible
assets, which increased due to increased capital expenditure. Operat-
ing profit before depreciation, amortization and write-downs (EBITDA)
increased in 2002 compared to 2001, by NOK 0.8 billion due to higher
traffic as a result of more subscriptions, which more than offset
increased operating expenses. The aperating profit margin increased in
2002 compared to 2001, and the EBITDA margin increased from 29% in
2001 to 58% in 2002.

Revenues — Kylystar

In 2002, the company had an B4% increase in revenues measured in
local currency compared to 2001. Converted to NOK, the increase was
57% due to the strengthening of the Norwegian Kroner. Growth in
revenues was primarily due to increased traffic resulting from an
increase of 761,030 in the number of subscriptions in 2002. However,
on average each subscription generaied less revanue, as new cus-
tomers and customers with prepaid subscriptions reduced the average
number of call minutes and revenues per subscription.

The market share of GSM subscriptions at 31 December 2002 was
estimated to be 50% compared to 48% at 31 December 2301. During
the same period, the estimated mobite penetration in Ukraine
increased from 4.6% to 7.8%.




g exzenses — Kylvstar

Operating expenses increased by NOK 0.1 billion in 2002 compared o
2001, mainly du= to an increase in costs of materials and traific
charges as a resut of highar traffic volume. increased operating
expensas measured in NOK were parily offset by the strengthaning of
the Norwegian Kronzr. In general, operating expenses were tow in
2002 cue to low marieting expenses and the company’s focus on cost
efficiency.

Capital expenditure — Kylvstar

In 2832, measured i [ocel currency capital expenditures increased
mainly due to increased capacity and covarage investiments in tha GSM
natwark.

()

remeenPrcne — Bangwedesh
kb d

INZR inmilticns) 2002 2C21  20Qa
Mobile related revenuas 1.203 759 348
Bther revenuas 386 426 189
Total revenues 1,588 1,183 337
Recanciliation of EBITDA to ogerating prafit

EBITDA 757 457 124
Bepreciation, amortization and write-downs 126 129 83
Qperating proft 331 328 41
EBITOA/total revenues 48% 39% 23%
Oparating profit/total revenues 40% 28% 8%
Capex 342 425 266
Totat fuii-time equivatent employees

(period end) 692 589 531
No. of subscriptions (100% in thousand) 769 464 191

Crerating profit and EBITIA — GrameenPhone
Operating profit in 2002 was NOIK 631 million, an increase of 82.4%
compared to 2031. This includes depreciation, amortization and write-
downs of tangiole and intangible assats, which were at the same level
measured in NOK but increased in local currency due o a highar level
of czp'tal expenditures inrecent years. Operating orofit before
depreciation, amortization and write-downs (EBITDA) increased in
2002 compared to 200! by 65% due to higher traffic as a result of
more sudscrintions, which more than offset increasec operating

axpensas.

Revenues — GremeenPhane

in 2002, revenues increased by 55% measured in local cusrency com-~
pared ta 2001, Converted to NG, the increase was 34% due to the
strengthening of the Norwegian Kroner. The increase in revenue was
primarily due to increased traffic resulting from an increase of 305,000
in the number of subscriptions in 2032. Feas that GrameenPhone col~
tects on behalf of the authorities have been daducted from ravenues
effective 1 july 2002 and totalled NOK 52 million for the second half of
2032. This explains the reduction in other revenues, which was parily
offset by increasad sales of customar eguipment.

The merket share of GSV suascripticns at 31 December 2002 was
estimated to be 68% compared to 70% at 31 Becember 2801. During
the same period, the estimated mobile panetration in Bangladesh
increased from 0.5% to G.3%.

ARPU was NOK 172 in 2002, down fram NOK 1801in 2837, This decrease
was due to new customers and customers with prepaid suascrintions
reducing the average number of call minutes and revenues per sud-
scription, as well as the strengthening of the Norwegian Kroner.

Cperating exgenses — GrameenPhone

Operating expanses increased in 2802 compared to 2001, mainiy due
to increased oparation and maintenance expansas, commissions and
increased licensa fees. The increase in operating expenses in locat cur-
rency was nartly offset by the strengthening of the Norwegian Kroner.

Capital expenditure — GrameenProne

Capital expanditures measured in NOK decreased in 2022 compared to
2001 mainly due to currency fluctuations between NOK and Taka. In
loca!l currency, capital expenditures in 2031 and 2032 were aporoxi-
mately at the seme level.

Other unils in Mobile
(including amortization of net axcess velues ant eliminations of pur-
chasaes and sa.es betweaen the units in Madile)

(NDIK in millions) 2002 2001 2223
Recenciliation of EBITDA to operating (loss]
EBITCA (616) (427} (5e1)

Deapreciation, amortization and write~-downs® 3,216 213 72

Cnerating (loss) (2,832) {8433 (633}
? Includes amortization and write-downs

of et excess values by" 3,073 115 47
Capex 28 158 227

"Net excess values are the difference between Telenor's acquisition cost
and Telenor's share of equity &t acquisition of subsidiaries.

Giher units comprise djuice.com, Teienc:'s mabile operations in Swe-
den (djuice.se), and costs related to the management and administra-
tion of Telenor's international mobile portfolic.

The increase in coerating toss in 2002 compared to 2001 was die to
increased amortization of excess values, including goodwil, in connec-
tion with tha acquisition and consolidation of DiGi.Com, Panngn GSiV:
end Kyivstar as well as write-down of goodwitl related to DiGi.Com.An
gssessment of bock values was carried cut in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles, which led to a write-down of
goodwill in DiGL.Com of NOK 2.1 billicn. Tha write-down was based cn
the publicly guoted share price at 31 December 2002, adjusted to
reflect a control premium. Operating loss before depreciation, amerii-
zation and write-downs of tangible and intangible assets ( EBITDA)
increased in 2002 compared to 2001 due to gain of NOXK 259 million
related to sale of the subsidiary Norcom Networi Communications inc.
in 2001. Excluding the effect of this gain in 2001 the EBITDA loss was
lower in 2002 due to reduced expeansas caused by & lower activity tavel
in djuice.com and reduced management and administration expenses.

The decrease in cepital expenditures in 2032 compared to 2201 was
duz to reduced investments in djuice.com.




Assgciated companies and foint ventures in Mobile

{NOK i raillions) 2802 2001 20C0
Teienor's shere of”

Netincome (loss) 612 421 (686)
Amortization of Telenor's net excess values 798 1,276 693
Write-downs of Telenor's net excess values 1.884 10,900 -
Gain on disposal of ownership interests 40 21432 918
Net result from associated companies {2,633) 9,677 {451)

e < e
OF NETWIRES

“The figures are partly based on the management's estimates in connection
with the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. The consoli-
dated profit and loss statement contains only the line item "net result from
associated companies”. Telenor's share of the other items shown in the
table is not included in the consolidated financial statements but this
information is set forth in note 16to the consolidated financial statements.
Net excess values are the difference between Telenor's acquisition cost
and Tetenor's share of equity at acquisition of the associated companies.

These results were affected by:

> The acquisition of Sonofon and DTAC/UCOM in the autumn of 2000

> The sale of VIAG Interkom and Esat Digifone in 2001 and of Extel in
2002

° DiGi.Com, Pannon GSM and Kyivstar being accounted for as
subsidiaries effective 1 September 2001, 4 February 2002 and 1 Sep-
tamber 2002, respectively.

Telenor's mobile associated companies outside Norway experienced a
significant increase in their customer base in 2002. The growth was
particularly significant in DTAC in Thailand and VimpelCom in Russia.

Net income in 2002 included a write-down of Telenor’s investment in
OniWay of NOK 316 million. This investment was written down as it was
not considerad commercially sensible to continue operations as
planned.

As aresult of the decrease in market values, in the second quarter of
2001 Telenor wrote down the investment in Sonofon by NOX 7.5 billion
to reflect the estimated fair value, and at 31 December 2002 Telenor
wrote down an additional NOK 1.0 billion to the estimated fair value
based on discounted cash flows and comparison to other companies.
Telenor wrote down DTAC/UCOM by NOK 3.4 billion to the publicly
guoted share price at 31 December 2001 and by an additional NOK 0.9
billion to the publicly quoted share price ai 31 December 2002. Telenor
believe that the write-downs in 2002 and the cansolidation of Pannon
GSM and Kyivsiar could contribute to decrease in the amortization of
excess values included in associated companies in 2003 compared to
2002.

Gains on disposals in 2002 related to the sale of Extel in December
20G2. Gains in 2001 related to the sale of VIAG Interkom and Esat
Digifone in January and April 2001, respectively.

{NCY in millions) 2302 2C1 2000
External revenues 13,760 14,1056 13,998
Internal revenues 2,727 2.456 2,367
Gains on disposal of fixed assets and

operations ) 5 320
Total revenues 75,488 (5,368 15,883
Total operating expenses 13,962 14,393 13,638
Operating profit 2,525 2,373 3,047
Associated companies - - -
Net financial items : (329) (149) (72)
Profit before taxes and minority interests 2,197 2,023 2,275
Reconcillation of EBITDA to operating profit

EBITDA 5717 5,666 5,672
Depreciation, amortization and write-downs 3,191 3,49 2,625
Operating prefit 2,525 2,175 3,047
EBITDA/total revenues 35% 34% 34%
Operating profit/total revenues 15% 13% 18%
Investments:

- Capex 1,853 3,694 3,597
— Investments in businesses - 25 B
Totat fuli-time equivelent employees

{nericd end) 3,820 3,884 4084
- Of which outside Norway 42 38 12

Onerating nrofit

Increased operating profit in 2002 compared to 2001 was due to
reduced operating expenses, including write-downs, which more than
offset reduced revenues.




Revenues
INSX In milticns) 2Cc2 2BCt 2230
Business mearket — fixed netwerk
Analog (PSTN)/digitai (ISDN) subscrintions
and connactions 1,335 1,313 1,362
Fixad ta fixed traffic damestic, excluding
trafiic to Internet sarvice providers (ISP) 776 838 886
Traffic to Internet service provider 170 230 240
Traffic to modile 665 694 567
Traffic abvoad 180 195 218
Qther traffic 320 320 36
Total pusiness market ~ fixed networik 3,447 3,581 3,652
1 Med netwaorl
Analog (PSTN)/digital (ISDY) subscriptians
and connectians 3,026 2816 2,991
Fixed 1o fixed treffic domestiz, exciucing
traffic to internat service oroviders 1,190 1,288 1,384
Traffic to Internet servica providers 334 485 522
Trafiic to mobile 1,144 1,11 1,106
Tratfic abroad 279 287 288
Other traffic 650 725 774
Totel residgential market - fixed natwerk 6,833 5812 708
Wholesale mariet — fixed network -
Bomastic interconnect 736 722 497
international interconnect 340 418 558
Transit traffic 1,027 953 736
Totzl whalesale market — fied network 2,103 2,0¢3 1,791
Total Med netwar 12,183 12,498 12,5435
Leasad lines 288 1,040 884
Other 589 570 569
Totz! external revanuss 13,783 14,138 13,828
Internal revenues 2,727 2,456 2,367
Gains on dispose! of fixed assets and operations 1 6 320
Total revenues 13,488 15,588 G,GE5

Due to migration of fixed trafiic to mobile traffic, and transition of
Internet traffic (ISP) which is measured in minutes to ADSL which not is
measured, rctal fixed traffic measured in minutes decreased by 8.5% in
the Norweglian market in 2302.

Telenor's market share measured in traffic minutes, including intarnet
traffic (dial up access) recarced in the Plus and Businass Sciutions
business aregs, was 72% at 31 December 2032, with Netwaorks having a
market shara of 63% and tha Plus and Business Sclutiens business
greas having e remaining €%. The decline in Networks' market share
from 68% at the end of 2301 wes cifset By an increase in Piwus’ and
Business Seiutions’ market share, whrich resuiied in Telenor’s total mer-
ket share being suastantially in line with that of 2031,

i

niernel revenues

Businzss merket. Traffic minutes decreasad by 13% in 2032 com-
aared to 2601 cua to migration to maobile traffic, transition tc ADSL end
pre-satection traffic; howaver, Talensr’s market share measured in
minutas was in ine with that of 20C1. This resutted in caclining trafiic
revenues in 2002. Increased subscription prices from 1 May 2302 oif-
set tha impact of reduction in PSTN and ISON subscribers and fewer
conversions from PSTN 1o ISBN compared to 2C01.

Residential market. Bxternalrevenues in the residential market
cdecreased in 2002 comparad to 2001 as g result of a 14% decreas2 in
traffic minuies due to migration to mobile traffic, transition to ADSL
angd pre-seiection traflic. The decreasea in exiernal revenuas for pre-

setection traific was nartly ofiset by increased internel revenuss

Pius, Tha market share for wrafiic decreased from 86% at 3\ Decemasr
2031 1o 50% at 31 Decembar 2022. in sarticular, fixed-to-ad traflic
i1 Norway and [niernet traffic decreased, wiile fixad-to-mobiie tralfi
and traffic abread increased. This change in the raffic mix to traffic
with Righer orices partiy ofiset the reduction in velume.

acregsed sudscridiion taviifs from 1 May 2002 partly offse? the nega-
tive impact of the reduction in the number of PSTN and ISON sub-

scrioers and fewer convarsions from PSTN to ISDN.

Whotesale markel.  Externalrevenuss fram comastic interconnectiicn
inciude revenuss from otner Norwegian fixed te.epheny operaicrs and
maobtile coerators for interconnection with the fixed network, as watl as
sale of ADSL. Externe! revenuss frem domesiic interconnectian
increesed in 2052 mainly as & resuli of increased revenues from ADSL

Exiernal revenues frem international interconnaction censist of
ravanues Telencr charge international operators for conneciion to ne
nz2twork. Reduced externe! revenuss from internationa. interconneciion
in 2002 comparec 10 2007 were primariy cue to increased competiticn
. the market rasucding in lower market share.

Transit traific is traffic from other domestic and international operators
thatis sent via Telenar's fixed network to third narty operaiors. The
ingraase in axiernal revenue from transit traffic in 2002 compared to
202 was due (o tn2 increased domastic transit iraflic, mainly from
mobiie operators. Tiis was partly offsat by the dacrease in revenue from
international transit traffic due to price reductions. The transii trafficis
icw margin traffic.

ne dacrease in revenues from leased iines
in 2002 compared to 2001 was cus (o the introduction of new groducis
with lower prices, primarity to ena-users, from 1 juty 2002 and the
impact of daclineg demend for netwerk capacity. in the end-usar mar-
ket, many customers swiich2d fram leased lines to lower priced ADSL,

w

Other revanues arz ravenues from other network-basec and non-net-

work-based activities and fram maritima services.

The increase in internal revenues in both 2020
and 2032 was dus ic increesed internal wholesale revenues from

les of ADSL and domestic interconnaciion related (o pre-
fiic to the business areas Pius and Business Solutions. inter-
neisales of legsed fings and co-lacations also contrisuted to the
increase in internal revanuss.

External costs of materiels and traffic charges 2,112 2,011
intarnal costs of materials and traflic charges 2,180 2,245 2375
Toal costs of materisls and traffic charge 4,292 4,324 4,588
Cwn work capitalized (71} (145) (188)
Salarias and parsonna! costs 1,957 1,920 1,858
Other external operating expenses 2,751 2,829 1,577
Qther internal operating exsansas 1,831 1,904 3,168
Cepreciation and amortization 3,173 2,921 2,611
Write-downs 18 570 14

Losszs on disposal of fixed assets and
operations

=

e

2l operaling @Npenses




Total costs of materials and traffic charges decreased in 2002 mainly
due to the decrease in traffic to ISP as a result of the transition to ADSL
and internal pre-selection traffic, as well as price decreases on inter~
national traffic. In addition, the full-year effect of the decrease in
mobile termination prices from 1 May 2001 reduced the internal costs
of materials and traffic charges in 2002 compared to 2001.

Own work capitalized decreased in 2002 as a result of reduced invest-
ment activity.

Salaries and personnel costs increased in 2002 compared to 2001 main-
ly due to increased pension costs. General increases in salaries, as well as
transfer of approximately 120 employees from other business areas as of
i October 2002, were offset by a reduction in the number of man-years
during 2002. During 2002, Telenor decided to reduce the workforce by
more than 300 man-years, and part of this reduction occurred in 2002.

The reduction in workforce and lower total exiernal and internal other
oparating costs, primarily consuliancy fees, travel and [T-costs, were
due to improved operational efficiency in 2002. Furthermore, reduc-
tion in the failure rate of the network, due to invesiments in previous
years contributed to reduce mainienance costs. Expenses for work-
force reductions were NOX 161 million in 2002.

Significant investments in recent years prior to 2002 and reduced
depraciation periods for categories of cables and switches from 1 April
2001, led to an increase in depreciation and amortization both in 2001
and 2002. increased completion of assets under construction in 2002
also contributed to higher depreciation in 2002.

Cepital expenditure

in 2002, capital expenditure decreased by approximately 50% com-
pared to 2C01. This was due to a fall in the demand for fixed network
services and an increased use of earlier capital expenditures related to
{SDN, ADSL and capacity. In 2001, NOK 360 million was invested in the

Operalting profit (loss)

{NOK in mitticns) 2082 2007 2200
Broadcast (i1 (527) 227
Content & Interactive (275) (140) (57)
Internett (371) (92) 54
Other (76) (82) (89)
Total operating profit (loss}” (883) (847} 135
# Includes amortization and write-downs of

Telenor’s net excess values by" 156 I 45

" Net excess values are the difference between Telenor’s acquisition cost
and Telenor’s share of equity at acquisition of subsidiaries.

Operating profit (loss)

Operating loss increased in 2002 compared to 2001 mainly due to
increased sales of and marketing activities for the ADSL preduct and
consolidation of new subsidiaries. In addition, expenses for workforce
raductions and expenses relatad ic termination of contracts amouinied
to NOX 92 million, an increase of NOK 43 million compared to 2001, in
2002, write-downs of NOK 135 million were recorded comparet to NOK
494 million in 2001. In Broadcast, there was a cecr2ase in operating
{oss of NOK 366 million mainly due to recuced vrite-downs in 2002
compared to 2001. The consolidation of Canal Digital from 30 June
2002, had a negative impact on operating profit of approximately NOK
185 million, including amortization of goodwill and other excess values.
The increase in operating loss in Content & Interactive was due to the
development of interactive TV and broadband services, resulting in
increased operating expenses, including amortization, depreciation
and write-downs. In Internett, expenses related to increased acquisi-
tion of ADSL customers in the residential market in Norway and Swe-
den resulted in increased operating loss in 2002 compared to 2001.
The operating loss in Telenordia Privat AB (Sweden) was NOX 85 mit-
lion. "Other" consists of projects and support functions.

transatlantic fiore cable, TAT 14 and significant investments were also Revenues
made in the fixed network. {NCK in millicns) 2002 2007 20CC
Ixternal reventes

Ll Z Broadcast 3,221 2,231 2,072
{NOX in miltions) 2082 200t 20C0 Content & Interactive 160 188 72
External revenues 4,367 2,942 2,487 Internett 976 508 306
Internal revenues 484 432 375 Other 10 15 37
Gains on disposal of fixed assets and operations 1 12 13 Total external revenues 4,357 2,842 2,487
Totel revenues 4,882 3,385 2,875 Internal revenues 484 432 375
Total operating expenses 5,745 4,227 2,740 Gains on disposal of fixed assets and operations " 12 13
Operating prefit {loss) {883} (B41) 135 Total ravenuss 4,882 3,385 2,875
Associated companies (270) (547) 20
Net financial items (815) (410) (8) External revenues in Broadcast increased by NOK 990 million in 2002.
Profit before taxes and minority interasts {1,938) {1,798) 147 External revenues at Canal Digital were NOK 1,138 million and external

Recencitiation of EBITDA to operating
profit {loss)
EBITDA 139 248 611

Depreciation, amortization and write-downs 1,022 1,089 476
Crerating profit (loss) {883) (841) 135
invesumanis:

— Capex 435 835 573
- Investments in businesses 2,490 906 1,540
Total full-time eguivelent employees

{paricd end) 1.332 1,344 1,148
— Of which abroad 243 198 g8

revenues from the full year consotidation of Sweden On Line amountad
to NOK 126 million. External revenues in Satellite Broadcasting
decreased by NOK 346 million due to the phasing out of analogue broad-
casting and because revenues from sales to Canal Digital, which
previously were reported as external revenues, were eliminated following
the consolidation of Canal Digital. Such revenues were NOK 208 million
for the period from 30 June 20602, resulting in a net effect of the consoli-
dation of Canal Digital on exiernal revenues in Broadcast of NOK 933
million. Avidi (Cable-TV) reported external revenues of NOK 657 miltion,
an increase of NOK 77 million compared to 2001 due to increased prices
and subscribers adopting new services. External revenues ai Telenor
Vision, Sweden, increased by NOX 165 million to NOKX 330million in 2002
due to the full year's consolidation of Sweden On Line.



At 31 Decamber 2022, the number of subscrivers in Broadcast was
2,405,000, a nat increase of 3.5% compared to 31 December 2001, and
Cana! Digital had 738,000 subscriders, a net increase of 12.3% compared
to 31 Decembar 2001. Avidi ‘ncreased the number of subscrivers oy
11,308 to 371,803 in 2002. Telenor Vision had 1,296,000 sukscriders at
31 december 2002, an increase of 1% compared to 31 December 2C01.

The decrease in external revenues in Content & Interactive was mainly
cue to lower sales of CA mcdules and smart cards in Conax in 2002
compared to 2001. In 2001 there was greater demand for these prod-
ucts due to increased growth in the numoer of digital TV subscribers.

internett in Norway increased axternal revenuas by NOK 283 miltion in
2002 compared to 2001, of which the increase in sales of ADSL was
NQK 212 million. Furthermare, external revenues from pre-selecticn
traffic {internet) increased by NOK 81 million. Prior to 2002, these rev-
enues were recorded as external revenues from Networks. Tetenordia
Privat AB was censolidated from 1 October 2001, and contributed NOK
175 million to the increase in external revenuss.

The number of Telenor Internett subscribers in the Norwegian market
increased by 15.5% to 960,000 at 31 December 2002, of which 533,000
were FriSurf subscribers and 90,003 were ADSL subscribers. Internett in
Norway increased the number of ADSL subscribers by 67,000 to
90,880 during 2002. The customer base in Telenordia Privat AB
(Swecen) was sold to the listed company Glocalnet AB at the end of
December 2302 in exchange for 37.2% of the shares in Glocalnet AB.

Internal revenues primarity consisted of traffic revenues from Internett
and Telenordia Privat AB, as well as satellite revenues in Broadcast,
mainty sales to Satellite Services and Satellite Networks. Tha increase in
2002 compared to 2001 related to increased interconnection trafficin

The increase in other ogerating expenses from 2001 te 2002 was due
o the consolidation of Canal Digital, which emounted to NJK 313 mit-
lion, and the full year effect of tha consolidation of Telencrdia Privat
AB, wnich amounted Zo NOK 120 miilion. In 2002, NOK 92 miliicn was
reccrded in expenses reiated to workicrece reductians and termination
of coniracts compared to NOX 49 mitlion in 200t In Internett, other
operating expenses increased from 2001 to 2802, partiy as a result of
increased advertising, marketing and sales commissions related to
ADSL. In other areas, oither cperating exoenses were reduced as a
resu't of cost saving initiatives, mainly relating to consultancy and
travel costs in Broadcast. Bad debt was reduced due to reversal of
previous loss provisicns.

Compared to 2001, amortization end depreciation increased in 2062,
mainty as a resu't of the acquisition of Canzl Bigital and Telenordia
Privat AB. The increase was aiso parily due to depraciation and amorii-
zetion of investmeants reiating to content and interactive services and
the digital cable-TV natwor, partly offset by reduced depreciaiion as
& consequence of the write-downs recorded at the end of 2001.

In 2002, write~-downs cf NOX 135 miliion were made, main'y on set-top
boxes for the SMATV market, on platforms retated to new broadcasting
standards and on security technglogy (digital certificates) related ¢
interactive TV payment system.

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditures decreased in 2002 compared to 2001, mainly dus
to the exiensive upgrade of the cable-TV network parforimad in 2001,
in addition, there was lower capital expenditure in the terrestrial trans-
mission network in 2002.

Associated compenies

Swedan and sale of satellite capacity. INCK in millions) 20C2 2CC1 2220
Telenor's share of:"

Iperating exzanses Net (loss) (145) (464) (181)

INTX in millions) 20C2 2CC1 2000 Amortization and write-downs of Teleno:'s

Externat costs of materials and traffic charges 1,577 1,088 889 net excess valuss 125 80 18

Internal costs of materials ard traffic charges 900 344 237 Gein (loss) on disposal of ownarship interasts - (3) 229

Totzl costs of materials and tratfic charges 2,477 1,442 5,126 Nzt resull from asseciated companies {270) (347) 20

Own worlk capitalized (31) (18) (32)

Sataries and personnel costs 787 655 465 "The figures are partly based on the managemant's estimates in connection

Other external operating expanses 981 780 433 with the preparation of the consolidated financial statemants. The

Other internal operating expenses 503 261 256 consolidated profit and loss statement contains only the line item "net

Depreciation and amartization 887 595 464 result from associated companies”. Tetenor's share of the other linz items
rite~-downs 135 494 12 in the table is not included in the consolidated financial statemants but this

Lasses on disposat of fixed assets and information is sat forth in note 16 to the consolidated financial statemants.

operations 6 18 16 Nzt excess values are the difference between Telenor's acquisition cost

Total ozeraling expenses 5,745 4,227 2,740 and Telenor’s share of equity at acquisition of tihe associated companies.

Toral costs of materials and traffic charges increased in 2002 mainly
due *o increased sales of ADSL, consalidation of Canal Digital and the
fuil year effect of consolidation of Telenordia Privat AB and Sweden
Online. The gross margin (revenueas tess costs of materials and traific
charges as a parcentage of revenues) decreased by 8.6 percaniage
points tc £8.9%. The decrzase was mainly due to ADSL growth and tha
consolicgation of Canal Digital.

Salaries and perscnnel costs in 2502 increased due in part to the con-
solidaticn of Canal Bigital and in part to new employees duz tc the
highar activity. At the end of 2002 and the beginning of 2033 thare
was & reduction in the number of employees as a restructuring meas-
ure, sut the reduction in expensas will oe obtained in 2003.

Canrel Digital was consclidated as a subsidiary as of 3C June 2002 and
tha figures are therefcre not comparable with 2001. As Canal Bigital
was accounied for as an assosiated company for only 5 months in
2C02, net loss in 2002 decreased comparad to 2001, At the end of
2C31 Ctrum disposed of businesses that genarated lossaes, which cen-
triguted {c a reduction in net loss for Ctrum in 2802 comparad to 2801,
The fair value of Otrum was estimated to be lower than the book value
ard sxcess vales related to Otrum was written dewn during 2CC2.
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TRINOR FUSINGSS SOLUTINNS

{NDIin millions)

+

work and communication services in Norway in 2002. The operaiing

2002 2001 2000 lass for Business Solutions Norway increased in 2002 comparad to

External revenues 4,444 4616 3,358 2001 due to significantly lower revenues froim ASP, operating services,
Internal revenues 1,713 1,324 958 software and consulting services and due to expenses for restructuring
Gains on disposal of fixed assets and operations - - - of the business in 2002, including write-downs.
Total revenues 6,157 5,040 4,316
Total operating expenses 7,964 8,908 5,489 Nextra International’s activities were further downscaled in the second
Operating {loss} {1,807} (2,838) (1,173) half of 2002 and beginning of 2003 by selling the remaining opera-
Associated companies 1 (874) (89)  tions in Switzerland (Aspectra), Nextra Hungary Kit, Nexira Telecom
Net financial items (54) (316) (161)  Gmbh (Austria) and Nextra Italy. At the end of 2002, Telenor Business
Profit before taxes end minority interests {1,860) (4,958) (1403}  Solutions became the majority shareholder of the Swedish listed com-

pany Utfors AB.
Reconciliaticn of EBITDA to cperating loss
EBITDA 26 (828)  (600)  Revenues
Depreciation, amortization and write-downs 1,833 2,140 573 {NOK in mitlions) 2002 2001 280C
Cperating {loss) {1,807) (2,8%8) (1,172} External revenues

ASP, operating services, software and
investments: conhsulting services 803 1,077 917
~ Capex 928 1,041 1,806 Access, network and communication services 1,374 1,378 1,402
~ Investments in businesses 175 531 2.858 Total Business Sclutions Norway 2,%77 2,433 2,31
Total full-time eguivalent employees Nextra international 851 1,271 81e
(period end) 3,886 4,225 3,992 Business Solutions Sweden 739 310 4
- Of which outside Norway 2,606 2,824 2,632 Comincom/Combellga 677 580 217

Totat Business Sclutions Internationat 2,257 2,981 1,038
Operating {loss) Total external revenues 4,444 4,875 3,358
{NOK in miltions) 2002 200t 2000 internal revenues 1713 1.324 958
Business Solutions Norway {1,251) (609) (248) Gains on disposal of fixed assets and
Business Sclutions International (556)  (2,359) (925) operations - - -
Total cperating (loss)” (1,807) (2,958) (1,173) Totalrevenues 8,757 5,240 4,318
" Include amortization and write-downs of Total revenues (internal and external) increased by 4% in 2002 com-
Telenor's net excess values by? 335 1.129 174 pared to 2001. External revenues from sales of ASP, operating services,

@ Net excess values are the difference between Telenor's acquisition cost
and Tetenor's share of equity at acquisition of subsidiaries

Business Selutions Norway

(NOI in millions) 2032 20801 2000
Recenciliation of EBITDA to operating (loss)

EBITDA (13) 54 44
Depreciation, amortization and write-downs® 1,238 663 292
Operating {loss) (1,251) {€00) {248
? Include amortization and write-downs of

Telenor's net excess values by 167 180 12
Business Solutions internaticnal

{(NOICin millicns) 2002 2007 2000
Recarcitiatior of EBITDA o operating (loss)

EBITDA 38 (882) {644)
Depreciation, amortization and write-downs® 594 1.477 281
Operating {ioss) {556} (2,359)  {825)
“Include amortization and write-downs of

Telenoi's net excess values by 228 949 162

The decrease in operating toss in 2002 compared to 2001 was due to
the negative resulis from Nextra Germany and the CSP activity in Nex-
ira Switzerland no longer being consolidated and to the restructuring
of the remaining operations of Nextra International at the end of 2001,
combined with increased gross margin (revenues less traffic charges
and cost of materials as a percentage of revenues) from access, net-

software and consulting services decreased by 25% in 2C02. This was
due to the weak market for sales of operating services and software for
use in large PC environments (Computer Associates software) in 2002.
External revenues from Access, network and communication services in
Norway remained in line with 2001.

The decrease in revenues from Business Solutions Iniernational was
mainty due to the disposal of operations in Nextra international in the
fourth quarter 2001 and during 2002. The increase in revenues from
Business Solutions Sweden was mainly due to the full-year effect of
the consolidation of Telenordia. Revenues measured in U.S. dollars in
Comincom/Comuellga increased in 2002 compared to 2001 by
approximately 32%, due to substantial growth in the Russian market
coimbined with significant organic growth. The strengthening of the
Norwegian Kroner (NOK) against the U.S. dollar limited this growih to
17% when measured in NOK.

The 28% increase in internal revenues in 2002 compared to 2001 was
mainty due to the full-year effect of the consolidation of Telenordia. in
Norway, there was a significant increase in internal sales of data
services to Telenor Plus relating to sale of ADSL in the residential
market, partly offset by lower sales of operating services due io high
internal sales in the fourth quarter 2001 to EDB Business Partner in
relation to the contract with Den Norske Bank.




Jnarating eXuoenses

INOX inmillions) o 2CCT 2000
External costs of materiais and traffic charges 1,672 1.832 1,137
Internal costs of materials and traffic charges 1,393 1,190 1,057
Totalcests of materials end trefficcharges 3,265 2322 2,124

Cwin worlk capitalized (19) (12) (21)

Saiaries and gersonnel costs 1,753 1,881 1,382
Other external oparating expenses 1,013 1,557 1,088
Cther internal operating expenses 273 304 287
Denreciation and amaortization 1,099 1,030 558
WWrite-downs 734 1,110 5
Losses on disgosal of fixed assets and

operations 45 6 5
Tolalepereting ezenses 7,824, 828 5489

The decreass in operating expenses in 2032 compared to 2001 was
ned L of cparations in Nexira Internaticnal in the {ounth
¢ during 2002, the effect of cost reduction

reduction it operating axpenses and write-downs related o restruc-
turing activities. The reciassification of some lease agreements from
cperating to finence lease agreaments in the third guarter of 2022
contriouted to a reclassification of NOX 75 miliicn {from other
operating expenses and cost of matariais to depraciation in 2332,

Costs of materials and tra’iic charges increased by 1% in 2002 com-
pared to 200, whereas tatal revenuas increased oy 4%. This increase
in gross margin was mainly cue to disposal of oparations in Nextra
International with low gross margin in 2021

Saleries and nersonnel costs decreased in 2802 compared to 2001 due
to gisposa: of operations in Nexire Internationg!. This was perily offset
oy a generel increase in wages end the consalidation of Telepsardia. in
re was a reducticn in the worlderee in the operating service
divisign. This as a resu't of the waak market conditicns and the
integration with Tewenor’s internal I operating environment.
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Giner ogerating expanses dacreassa oy NOK 575 miilion in 2832 com-
pared te 2030, In 2002, NCK 88 millicn wes expansac for employes tar-
mination benefits and loss centracts, mainly related to the ASP, ojerat-
ing and sofiware services in Norway. In 2CC2, NCK 229 million was
expensad for restructuring end loss contrects. 87 the decrease in cther
cperating expenses, NGK 482 mitlion related to Nextra iniernational,
gdue to disposat of operaticns and reduced restructuring exgenses oy
NJK 167 million compared to 2801, as well as reduced activity in the
remaining Nextra Internationat onerations. Other operating exnanses in
Sweden increased by N £7 miliion from 20301 to 2002 due to Telenor-
dia deing consolidated {or the full year 2002. Otnar opereting expanses
in Tewenor Business Sotuticns Norway decreased by NOX @0 midion from
2001 {o 2002, of which the purchase of external consultancy services
decreased by N3K 85 mittisn from 2001 to 2002. NOK 7€ million was
recerded for employes termiration benefits and loss contracts in Busi-
ness Sotutions Norway, comnarad to NOK 53 miilion in 20051.

Bepreciation and amortization in our Norwegian operations increasec

the cevelonment of the IP patwork and the reclassification in the thirg
guarter of some tease agreements related to operational and cusiomer
eguipmant from operational io finance lease agreements. Depreciation
and amoriization in Tewenor Business Sclutions Intarnational
decreased in 2002 compared to 2001 due to the net effect of the
write-downs perfarmed in 2001 in Nextra international and disposal of

operations in Nextra Internaticnat in 2031, sartly offset by the effect of
consciddetion of Telenordia.

in conneciion with the process of integrating the oparating services
tusinass of Businass Solultions with internal T e3arating envircamant,
vich wes sierted In the third guarter of 2002, it was cecided {o reduce
the numoder of operating pet’orms and focus e aclivitv. Tne sale
notentiat for CA-software and the velua of the service contracs, plat-
torms end eguipment were a.so avaiuaied. Basad on thase valuations,
tangiole assats and intangitle assets ware writien down oy NOK 645
raidion in 2032, Further reduced expectations of fuitre growtl in 2am-
ings, cemained with an assessment of tha prefitability of the individual
companias during 2302, {ed to further write~-downs o7 goodwiil in Nex-
tra International i NCX 73 miliisr. in addition, write~-downs o7 NOK I3
rillion wara mada in Businass Scluticns Swedzen in 2302, mainly relac-
ed to |7 development projacts that were terminated.

Losses on disposal of fixed assets and cperaticns in 2002 related
mainly o loss on se.e of the remaining operations in Switzerland

(Aszzctire) end Naxtra Hungary Kit
¥ -~

2332 dacreased oy NCX i2milicn comzared to
23301, Capita: expenditure in Business Souutions Norway incraased by
NOK 73 million dus to the cumulative effact of NOK 326 millicn, of the
raciassification from operating to finance ease, which was oarily of
szt gy lower investments in the fixed networks/tP natwarks. Jacraase
capital expenditure in Business Solutions International was an eifect of
fewer companies and lower activity.

Qo

Assoclated companies

Lntit 1 October 23350, associated compenies is 3usinass Souwtions
main'y consisted of Telenordiz AB. Telenor consolidzated Telencrdia as
a sudsidiary as cf 1 Ccicher 2031, Cue e reduced exdeciations of
future grewth in 2arnings, the value of gogdwill related "o Telenordia
was writien cown oy NOK BGE million in the second quarter of 2001.

(XD in millicns)

2002 200t 2000
Externai revenuas 3,383 3,312 2,440
Internal revenuss 955 1,458 1,585
Gains on disposal of fixed assets and oparations 3 4] 21
Telel revenues 4,341 4,810 3,885
Total operating expanses 4,730 6,079 3,765
Cpereting grefit (less) (4c9) {L208) 207
Assaciated compeanias (5) 130 {21)
Net financie! items (86) (S4) (19)
Profit (icss] before tanes and mincrity
nlgresis gce) (1,72 161
Recenciliation of EZ31TDA to azerating prafit {loss)
E3ITDA 348 447 554
Depreciation, amortization and write-downs 757 1,655 353
Cperating profit {(igss) {498  (1,208) 221
Invesiments:
- Canax 167 174 335
— Acquisition of businessas 88 749 2,935
Tetal fuli-time eguivelent amplayees
(period end) 2,760 3,172 2,745

- Of which outside Nerway 308 344 148




EDB Business Partner encompasses the former Telenor Programvare
and EDB ASA, which were consolidated effective as of 1 May 1829,
Acguisitions and their effective dates are: Telesciences, Inc. (7 Decem-
ber, 1899); Fellesdata (1 April 2000); BDC (1 juty 2C00); PDS AS (1 April
2001); DnB IT Drift (1 July, 2001); Unigrid AB and AcceptData AS

(1 August 2001), and Infovention AB (1 September 2001).

Operating Trofit (loss) and EBITDA

Operating loss in 2002 decreased compared to 2001, mainly due to a
lower level of write-downs in 2002, while depreciation and amortiza-
tion was in line witn 2001. Operating profit before depreciation, amorti-
zation and write-downs (EBITDA) decreased in 2002 compared to 2001
due io reduced earnings in all areas except the Operations area and
lower gains related to sale of properties in 2001. In the first half of
2002, a restructuring process was initiated in the Banking & Finance,
Telecom and Consultancy areas, and total expenses of NOK 111 million
was recorded for restructuring in 2002 compared to NOK 179 million in
2001. The Operations area showed improved profitadility compared to
2001 as a result of restructuring of the business in 2001 and new ousi-
nesses. Revenues from the Telecom area decreased significantly in the
domestic market. However, underlying margins improved towards the
end of 2002 due to cost reductions. Revenues and margins from the
Banking & Finance decreased in 2002 due to falling sales to financial
institutions both in Norway and Sweden.

In 2002 depreciation and amortization was in line with 2001 Individual
goodwill items have been evaluated on the basis of discounied expect-
ed future cash flows. This resulted in write-downs of goodwill totaling
NOX 355 million, of which NOK 263 million related to the Banking &
Finance area and NOK 83 million to the Consultancy area.

Revenues

Reveanues in 2002 were 10% lower than in 2001. Revenues from the
Operations area increased mainly due to the full year effect of the out-
sourcing contract with Den Norske Bank and the acquisition of the
Swedish subsidiary Unigrid in 2C01. Revenues from the Banking &
Finance, Telecom and Consulting areas decreased due to depressed
mariet conditions. The decline in Telecom was particularly strong in
the domestic market.

Operating expenses

{NOX in rnitiions) 2002 2001 2000
Costs of materials and traffic charges 393 283 252
Own work capitalized - - -

Salaries and personne! costs 1,862 1,904 1,598
Otner operating expenses 1,738 2177 1,561
Depreciation and amortization 393 393 352
Write-downs 364 1,262 1
Lossas on disposal of fixed assets and operations - - -
Total cperating expenses 4,750 6,061 3,765

Write-downs of goodwill totaled NOK 356 million in 2002, a decrease
of NOK 205 miltion compared to 2001, with NOK 283 million related to
the Banking & Finance area and NOX €3 million to the Consultancy
area. Write-downs were based on a review of all individual goodwill
items based on discounted future cash flows.

Capitel expenditure

In 2002 capital expenditure related predominantly to investmentsin
computer hardware and software, mainly within the Operating area of EDB
Business Partner and its mainframe platform. In 2002 parts of the Capital
expenditures was due to replacement of equipment in new businesses.

Revenues

{NOX in miltions) 2002 2001 2000

External revenues

Satellite Services 2,100 1,210 777

Satellite Networks 544 354 327

1tworks (filed for bankruptcy in April 2002) 155 957 883

Inkasso AS (sold in 2000} - - 45

Finans AS (sold in 2000) - - 176

Cther 521 473 330

Total external revenues 3,220 2,224 2,533

Internal revenues. 658 1,038 1,491

Gains on disposal of fixed assets and operations - i 4

Total revenues 3,878 4,633 4,033

Operating profit {loss)

{NOK in mitlions) 2002 2007 2000

Satellite Services 100 27 76

Satellite Networks 39 (118} (120)
Itworks (filed for bankruptcy in April 2002) (23) (265) (128}
Inkasso AS (sold in 2000) - - 17

Finans AS (sold in 2000} - - 35

Other {206) (330) (61)

Total aperating (Loss) {80y  (3B8) {181)

The 21% reduction in operating expenses in 2002 compared to 2001
was primarily related to restructuring measures and lower amortization
and write-downs of goodwill compared to 2001.

Cost of materials increased as a consequence of new businesses in the
Operations area.

The number of employees decreased during 2002 which, together with
other cost saving measures, reduced salaries ana personnel costs and
other operating expenses,

Investments:

- Capex 267 476 599
— Acquisition of businesses 762 252 1677
Satzllite Services (former Sateliite Mobile)

{NCI{ in rillions) 2002 200t 2000
External revenues 2,100 1,210 7717
Internal revenues 53 61 76
Gains on disposal of fixed assets and operations - - -
Total revenues 2,753 1,271 853
Reconcitiation of EBITDA to operating profit

EBITDA 303 152 147
Depreciation, amortization and write-downs 203 125 71
Operating profit 100 27 78

Revenues — Sateliite Services

The increase in external revenues in Satellite Services in 2002 was due to
the consolidation of former COMSAT Mobile Communications, renamed
Telenor Satellite Services Inc. (TSSI), from 11 January 2002, The strength-
ening of the Norwegian Kroner (NOK) adversely affected revenues meas-
ured in NOK from the operations in all of the countries in which Satellite
Services operates. In addition, external revenues in the subsidiary Marlink
were adversely affected by general price reductions on Inmarsat services.
in the Norwegian operations, revenues increased due to increased sale of




Inmarsat traffic volume, and amendments to agreements relating to the
former Eilk cooperation that increased revenues and expenses.

Cnerating profit and ERTDA — Sateilite Services

Operating profit in 2002 increased significantly coinpared to 2001.
Cperating profit includes cepreciation, amortization and write-downs
of tangible and intangible assets which increased dua to the consolida-
tion of TSSI (NOK 71 million). Cperating profit before depreciation,
amortization and write-downs (EBITDA) increased in 2032 compared
to 2001 due to the consotidation of TSSI (NOK 110millicn) and
increased sales volumes, parily offset by lower margins and the
strengthening of the Norwegian Krone.

Capital expenditure and ecguisition of business

- Satellite Services

In 2002, Satellite Services capital expenditure related primarily to
Sealink equipment and to the upgrade of the Eik earth station (NOK
126 million). The acquisition of COMSAT amounted to NOK 743 miltion.
Capital expenditure in 2001 related primarily to Sealink equinment.

Satellite Networks

Teleszrvice recuced exiernal revenues compared to 200! due to lower
dgamand for directory enquiry services, and call center functions. Due
to this deveiepmant Teleservice closed down six units during 2002 and
recordad for woriciorce reduciions of NOK 75 mitlion, as weil as NOK 66
million related to the accounting of previously granted pension bene-
fits in Teleservice.

External revenuas in Innovation increased comnarad ¢o 2001 due ic
increased sates, mainiy in the suosidiaries Oitcamp and Connect. This was
partly cffset by negative development in the subsidiary riber. Innovation
mede write-downs of NOK 30millions reiated to goodwilt in 2002

Canital expenditure — Other

Capital expenditure in 2002 in "other” related meinly tc computer
systems in Teleservice whereas investments in messaging services in
TTYL took place in 2301.

{(NOK in miltions) 2002 23C1 2000
External revenues 544 354 327
Internal revenues 67 89 57
Gains on disposatl of fixed assets and operaticns - - -
Total revenues 671 443 385
Recenciliation of EBITIA to eperaling zrofit {loss)

EBITDA 109 36 (25)
Depreciation and amortization and write-downs 70 154 94
Cperating profit (loss) 39 (118) (12@)

Revenues — Sztellite Networks

External revenues increased in 2002 compared to 2001 due o new
contracts with international organizations entered into in 2032, which
also resulted in increasad sales and supplemantary services.

Qzerating proiit {loss) and EBITDA — Szt=llite Networks

=

An operating profit was recorded in 2002 compared to an operating
loss in 2001, This was due to reduced write-downs ang reducad tosses
on disposal of fixed assets and operations in 2002, as well as a larger
share of revenues being generated from higher margin progucts.

Capital expenditure — Saiciiite Networls

Investments in 2002 (NOK 82 mitlion) anc 2001 (NDK 178 million) were
mainly related to custemer contracis, and in 2001 also related io ihe
Totolotel project in Poland.

leworls

ltworlss filed for bankrupicy on 24 April, 2C02. As a result of large
losses incurred in 2001 and at the beginning of 2002, and with further
losses expected due to fai.ing market conditions, Telenor decided that
there was no sound financial basis to continue to finance the company.

Cther

Other includes principally Telenor Teleservice, Telenor Venture and
Teienor innovation. Th2 unit TTYL was also included in 20C0 and 2333,
but at the end of 2001 Telenor decided to ciese it down. The reduced
operating loss in “other” in 2002 compared to 2001 was dute to losses
and write-downs in 2001 in TTYL, partly offset by operating losses in
Teleservice in 2002,

Revenues

(NDK in mitlians) 2002 2001 2000
External revenues 315 375 195
Internal revenues 2,392 2,399 2,857
Gains on disposal of fixed assets and operations 143 5,116 657
Total revenues 2,830 7,820 3,609
Reconciliation of EBITDA to aperating prafil ((oss)

E3ITDA (477) 4,593 445
Depreciation, amortization and write-downs 708 454 429
Operating profit (toss] (1,185) 4,139 [i°)
Investments:

~ Capax 1,531 2,642 1,372
- Investments in businesses 57 127 271

This area comprises Real Estate, Research and Developmant, Strategic
Group Projects, the internal IT depariment, Group Treasury, Interna-
tiona: Services and centrai stafi and support functions.

Revenues

External revenues cecreased in 2002 due to lower sales to former
Telenor companies within IT operations and termination of leases on
properties. Gains in 2001 were mainly related to the sale of Telenor
Media. Remaining gains in 2001 and 2002 were mainly reiated to sales
of properties.

Crerating prafit (loss) and EBITDA

in 2002, an operating loss was recorded compared to an operating
profit in 2301. This development was connected to the gain from the
sale of Telenor Media in 2001 and increased depreciation, amortization
and wiite-cowns in 2002, The high operating profit befcre depreciaticn,
amortization and write-downs (EBITDA) in 2001 compared tc an
EZBITCA-lcss in 2002 was connacted to the gain frem the sale of Telenor
Media in 2001. NOK 327 mitlion was expensed in 2002 due to workforce
reductions and ioss contracts, compared to NOK 74 million in 2001
related o the establishment of tha Telemuseum foundation. In addition,
NOK 48 mitlion was expensed in 2002 in connaction with iT-selutions
which no longer are in use. Of the NOK 327 million expensed in 2002,
NOK 137 miilion was related to workforce redguctions and NOK 190 mi{-
licn was astimated losses on progerty iease contracts.

Expenses for lease of properties and consuitancy feas were reduced in
2032 compared to 2301. The decrease in ieased properiies was due to




investments in own properties which have replaced rented premises and
to the accrual for loss on property leases as of 30 June 2002. Consul-
tancy fees were reduced due to lower activity in project and acquisition
activities. NOK 82 million was recorded as losses on disposal in 2002,
mainty relating to the bankruptcy of the former subsidiary Itworks AS.

Depreciation and amortization increased in 2002 due to the invest-
ments in property and new IT solution. In 2002, NOK 42 million was
written-down on data eguipment and IT solutions which no longer are
in use, compared to write-downs of NOK 23 million in 2001.

Capital expenditure

Capitat expenditure in 2002 and 2001 was mainly related to the new
head office at Fornebu outside of Oslo and the new IT solutions for the
Group. The investments were reduced in 2002 compared to 2001 as
these nrojects were completed during 2002.
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Telenor sold the former subsidiary Telenor Media, effective as of 1
October 2001, and consequently Media was consolicated for the first
nine monihs of 2001 only. The tables below are included to show the
effect of Telenor Media on the results in the periods where Tetenor
Media was consolicated as a subsidiary.

2 months
{NCK in millions) 2801 2000
External revenues 1,258 1,557
Internal revenues 80 98
Gains on disposal of fixed assets and operations 5 -
Total revenues 1,343 1,655
Total operating expenses 1,081 1,354
Operating profit 262 301
Assaciated companies (12} 6
Net financial items 21 33
Profit befcra taxes and minority interests 271 %2
investments:
- Capex 56 35
— Acquisition of businesses 127 35
Totai fuli-time egquivalent employees
{period end) - 1,908
- Of which abroad - 990
Operating expenses

9 months
(NCK i mitiions) 2001 2000
External costs of materials and traffic charges 158 250
Internal costs of materials and traffic charges 4 5
Totel costs of materials and traffic charges 163 235
Own work capitalized - -
Salaries and personnel costs 406 512
Other external operating expenses 344 389
Other internal operating expenses 117 140
Depreciation and amortization 51 58
Write-downs - -
Losses on disposal of fixed assets and operations - -
Total operating expenses 1,081 1,354

WERKINE

Working capital {current assets less current liabilities) was negative by
NOK 8.4 billion as of 31 December 2002, negative oy NOK 0.8 billion as

of 31 December 2001 and positive by NOK 0.2 billion as of 31 December
2000. Telenor believes that taking into consideration established
credit facilities and having due regard for the sources of liquidity
reserves (including committed credit facilities), credit rating and
access to capital markets, Telenor has sufficient liquidity and working
capital to meet present and future requirements. Telenor's sources of
liquidity are described below.

WISUTITY

You should read the cash flow statement in the consotidated financial
statements for detailed figures related to the Group's cash flow.

Net cash flow from operating activities increased in 2002 compared to
2001 by NOKX 5.9 bitlion to NOK i2.9 villion. This increase was primarily
due to increased revenues and operating margins and change in
accruals inctuding accounts receivables and prepayments, and was
partly offset by increased payments of taxes and interest. The consoli-
dation of DiGi.Com in 2001 and of Pannon GS¥ and Kyivstar in 2002
contributed NOX 3.1 biition of the increase.

Net cash flow from investment activities was & net paymeant of approxi-
mately NOK 21.7 billion, as opposed 0 a net cash receipt in 2001 of
approximately NOK 20.9 billion, mainly due to the sale of businesses,
including associated companias, and tangible assets in 2G01. The level
of cash payments of capital expendiiure cdecreased by approximately
NOK 2.5 billion in 2002 compared to 2001, but payments for acquisi-
tions of businesses (net of cash acquired) increased by approximataty
NOK 8.1 billion in 2002 compared to 2001 mainly due to the acguisition
of the shares of Pannon GSM and Canal Digital which Telenor did not
already own.

In 2002, in order to finance part of the investments in businessas in
2002 Tetenor increased the interesi-bearing liabitities, and as a result,
the net cash flow from financing activities was an inflow of approxi-
matety NOK 8.6 billion. In 2002, Telenor paid dividends of NOK 0.5 bil-
tion, and cash and cash equivalenis in foreign currency measured in
NOK ware negatively affected by approximately NOK 0.3 billion.

At 31 December 2002, Telenor held cash and casn equivalents of NOK
5.3 billion, a decrease of approximately NOX 0.6 billion compared to 31
December 200i.

{(NOKin millians) 3T

2007 2000
Fixed networks 3,001 4,456 3,550
Mobile networks 2,205 1,610 1,054
Satellite networks 15 9 15
Properties 2,840 1,102 680
Support systems (office and computer
equipment, software, cars etc.) 3.042 2.891 2,083
Other intangible assets 455 316 1,381
Work in progress (net additions) and other (2,669) 1,250 1,658
Total Capital expenditure (Capex)! 8,882 11,334 10,423
Investments in businesses” 12,411 7,212 40,257
Total 1300 18,846 380,672

"Capital expenditure (Capex) is investments in tangible and intangible
assets.

¥ Investments in businesses are acquisition of shares and participations,
including acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses not organized as
separate companies.




Capital expenditure in 2003 is expected to De in line with 2002 daspite
the consotidation of Pannan GSM, Kyivstar and Canal Digital. The actu-
al amounts and the timing of the capital expenditure may vary sub-
stantially from the estimatas.

Investments in Norway totaled NOK 7.9 biltion in 2002, of which

NOK 2.5 billion ware acquisitions of businesses, including Canal Digital
Group. Telenor invested NOK 1.1 billion in real estate (including work in
progress) mainly in the new headguarters located at Fornebu outside
of Oslo. Telenor maae other investments fcr a total of NOK 4.3 illion in
Norway, including investments in the fixed and mobile networks, equip-
ment used in customer contracts and in operational systems and
administrative support systems, of which NOK 0.5 billion was invasted
in connection with strategic Group projects, including the support sys-
tems and IT infrastructure at the new headguariers. The decrease in
work in progress was due mainly to the completion of certain real
estate investments and fixed networks in 2002. Invesiments outside
Norway totaled NOK 13.4 billion in 2002, of which NOK 9.9 billion were
acquisitions of businesses. Total capex outside Norway was NOK 3.5
gillion in 2002 of which NG 2.6 biltion was capex in DiGi.Com, Pannon
GSM and Kyivstar.

The table below lists the most significant acquisition of businesses and
the acguisition cost price, including capital contributions to associated
companies, for each of the last three years.

(NOK in mitlions} 2002 2007 20060
Pannon GSIM RT. 7,906 - -
COMSAT Wobile Communications 743 - -
Utfors AB 153 - -
Glocalnet AB 102 - -
VIAG Interkom - - 8,103
DiGi.Com bhd - 3,223 599
VimpeiCom (incl VimpelCom-Region) 432 255 445
DTAC/UCOM - - 6,548
Telenordia AB - 121 1,313
Connact Austria 44 264 869
Canal Digital 2,165 378 324
Kyivstar G.S.M. ISC 294 254 64
INMARSAT - - 1,546
A-pressen ASA - - 547
Sonofon - - 14201
Wireless Matrix Corporation - 317 -
Otrum Electronics ASA - 273 ~
Sweden On-Line AB - 165 ~
Marlink (SAIT Communicatians S.A) - 189 -
OniWay 217 324 ~
Unigrid AB - 122 -
IT operations DnB & Nordea 20 597 287
Feliesdata AS - - 2,528
Nextra Czech — purchase of operations - - 142
XTML/CIX Lid - - 299
AlfaNETT AS - - 499
Other 334 660 1,937
Total Acquisition of businesses 12,4171 7.2%2 40,250

TR ot T3
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Telenor will use cash {low from operations, debt, equity ‘inencing and
proceeds from potential disposals of assets to finance future invesi-
ments. Piease refer to note 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements for more information related to interest-bearing liabilities
and note 30 for equity financing and note 28 and 29 for information of

option pians and emaioyee stock ownership program.

Telenar ASA issue debt in the domestic and international capital mar-
kets mainly in fcrm of commercial paper and bonds. In particular,
Telenor use the euro commercial paper program, U.S. commeicial paper
program, eurc medium term note program and three domestic “opan
oond programs” with different maturities. In order to establish satisfac-
icry access to these funding sources, with respact to both volume and
price, Telenor is dependent on maintaining a satisiactory credit rating.
Telenor's iong term and short-term credit rating is A2/P-1 from Moody's
and A-/A-2 from Standard & Poor’s, both with stable outloolk.

In order to secure satisfactory financial flexibility, in 2000 Telenor
established a USD 1.0 billion commitied syndicated revolving credit
fecility maturing in 2005, and in 2002 a €1.0 billion committed syndi-
cated revolving credit facility maturing in 2003. The euro facility has a
one-year term out option for the amount cutstanding as of November
2003. According to the financing policy, these committed credit facili-
ties shoud at any time be available to refinance all of Telenor's cut-
standing commarcial papar.

- the general meeting held on 8 May 2002, it was resotvad to renew
Telenoy’s board of directors’ aLtharity to increase the share capital io
NGK 1,054,776,488 by issuing up 10 177,462,748 naw ordinary shares,
nominal value NOK 6 each. The board's authority expires on 1 July 2003.

As of 31 December 2002, Telenor held 28,103,172 treasury shaves. The tax
vase cost of the treasury shares is somewhat uncertain, and in Telenor's
apinion this cost eguals zero. Thus, if the shares are disposed of for cash, @
capitat gain may ba recognized for tax purposes depending on the consid-
eration received. If the shares are swapped against other shares & capital
gain may be deferred by application to the Norwegian Ministry of Finance,
No capital gain shouid arise if the shares are cancelied.
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The table below shows the contractual obligations and commercial commitments as well as guarantee liabilities as of 31 December 2002.

Payments due

Less than Qver

{NOKin millions} Total tyzar{2003) 2-3years 4-3 years Syears
Interest bearing liabitities
Short-term interest-bearing liabilities 3,591 3,591 - - -
Long-term interest-bearing liabilities 26,877 3,240 7,002 9,114 1,521
Capital lease obligations 1.928 442 647 364 475
Committed purchase obtigaticns"

Rent of premises 3.352 746 8971 704 931

Rent of cars, office equipment etc 216 107 85 15 9

Rent of satellite capacity etc 1,845 945 778 85 37

IT related agreements 768 420 332 16 -

Other contractual obligations 1,034 679 346 9 -
Commitied investments”

Associated companies 23 4 19 - -

Properties and equipment 356 348 4 4 -

Other contractual investments 1,325 269 1,056 - -
Total contractual cash obligations 41,315 10,791 11,240 10,311 8,973
Gurantees (expire) 2,313 B2 1,572 - 251

"The table does not include agreements under which Tetenor has no binding obligation to purchase or future investments required under the UMTS license

awarded to Tetenor in Norway.

You should read note 20and 21 to the consolidated financial state-
ment for additional information on interest-bearing liabilities. You
should read note 25 for more information on contractual obligations
and commercial commitments and note 23 for Guarantee liabilities.
TUARTIATIVE AND s
Please refer to Notes 20 and 21 for a description of funding activities in
Telenor.
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Sensitivity analysis. Telenor adopted sensitivity analysis as the
approach to quantify market risk. Fair values have been astimated in
conjunction with the principles described in note 21.

Interest rate risk is quantified by change in fair value given a 10% par-
allel shift in interest rate curves. Exchange rate risk is quantified dy
change in fair value from a 10% change in spot rates against the Nor-
wegian Kroner. Changes in market volatitities will change the fair value

of option instruments. Volatility risk is quantified by change in fair
value due to a 10% change in implied volatilities.

The model underlying the sensitivity analysis includes derivatives as
well as bank deposits and borrowings, short-term interest bearing
investments, commercial paper and bonds. The fair values of the equi-
ty investments or cash flows from these assets are not taken into
account. As such the analysis does not show the total net exposure to
financial marlket risk.

The assumptions used in the model for partial movements in risk fac-
tors are not based upon empirical observations. Correlations between
different exchange rates, short and long-term interest rates as well as
the interest rates of the different currencies in the portfolio are not
taken into account. As a result, the total effects of deficiencies in the
assumptions implicit in the model might be substantial and the hypo-
thetical gains and lossas calculated do not express management's
expectations of future changes in fair value.

Fairvelue as interest rates Exchange rates Vaolatiiity
2802 of 31.12.02 ~10 % 0% -0 % 0% -10% 8%
Foreign exchange derivatives 699 52 (51) (84) 84 - -
Interest rate derivatives (12) 48 (44) 2 (2) (n 1
Net interest-bearing liabilities (27,880) (344) 321 3,194 (3,194) - -
Totai {27,183} (244) 226 3,112 {3,112) (i) T

Falr value as interest rates Exchangz rates Vetatility
2007 of 31.12.81 ~10 % 0% -10% 0% -1G % 10 %
Foreign exchange derivatives 805 68 (65) (96) 86 - -
Interest rate derivatives (28) (30) 35 10 (10) - -
Net interest-bearing liabilities (14,383) (153) 141 1,968 (1,968) - -
Total {13,506} (115} P17 1,882 (1,882) - -




The increase in market vaiue of net interest-vearing liabilities as of
31 Becember 2002 compered to 31 Becember 2001 was primarily due
to acauisitions during 2002. At the end of 2002, Telenor increased
interest bearing liabilities by NOK 2.4 billion as a resuit of a tax claim
regarding the sale of Sonofon Holding A/S and by an additional NOK
0.5 biltion as a resutt of a court case in Greeca.

In 2002, the increasa in the interest rate sensitivity was mainly due to
two faciors. Firstly, the absolute size of net inierest bearing liabilities
increased resulting in an increase in the quantified interest rate sensi-
tivity, nolding curation constant. Secondty, the average duration of the
portfotio increased from 1.3 to 1.7 years, which also increased the inter-
est rate sensitivity of the porifolio.

In 2002 the exchange rate risk quantified in this analysis also increased.
Telenor increased the ievel of net investmant hadging as a consequence
of the ecquisitions that ware made in 2002. Furtharmore, as of 31 Becem-~
ber 2002 Telenor consolidates more subsidiarias that have interest-bear-
ing liabilities cenominated in othar currencias tnhan Norwagian Kroner.

Therisk arising from changas in ontion volgtilities is insignificant duzs to
ihe small valume of oatiors in the portfolio.

j=8

Critlcal accounting pelicles under Norwegian GAAR an
estimates

Certain amounts included in or affecting tha financial statements and
ralated disclosure must be estimated, requiring Telenor to make
assumptions with respect tc values or conditions which cannot be
known with certainty at the time the financial statements are prepared.
A "critical accounting policy” is one which is both important to the por-
trayal of the company's financial condition and resulis and requires
management's most difficuit, subjective or complex juagments, often
as & resudt of the need tc make estimates about the effect of matters
that are inharently uncertain. Telenor evaluates such policies on an
ongoing basis, based upon historical results and experience, consulta-
tion with experts, trends and other methods considered reasonabie in
the particular circumstances, as well as forecasts and how these might
change in the future.

impalrment.  Telenor nave made significant investments in tangible
assets, geodwill and oiner intangible assats, associated companies
and joint ventures and other investments. These assets and invesi-
ments are tested for impairmant when circumsiances trigger an
impairment test. Factors considerad important whicn coulid trigger an
impairment review inciude the following:

o Significant fall in market values;

o Significant underparformance relative tc historicat or projected
future operating results;

< Significant changes in the use of assets or the strategy for the overall
ousiness;

- Significant negative industry or economic trends.

The principles for impairment testing are described in the accounting
nolicies. For tangible and intangible assets, the assessment is made
cased on estimated recoverable amount, which is the higher of esti-
mated discounted future cash flow and sales price tess cost to sell.
When sucn amounts are less than the carrying amount of the esset, a
write-down to estimated recoverable amount is recorded.

If quoted market prices for an asset or a company are not available, or

the guoted market prices cannot be regarded as fair mariet value dus
te low trading liguidity, fair market value is determined orimarily using
the anticipated cash flows discaunted at a rate commensurate with the
risk involved. Estimating fair values of assets and companies mustin
part be based on management evaluations, including estimates of
future performance, revenue generating capacity of the assets,
assumptions of the future market condgitions and the success in mar-
keting of naw products and services. Changes in circumstances and in
management's assumptions may give rise to impairment losses in the
relevant periods.

Goodwill is reviewed dased on an estimated fair value of the reporting
upit it refers to. Fair value of the reporting unit is tased cn guoted mar-
ket share price (adjusted to reflect a contro! premium for those sud-~
sidiaries where Telenar have effective control) or discounted cash
{lows of the reparting unit where guoted market share orice is not
available. US GAAP prescrides a two-phase process for impairment
testing of goodwiil. The first phase screans for impairment; if impair-
iment is necessary, the second phase measures the impairment. Wnen
imoairment is identified, the carrying amcunt of goodwill is reduced to
its estimated fair vaive of the reporting unit.

For the impairmant test in accordance with US GAAP, Terenor use
undiscounted cash flows, except for goodwill. This cid not result in any
material difference from the results of the impairment test in accor-
cance with Norwegian GAAP as cf 31 December 2002.

During 20371 and 2032, the market orices for telecom companies and
assets have dacreassd significantty. In 2001 end 2002, Telencr made
substantial write-downs of tangible assets, gooawiil and other intangiole
assets, asscciated companies and joint ventures end other investmanis.

Depreciation end emoriizativn.  Depreciation and amortizaticn is
based on managament estimates of the future economic iifetime of tan-
gib.e and intangible assets. Estimaies may change due to technological
davelopments, competition, changas in market conditions and cthar fac-
tors and may resu't in changes in the estimated economic lifetime and in
the amortization or depreciation charges. Telenor shoriened the depre-
ciation time for somae tangible assets in the mobile netwerks in Malaysia
in 2002 and in the Norwegian fixed and mobile networks in 2001,

Business combinations. Telenor is reguired to allocate the purchase
price of acquired comaanies to the tangible and intangible assets
acguired and liabilitizs assumed based on their estimated fair values.
For larger acquisitions, Teienor have engaged independent third-party
appraisal tirms to assist in determining the fair values of the assets
acouired and liavilities assumed. Such valuations recuire management
to make significant estimates and assumptions. The significanrt pur-
chased intangible assets recorded by Telenor inciude customer con-
tracts, orands and ticenses. The significant tangible asssts include
mainly networks.

Criticat astimates in valuing certain tangivle and intangible assets
include but are not limited to: future expected cash flows from customer
contracts and licenses, remacement cost for brand and for tangible
assets. Management's estimates of feir value are based upon assumg-
tions believed to be reasonable, but which are innerently uncertain and
unpredictable and, as a resutlt, actual results may differ from estimates.

Ceferred tax assets, valuztion allowences {or deferred tax assels, end
talosses.  Telenorrecord valuation allowances o reduce deferred

tax assets to an amount that is more likely than not to be realized.




Telenor’s income taxes have been increased by valuation allowances,
mainly related to its foreign operations. While Telenor have considered
future taxable income and feasible tax planning strategies in determin-
ing the amount of the valuation allowances, any difference in the
amount that ultimately may be realized would be included as income in
the period in which such a determination is made.

Furthermore, Telenor has not recorded deferred tax assets that may be
realized upon possible fuiure disposal of shares in subsidiaries and
associated companies.

To the extent Telenor ASA should dispose of snares in Telenor Eiendom
Holding AS, or dispose of shares in entities demerged from Telenor
Eiendom Holding AS, any taxes will be computed on the difference
between the consideration received and the high tax cost of the shares
determined in connection with the in kind contribution prior to the IPC
in December 2000. You should read note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Telenor has realized significant tax losses on shareholdings, both
through liguidation and sale of shares to third parties and between
companies in the Group. Even though Telenor believes that these tax
tosses are tax deductible, in 2002 the Norwegian tax authorities chal-
lenged its evaluations in connection with one of the transactions. You
should read note 13 to tnhe consolidated financial statements.
Pension costs, pension obligations and pension plan assets. Calcu-
lation of pension costs and net pension obligations (the difference
between pension obligations and pension plan assets) are made based
on a number of estimates and assumptions. Changes in and deviations
from estimates and assumptions (actuarial gains and losses) affect fair
vatue of net pension liabitities, but are not recorded in the financial
statements unless the accumulated effect of such changes and devia-
tions exceed 10% of the higher of pension benefit obligations and pension
plan assets at the beginning of the year. From 10% up to 15% the excess
amount is recognized in the profit and loss statement over the estimated
average remaining service period and any amount in excess of 15%s
recognized over a shorter period of 5 years. Actuaria. losses have
increased in the last three years (starting as of 31 December 1998), and
were estimated to be approximately NOK 0.9 billion as of 31 December
2002. The actuarial losses related mainly to Norwegian defined benefit
plans, and were approximately 22% of the pension benefit obligations as
of 31 December 2002. In 2003, Telenor expect to amortize approximately
NOK 70 million of these actuarial losses as part of pension costs.

The increase in actuarial losses was mainly due to the reduction in dis-
count rate as of 31 December 1999, lower actual return on plan assets
than estimated due to the reduction in share prices in the last three

years and higher salary increases and pensions adjustments than orig-
inally estimated in the latest years. Telenor's key assumptions for the
Norwegian defined benefit plans, which constitute the major part of
the pension plans, are evaluated each year. The last time Telenor
deemed it necessary to revise the assumptions was at the end of 1999,
when Telenar, among other things, reduced each of the discount rate,
and the expected return on plan assets, by 0.5 percentage points. As of
31 December 2002, Telenor’s assumptions were: 8.5% discount rate,
7.5% expected return on plan assets, 3.5% rate of compensation
increase, 3.0% expected increase in the social security base amount,
3.0% annual adjustments to pensions and a 12-year estimated average
remaining service period. Changes in these assumptions, as well as
deviations from these assumptions and other actuarial assumptions,
may affect the estimated net present value of net pension obligations,
actuarial gains and losses and future years pension cosis

Legal proceedings. Telenor are subject to various legal proceedings
and claims, the outcomes of which are subject to significant uncertain-
ty. Telenor evaluates, among other factors, the degree of probability of
an unfavorable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate
of the amount of loss. Unanticipated events or changes in these factors
may require us to increase the amount accrued for any matter or
accrue for a matter that has not been previously accrued because it
was not considered probable.

Inflation

Telenor's results in recent years have not been substantially affected
by inflation. Inflation in Norway as measured by the consumer price
index during the years ended 31 December 2CC0, 2001 and 2002 was
3.1%, 3.0% and 1.3% respectively.

Norwegian GAAP compared with US GAAP

Telenar's consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
Norwegian GAAP, which differs from US GAAP in several respects.
Telenor have prepared a reconciliation of net income for the years
ended 31 December 2000, 2001 and 2002, and of shareholders' equity
as of 31 December 2001 and 2002.

The significani differences between Norwegian GAAP and US GAAP
affecting Telenor’s net income and shareholders equity are described
in Note 31 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

Under US GAAP, net income (loss) for the years ended 31 December
2000, 2001 and 2002 would have been NOIK 1,082 miltion, NOK 7,004
million and NOK (3,658) million, respectively, as comparad to NOK
1,076 million, NOK 7,072 million and NOK (4,298) million, respectively,
under Norwegian GAAP.
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{in NDX milliens except par share armounts) Note 2202 ot 222
Reveniyes 2 43,338 41,334 33,53C
Gains on disposal of fixed assets and operations 2 158 5.436 1,042
Tetalrevenues 43,328 £3,24D 37,372

Crperating excenses

Cost of materials and traffic chargas 4 12.485 10,204 9,605
Own work canitalized 5 (567} (1,002) (1,544)
Salaries and perscianal casts 6,7 10,104 10,128 10,513
Other operating exgenses 8% 13,188 12,397 8,375
Losses on disposal of fixed assets and operations 147 63 58
Depreciation and armortization 14,15 10,236 7,251 5,821
Whrite-downs 14,15 3,553 3,822 113
Tztal operating expgenses 48,746 42,883 33,843
Cperating profit {lass) 1320} 3,177 3,828
Associated comzanies 16 (2,430) 8,237 €22y

Financial income and expenses

Financial income 567 897 828
Financial expenses (1,833) (1,396) (1,921)
Net currency gain ((oss) (311 (402} (64)
Net gain (loss) and write-downs of financial items (789) (258) 223
Net firancial items 12 {2,3C8) (1.3} {834}
Profit {loss) before taxes and minerity Interests (3,123} wezs 0 2L33
Taxes 13 480 (3,897) (851)
Prafit (loss) belfore minority interests {4,653) 5,358 1,142
Minority interesis 358 721 (66)
Nt income {loss) 14,288} 7079 1,078
Net income (loss) per share in NOK (basic), excluding treasury shares (2.422) 3.9¢4 0.754

Net incoma (ioss) per share in NOK (diluted), excluding treasury shares (2.422) 3.920 0.754
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{in NOX rriltions) Note 2002 2001
Assets
Deferred tax assets 13,14 4,866 600
Goodwill 14 10,100 7,439
Dther intangible assets 14 4,845 2,161
Tangible assets 15 41,002 37,608
Financial assets 16 13,249 18,287
Total fixed assets 74,162 85,L25
Inventories 632 513
Current receivables, etc 17 8,868 9,701
Short-term investments 18 532 475
Cash and cash equivalents 27 5,264 5,839
Totai currant assels 15,225 16,528
Total assets 80,458 82,5823
Zguity and liabilities
Shareholder’s equity 33,685 42,144
Minority interests 3,603 3,539
Total ecuity and minority Interests 37,268 45,383
Liabitities
Provisions 19 1,176 761
Long-term interest-bearing liabilities 20, 21 28.805 18,497
Long-term non-intarest-bearing liabilities 22 473 388
Tetal long-term liabitities 22,278 18,885
Short-term interest-bearing liabilities 20 3,581 672
Short-term non-interest-bearing liabilities 22 18,125 16,622
Total short-term iabitities 21,718 17,224
Total equity and tiabilities 89,458 82,8623
Morigages 23 8,892 5,000
Guarantee liabilities 23 2,515 2,719
Contingent liabilities 24
Oslo, 19 March 2003
°
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President & CEO
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Telenor Group 1 January — 31 December

{in NOK miltions) 2002 200t 2000
Proceeds from sale of goods and services 50,480 39,71 35,684
Payments to suppliers of goods and services and of other cperating expenses (25,056} (22,234) (16,781)
Payments to emplcyees, pensions, sacial security tax, tax deductions (9,643) (9,186) (9,219)
Interest etc. received 796 739 658
Interest etc. paid (1,629) (1,405) {1,850)
Other proceeds and payments retated to operating activities (142) 3656 439
Payment of taxes and public duties (1,948} {1,058) (2.216)
Nat cash flow from operating activities" 12,838 6,283 3,915
Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible assets 210 1,413 435
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets (9,088) (11,558) (8,560)
Cash receipts from sale of subsidiaries and associated companies, net of cash sold 191 37,919 3,032
Cash payments on purchase of subsidiaries and associated companies, net of cash received (12,232) (6,125) (39,289)
Proceeds from sale of other investments 271 314 759
Payments for other investments (1,069) (1,072} (3.679)
Net cash flow from investment activities (21,727) 20,8621 (47,308)
Proceeds from tong-term liabilities 19,567 4,199 43,948
Proceeds from short-term liabilities 184 442 14,974
Payments on long~term liabilities (10,140) (28,103) (18,512)
Payments on shori-term liabitities (549) (482) (15,027)
Proceeds from issuance of shares to minorities in subsidiaries 181 89 1,589
Proceeds from issuance of shares 19 21 15,168
Purchase of own shares from and dividend paid to minorities in subsidiaries - - (82)
Payment of dividends (621) (532) (500)
Ne? cash flow from financing activities 8,841 (24,363) 41,558
Effect on cash and cash equivalents of changes in foreign exchange rates (347) 15 17
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (575) 3,533 182
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 5,839 2,306 2,124
Czsh and cash eguivalents at 31 December 5,264 3,838 2,306

"Reconciliation:

Net income (4,298) 7,079 1,076
Minority interests (358) (721) 66
Taxes (480) 3,897 861
Profit before taxes and minority interests (5,136) 10,255 2003
Taxes paid (2,050) (1,173) (1,643)
Net gain/loss including write-downs of financial items 778 (5.115) (1,207)
Depreciation, amortization and write-downs 13,789 11,073 5,934
Associated companies 2,450 (8.237) 6592
Changes in inventories (39) 32 (38)
Changes in accounts receivable and prepayments from customers 1,593 (368) (207)
Changes in accoun’s payable and prepaid expenses 126 (436) 529
Bifference between expensed and paid pensions 359 (106) (ain
Currency losses not relating to operating activities 391 387 48
Change in ather accruals 597 701 (85)

Met cash flow from operating activities 12,858 5,993 5,815
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Other Cumulative
Share paid QOther  transtation Treasury
Nom Capital capital equity  adjustment shares Total
Number  Amount {NCK {NCK {NOK {(NOK {(NOK (NOK
of shares {(NOI) mill.) mill.) miil.) mill.) mitl.) mill.)
Balance as of
31 December 1989 1430,000,000 ] 8400 5500 6,021 2 25,033
Net income for the year 2000 1,076 1.076
Dividends (532) (532)
Translation adjustments (349) {349)
Share dividend issue 30,000,000 6 180 (180) -
Share issue 372,151,889 6 2,233 13,013 15,246
Treasury shares 180 (180) -
Balance as of
31December 2000 802,151,888 [ 10,813 18,5613 6,365 (337) (180) 35,474
Net income for the year 2001 7,079 7,079
Dividends (621) (621)
Translation adjustments 192 192
Employee share issue 578,753 6 3 17 20
Distribution of treasury shares 6 (m i -
Balance as of
37 Dzcember 200 % ,802,730,652 6 1C,216 18,512 13,023 (145) {169) 42,144
Net incame for the year 2002 (4,298) (4,298)
Dividends (799) (799)
Translation adjustments (2,723) (2.723)
Employee share issue 695,520 6 4 15 19
Consolidation Canal Digital (658) {658)
Balance as of
31 December 2002 1,803,426,172 [ 10,820 18,634 7,268 (2.868) {168) 33,685
2002 2001 20C0

Average number of shares primary {exclusive treasury shares)

Average number of shares fully diluted (exclusive treasury shares)

Dividend per share in NOK

1,774,637.008 1,772,330,267  1,426,509,450
1,774,637,008 1,774,086,782  1,426,649,837
0.45 0.35

0.30

The dilutive effect on the average number of shares relates to the share bonus program in 2001. Please see note 30 for further

information.

In 2002 sharehotders’ equity decreased by NGK 658 million in connection with the consolidation of Canal Digital. As of 30June
2002 the acqguisition of the remaining 50% of Canat Digital was completed and Telenor abtained effective control. Due to the
transfer of risk for the company’s results of operations at the iime of entering into the agreement to acquire Canal Digital in
June 2001, 50% of the company’s loss, amortization of net excess values and calculated financing expenses in the period
between the agreement and consolidation has been recorded directly against the shareholder's equity.

Equity available for dividends from Telenor ASA was NOK 7,652 million as of 31 December 2002.



Minority interests

Mirorit Wirerity Winority Minaority Mincrity

Minority gartcf part of 2art of interests interests

skerein  netincomz  netinceme netincome inthe balance inthe belenca

{in NOK miliions) % 31.12.02  (loss)2032 {ioss) 2001  (loss)2000 sheet 31.72.02 shest 3L.72.2°
Telenor Venture AS 35.3 (6) (83) 22 65 71
Telenor Venture Il ASA 480 (67) (7) - 143 136
Kyvistar 6.S.M. ISC 458 51 - - 787 -
0JSC Comincom/Combellga 250 15 6 3 160 182
DiGi.com bhd 39.0 47 44 - 1,113 1,386
GrameenPhone Ltd” 53.6 162 126 53 328 247
EDB Businesspariner ASA 48.2 (555) (764) 13 914 1,462
Other (5) (43) (25) 93 38
Totel (358] (721} G5 3,603 3.53¢

Whean Telenor AS was estaolished as a public company on 31 Octeoer 1924, assets and liatilities were transferred at their car-
rying values as recorded in the final records of the Norwegian State Administration, except for reguired adjustmeants to comply
with Norwegian generally accepted accounting principtes (Norwagian GAAP).

The Norwegian Government formed Telenar ASA in July 2000 to aci as the holding company for the Telenor Group. in October
2008, the Norwegian Government contriouted all of the shares of Telenor AS (subsequently renamed Teienor Communications
AS), the former holding company for the Telenor Group, to Tetenor ASA in exchange for ail of the issued shares of Telenor ASA.
Telenor ASA was formed with identical share capital as Telenor AS, and prior o its acguisition of Telenor AS had no assets of iia-
bilities and conducted no operations other than those incidental to its formation. For purposes of these consotidated financigl
statements, Telenor ASA is treaied as if it had been the parent company of the Telenor Group for all periods presented.

The consolidated financial statements for Telenor ASA and its subsidiaries (the Group) are prepared in accordance with Nor-
wegian GAAP. The Group's accounting principles diffar, in certain respects, from United States generally accepted accounting
principles (US GAAP). The differences and the related effects on the Group's nat income, shareholder's equity, revenues and
total assets are sei forth in note 31.

Consclidation principles

The Group consolidated accounts include Telenor ASA and subsidiaries in which Telenor ASA has effective contrel. Subsidiaries
are consoclidated from the moment effective control is obtained. Effective cantrol genarally exists when Telenor has maie than
53% ownership.

Successive share purcnases are treated separately when the successive purchases are small, fair value has increased signifi-
cantly or @ long time has passad since the previous share purchase.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances hava tean eliminated.

Investments in joint ventures and entities in which Telenor has an equity ownership interest normally of 20 to 50% and exercis-
es significant influence are accounted for using the eguity method.

Investments considered to e of a temporary nature are accounted for at cost.

Increase in minority interest from a subsidiary's equity transactions and sale of shares in a subsidiary are recorded at fair value
as minority interest. The differance betwean the minority interest measured at fair value and the recorded equity in the suo-
sidiary is amortized or written down through aliocating results to minority.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net of tangible and intangible assets acquirec and
tiabilitias incurred in dusinass combinations. Goodwiil is amoertized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic
life, based on an individual assessment.




Revenue recegnition
Revenues are primarily comprised of traffic fees, subscription and connection fees, intercannection fees, fees for leased linas
and leased networks, fees for data network services, fees for TV distribution and satellite services, IT service, installation and
sale of customer equipment. Revenues from directory advertising activities of Telenor Media are included up to 1 October
2001, the effective date for the sate of this subsidiary.

For PSTN/ISDN, mobile tetephony, leased lines, TV distribution, satellite services and other network oased services, traffic rev-
enues and interconnection revenues are recognized based on actual traffic while subscription fees, including ADSL, are recog-
nized as revenue over the subscription period. Revenues related to prepaid phone cards are deferred and recorded as revenua
based on the actual use.

Revenues from connection fees that are received from the sale of new subscriptions are recognized at the time of sale to the
extent of direct costs incurred. Direct costs incurred in connection with mobile connection revenues consist primarily of the first
payment of distributor commission, costs for credit check, cost of the SIM card and the cost of the printed new customer infor-
mation package. For the fixed line connection revenues, the direct cosis consist primarily of installation work and expensas for
customer care. To date, direct costs associated with mobile and fixed line connection fees have exceeded such revenues.

Revenues {from sale of customer equipment and IT service and installation are recognized when products are delivered or
when services are rendered to customers. Revenues from sale of equipment which are delivered together with services are
recognized at the time of detivery of the equipment when the delivery of the equipment can be separated from the detivery of
the services. If the delivery of equipment cannot be separated from the sale of services, revenue from equipment is recognized
when revenue from services are recognized. Revenues from operating services are recognized on the basis of actual use for
volume-based contracts, and on a linear basis over the contract period for term-based contracts. Revenues from software
licenses are recognized when delivered. Revenues from software developed specifically for customers are recognized over the
development period in line with the percentage of completion.

Revenues from directory advertising were recognized when the directories were published.

Revenues are normally reporied gross with a separate recording of expenses to vendors of products or services. However, when
Teienor only acts as an agent or broker on behalf of suppliers of products or services, revenues are reported on a net basis.

Pensions

Defined benefit plans are valued at the present value of accrued future pension tenefits at the balance sheet date. Pension
plan assets are valued at their fair vatue. Changes in the pension obligations due to changes in pension plans are recognized
over the estimated average remaining service period (12 years). Accumulated effect of changes in estimates, changes in
assumptions and deviations from actuarial assumptions (actuarial gains o losses) that is less than 10% of the higher of pen-
sion benefit obligations and pension plan assets at the baginning of the year is not recorded. When the accumulated effect is
between 10% and 15% the excess amount is recognized in the profit and loss statement over the estimated average remaining
service period. Accumulated effects above 15% are recognized in the profit and loss statement over 5 years. The net pension
cost for the period is classified as salaries and personnel costs.

Research and development costs
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Software costs
Direct development costs associated with internal-use software are capitalized and amortized. This inctudes external direct
costs of materiat and services and payroll costs for employees devoting time to the software projects.

Costs incurred during the preliminary project stage, as well as maintenance and training costs, are expensed as incurred.

Leases
Capital leases, which provide the Group with substantially all the rights and obligations of ownership are capitalized as fixed
assets. The capital lease liabilities are valued at the present value of minimum lease payments.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions involving foreign currencies are translated into Norwegian Kroner using the prevailing exchange rates at the time
of the transactions. Financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies are iranslated using period end exchanga rates.
The resulting gain or loss is charged to financial items for the period, unless hedge accounting is apptied.

Foreign currency translation and hedge accounting for net investments
The financial statements of the Group's foreign operations are maintained in the currency in which the entity primarily con-
ducts businass. Wnen translating financial statements for foreign entities (subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ven-




tures) from local currencies to Norwegian Kroner, assets and liabitities are translated using year-end exchange rates and
results are translated using the average exchange rates for the reporting pericd. The resuiting trens!ation adiustments, and
the gains and losses on financial instruments designated and proven effective as hedges ¢f net invastments in foreign entitfes,
are reported as a companent of snarenoldar's equity.

For entities located in countries dafined as hignly-inflationary and with financiel reporting in local currency, fixed assets and relat-
ed depreciation are remaasured to functional currency using the exchange rate at the date of acguisition. Other balance sheet
items are remeasured at the year-end exchange rate. Other profit aind loss items are translaied using the average exchange rates

for the reporting period. The gain or loss rasulting from these remaasurements is charged to income for the period.

Derivatives and hedge eccounting for interest-bearing Uabilities and firm commiiments
Fer interest-bearing liabilities Telenor does not recognize changas in fair value due to changes in interest rates.

Telenor uses derivatives to manage iis exposure to fluctuafions in exchange rates and interest rates. Instruments usad are inter-
est rate swaps, interest rate options, forward rate agreements, cross currency swaps and foreign currency forward coniracts.

To qualify for hadge accounting, the instruments must meet pre-gefined correlation criteria. This involves prospective docu-
mentation that justifies expectations that the hedge will be effective in the future, as well as assessment of sufficient hedge
effectivenass during the lifetime of the hedge. It is a reguirement that the hedges generate financial statement effects which
substantially offset the position being hedgad.

For interest rate derivatives that gualify for hedge accounting, Telencr does not recognize unrealized changes in fair value due o
changes in interest rates. Amounts to 02 paid or received under interast rate swaps and £rass currency interesti rate swans that are
designated and effective as a nadge of interest bearing liabilities are accruad as interest incoma or expense, resnectively.

Exchange rate effects on currency swaps designated as hedgas of interest-bearing assets or liabilities are recorded as foreign
exchange gain or loss and included in the carrying value of the hedged item. Foreign currency forward contracts are marked (o
market and changes in fair vaiue are recordad as foreign exchange gain or ioss.

Gains and lasses on foreign exchange contracts that are designated as hedges of firm commitments are deferred and recognized
in income at the same time as the related transactions, provided that the hadged transaction is eligible for hedge accounting.

Gains and losses on termination of hedge contracts are recognized i income when teriminated in conjunction with the termi-
natien of the hedged position, or to the extent that such position remains cuistand’ng, deferred and amortized to income over
the original hedging period.

Derivatives that do not meet the hedging criteria are recorded at their market value with the resuiting gain or loss reflected
under financial items.

Taxes

Deterred tax assets and liabilities are calculated with full atlocation for all temporary differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and for tax purposes, including tax losses carrizd forward. The enacted tax
rates at the balance sheet date and normal undiscounied amounts are used. Deferred tax assets are recorded in the balance
sneet to the extent it is more likely than not that the tax asseis will be utilized. Daferred tax assets which will be realized upon
sale or liguidation of companies are not recorded until realization or liguidation is decided.

Cash and cash egulvalents
Cash and cash eguivalents include cash, bank deposits, fixed rate bonds and commaercie! paper with original maturity of three
months or less.

Investments

For shares classifiad as current assats and managed as a wno:e, adjusiments in the back valuz are onily made if the aggregat-
ad holdings have a lower estimated fair value than the original cost. Other current shares are valued at the lower of cost and
astimated fair value.

Long-term shares and other investments, excluding shares in associated companies and joint ventures are veluad at histerical
cost or, if lower, estimated fair value if the fall in value is not temporary.

For investments in asscciated companies and joint ventures, a ioss in value which is other than a temporary decline is recognized.

Impairment is assessed when changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the invesimeants may not be
recoverabla. This may be indicated by a fall in market values or revised earnings forecasts for the individual companies. When




evaluating if a decline in value has occurred and if the decline is other than temporary, several factors are considered, includ-
ing discounted cash flows, quoted share prices {if available), market values of similar companies and third party evaluations
where appropriate.

Inventories
Inventories are vatued at the lower of cost or market price. Cost is determined using the FIFO method.

Advertising costs, mariketing and sales commissions
Advertising costs, marketing and sales commissions are expensed as incurrad.

Tangible assets, intangible assets, depreciation and amortization
Tangible and intangible assets are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Interest has been
capitalized on assets under construction.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets is assessed when changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The assessment is made based on estimated recoverable amount, which is the highest of estimated
discounted future cash flows and sales price less cost to sell. When such amounts are less than the carrying amount of the
asset, a write-down to estimated recoverable amount is recorded.

Tangible assets are, for the most part, depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected economic useful lives using the
following rates:

Office machinery and equipment, software: 20-33%
Satellites, computer equipment, software at switches and other equipment: 10-20%
Transmission and equipment related to switches: 10-33%
Cable and power supply installations; 5-8%
Buildings: 3-4%

Intangible assets are amortized over the expected economic useful life, mainly on a straight-line basis.

Cpticns and employee stock ownership program

For options that have an intrinsic value when they are granted a compensation expense is recognised over the estimated
option period. Options with no intrinsic value as of grant date are not expensed. Social security tax on options is recorded over
the estimated option period. Discounts in the employee stock ownership program has been recorded as salaries and personne!
costs when the discount is given. Payment from employees for shares which are issued by Telenor ASA under the option plan
or the employee stock ownership program is recorded as increase in shareholders equity. Payment from employees for shares
which are issued under the subsidiaries option plans are recorded as increase in minority interests.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as well as the disclosure of contin-
gent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the reporting period.

Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Changes in classification

In 2001, some adjustments related to gross/net reporting of revenues and expenses were made. The changes had no material
effect on the accounts. The adjustments were mainly related to accounting for dealer commissions for prepaid cards and for
some content. Deater commission is now recorded as an expense instead of a reduction of revenue. Commissions are expensed
as incurred. Revenues and related other operating expenses were increased with NOK 204 million, and NOK 169 mitlion for
2001 and 2000 respectively. In addition accrued expenses of NOK 42 million was expensed in 2001 related to this change. This
change affected our Mobile business area.

Payment from content sold on behalf of external content providers has been recorded as a reduction in revenues from 2C01.
Previously this was recorded gross as revenues and expenses respectively. Revenue and related cost of materials were
decreased with NOK 332 million and NOK 241 million for 2001 and 2000 respectively. These changes affected our Mobile and
Networks business areas.

In 2000, revenues and cost of materials related to programming revenues and expenses for TV distribution were adjusted and
is now recorded gross. Revenues and related cost of materials increased by NOK 104 million for 2C00. This change affected
our Plus business area.




Buring the thres years ended 31 Dacember 2002, Telencr entered into the following significant acguisitions and disposais.
Each acquisition was recorded using the purchase method of accounting. The summary dses nat include capital increases o7
athertynes of finencing by Telenor.

Significant Acquisitions in 2002:

Chargain Net

{in NOK millions} interest Purchasa excess Amortizetizn
Tompany Tountry % Business price value perics
Pannaon GSM RT. Hungary 74.2 Mobile Communication 7,805 7,741 5-20y=ars
Canal Bigital Norway? 50.0 TV-distrisution 2,166 2,244 5-15 year

Kyivstar G.S.M. JSC? kraine 8.8 Mobite Communication 294 1,005" 5-20years
COMSAT Mobite Communications?  USA 100.0 Sateilite Moaile Communications 743 22 10 vyears
Utfors ABVY Sweden 80.0 Telecommunication 153 (351) 18 years
Glocalnet AB" Swedan 37.2 Telecommunication 102 50° 10 years
VimpalCom-Region Russia 17.5 Mobile Communication 432 - -

" Telanor nolds convertivle toans, which may increasa tha ownership share up to 856%. Net excess value is preliminary recorded as nag-
ative goodwill.

» Asset gurchase agresment.

¥ Net excess vaiue is included in the book valuz of associated companies and joint ventures.

* Preliminary evaluations and allocations.

* The parent compeany is Norwegian. Canal Digital Group conducts businass in the Nordic regicn via subsisiaries.

¥ Telenor has an option to acquire a further 2.3% of the share capital.

" Includes mingrity share of NCK 553 miltion.

Acguisition of Pannon GSY, Kylvsiar and Caral Blgital in 2002

On 4 Februeary 2002, Telenor acauired an additional 74.2% of the outstanding comimon shares in Panncn GSM. After comple-
tion of the acguisition, Telenor owas 105% of the outsianding comman shares and the result of Pennon GSM operations have
been inciuded in 1e consolidated financial statements from that date. Pannon GSM is one of the leading mobile operators in
Hungary and offers high guality GSM voice and cata comimunication services on 800 and 1803 MRz frequency. This acauisition
is part of Telenor's sirat2gy to gain control of operations to take advantage of synergies stemming from coordinated activitiss
in a number of markets. The aggregeie purchase price was appreximately NOK 8 billion and was paid in cash. The value was set
based on & fair va.ue afier negotictions between the pariles. The allocaticn of the purchase price has been tbased on inde-
pendent financial experis estimates of the fair values of assets and liabilities acguired.

On 30 june 2002, Telenor acouired an additicnal 50% of the outstanding common shares in Canal Digital. After completion of
the acguisition, Telenar owns 100% of the outstanding common sharas and the resu.t of Canal Bigital oparetions have deazn
included in the consclidated financial statementis from that date. As a result of the transfer of risk for the company’s operating
resulis at the time of eniering into the agresment in June 2001, 50% of the Canal Bigital's loss, amortization of nat excess val-
ues and calculated financing expensas in the period batween agreement and consolidation has been recorded directly against
the shareholders’ equity in 2002. Canal Digital cistriduies sudscription based satellite broadcasting to househoids based on
smart carcs and to cable-TV operators. Furiermore, the company dalivers soluticns for distrivution and management. The
aggregate purchase price was approximately NOX 2.2 billion and was naid in cash. This acquisition is part of Telenor's strategy
o gain control of operations to taxe acvantage of synergies stemming from coordinated activities in a number of markets. The
valu2 was set based on a fair value after nagotiations between the parties. The allocation of the purchase price has baen
basad onindependent financial experts estimates of the fair valuas of assets and liabilities acguired.

In 2002, Telenor acquired an additionai 8.8% of the outstanding common shares in Kyivstar. After completion of the acouisi-
tion, Telenor owns 54.2% of the outstanding common shares and the result of Kyivstar cperations have dbeen included in the
consolidated financial statements from 1 September 2002. Telenor has an option to acquire a further 2.3% of the share capi-
tal. Kyivster is & leading mebile operator in the Ukraine and offers nigh guality GSM voice and date communication services on
903 and 1B32 MHz fraguency. This acquisition is part of Telenor's strategy to gain contro! of operations to iake adventage of
synergies stemming frem cocrdinated activities in a numbar of markets. The aggregate purchase price was approximately NOK
0.3 biilion and was paid in cash. The value was set based on a fair vaiue afier negotiations between the parties. The atlocation
of the purchase price has bean based on independant financial exnerts estimates of the fair values of assets and liabilities
acquired.




The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the dates of consolidation™:

Pannon GSM Canal Digital Kylvstar
4 February2002 30 lune 2002 1 Septemasr 2002
Deferred tax assets - 128 31
Goodwill 5613 1,988 371
Other intangible assets 2,626 298 356
Tangible assets and financial fixed assets 2517 636 1,644
Current assets 1,102 520 271
Total assets 11,858 3,570 3,273
Deferred taxes 308 63 153
Long-term liabilities 1,793 653 740
Short-term liabilities 1121 981 840
Total liabilities 3222 1,697 1,733
Minority interest - - 671
Net assets at the date of consolidation 8,636 1,873 832
Book value as an associated company at the date of consolidation (730) (365} (575)
Recorded directly against equity - 658 -
Purchase price last acquisition 7,806 2,163 284

" These figures include consideration for the last acquisitions and the carrying values for the prior investments, when the companies
were accounted for as associated companies.

Total other intangibte assets of Pannon GSM were NOK 2,626 million at the date of consolidation, of which NOK 2,128 million
relates to identified intangible assets in Telenor's latest acquisition. Of this amount NDK 1,727 million was assigned to cus-
tomer relationship (5 years average useful life) and NOK 275 miltion was assigned to trademarks (10 years average useful life)
and NOX 126 million to licenses {(6-12 years average useful life).

Goodwill of NOK 5,613 miltion relates to the Mobile Business area with a useful life of 20 years. Goodwill on prior acquisitions is
amortized according to original plan.

Total other intangible assets of Canal Digital were NOX 298 million at the date of consolidation, of which NOK 227 million
relates to identified intangible assets in Telenor's latest acquisition. Of this amount NOK 111 million was assigned to customer
relationship (5 years average useful life) and NOK 116 million was assigned to trademarks (15 years average useful life).

Goodwill of NOK 1,988 miilion relates to the Plus Business Area with a useful life of 15 years. Goodwilt on prior acquisitions is
amortized according to original plan.

Total otner intangible assets of Kyivstar were NOK 856 million at the date of consolidation, of which NOK 635 million relates to
identified intangible assets in Telenor's latest acquisition. Of this amount NOK 522 million was assigned to customar relation-
ship (5 years average useful life) and NOK 48 million was assigned to licenses (9 years average useful life) and NOK 65 mitlion
was assigned to trademarks (10 years average useful life).

Goodwill of NOK 371 million relates to the Mobile Business Area with a useful life of 20 years. Goodwill on prior acquisitions is
amortized according to original plan.

Pro forma information (unaudited)
The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents resuits as if the acguisition of Pannon GSM, Kyivstar, Canal
Digital, COMSAT and Utfors had occurred at the beginning of the respective periods:

(in NOK miliions, excent per share data) 2C02 2001
Pro forma ravenues 52,023 53,998
Profit before taxes and minority interests (5,693) 8,322
Pro forma net income (4.854) 5,487
Pro forma net income per share in NOK (2.735) 3.096

The pro forma results are adjusted for Telenor's interest expenses and amortization of excess values and the results in the
period prior to the acquisitions. These pro forma figures have been prepared for comparative purposes only and are not nec-
essarily indicative of the results of operations which actually would have resulted had the acguisitions been in effectin the
respeciive periods or of future results.



Significant Disposals in 2002
There were no significant disposals in 2002.

Significant Acquisitions in 2CC1T

Changein Net
{in NOK mililons) interest Purchase excess Amortization
Company Country % Business price value pericd
DiGi.Com bhd Malaysia 28.1 Mobite Communication 3,223 3,003 3-20years
VimpelCom Russia K Mobite Communication 255 - -
Otrum Electronics ASA Norway 331 TV-distribution 265 912 10 years
Sweden On-Line AB Sweden 100.0 TV-distribution 165 130 10 years
Telenordia AB Sweden 50.0 Telecommunication 130 115 0.5-1 year
SAIT Communications S.A Belgium 100.0 Satellite Mobile Communications 189 180 iByears
DnB IT-operations Norway 100.0 Oparation services 597 390 7 years
Unigrid AB Sweden 100.0 Operation services 122 97 10 vyears
Accept Data AS Norway 100.0 Iinformation technotogy 65 56 10 years
Wireless Matrix Corporation Canada 308 Mobile Communication 317 225 3 years

" Telenor reduced its ownarshin share through a share issue in VimpalCom, and acquired shares toa maintain the voting interest of 25%.
@ Net excess value is included in the bool value of associated companies and joint ventures.

On 1September 2C01, Telenor acquired an additional 28.1% of the outstanding comman shares in BiGi.Com. After completion of
the acquisition Telenar owns 61% of the outstanding common shares and the resuits of DiGi.Com oparations have bzen inctuded
in the consolidated financial statements since that date. Under current V.alaysian law Telenor is required to reduce its cwnership
interest in DiGL.Com to below 50% by 2005. DiGi.Com is a leading telecommunications service provider in Malaysia with a full
range of telecommunications-related services. DiGi.Com is Malaysia's market leader in prepaid services. This acquisition is part
of Telenor's strategy to gain control of operations to take advantage of synergiess stemming from coordinated activities in a
number of markets. The aggregate purchase price was NOK 3.2 billion and was paid in cash. The value was set based on the
stock price througk: a partial tender offer.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair vatues of the assets acquired and liabiiitias assumed at the dates of consol-

idation”:

{in NOK millions) DiGL.Com | Septamber28C1
Goodwill 3,835
Other intangible assets 773
Tangible assets and financial assets 4,271
Current assets 784
Total assets 9,673
Long-term liabilities 1,727
Short-term liabilities 958
Total liabilitles 2,385
Minority interests 1,316
Net assets at the date of consclidation 5,652

"These figures include consideration for the last acquisition and the carrying value for tha prior invesiment, when the cocmpany was
accounted for as an associated company.

Total intangible assets of DiGi.Com was NOK 773 million at the date of consolidation, of which NOK 568 miltion relates to iden-
tified intangidle assets in Telenor's latest acquisition. Of this amount NOK 302 million was assignead to customer relationship
(3-5 years average useful life), NOK 192 million was assigned to licenses (15 years average useful life) and NOK 167 millicn
was assigned to tredemarks (10-20years average usefu: lite).

Goodwill of NOK 3,835 million relates to the Mobile Business Area with a useful life of 20 years.
Pro forma information (unavdited)

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents results as if the acquisition of DiGi.Com had occurred at the
beginning of the respective periods:




{in NCX mitlicns, except per share data) 2001 2000

Pro forma revenues 47,678 39403
Profit before taxes and minarity interests 10,122 1,808
Pro forma net income 6,922 830
Pro forma net income per share in NOK » 3.805 0.582

The pro forma results are adjusted for Telenor's interest expenses and amortization of excess values and the results in
DiGi.Com in the period prior to the acquisition. These pro forma figures have been prepared for comparative purposes only and
are not necessarily indicative of the resulis of operations which actually would have resulted had the purchase of DiGi.Com
been in effect at the respective periods or of future results.

Signiticant Disposals in 2001
In January 2001, Telenor sotd Norcom Networks Communications Inc. in exchange for shares in the listed company Wireless
Matrix Corporation. A gain of NOK 259 million before {axes was recorded.

In January 2001, Telenor sold its 10% ownership interest in VIAG Interkom and recorded a gain before taxes of NOK 10.7 billion.
The cash consideration was NOK 20.7 billion.

In April 2001, Telenor sold its 49.5% ownership interest in Esat Digifone and recorded a gain before taxes of NOK 10.7 billion.
The cash consideration was NOK 11.4 billion.

Telenor sold the business area Telenor Media with effect from 1 October 2001. A gain of NOK 5.0 billion before taxes was
recorded. The cash consideration was NOK 5.8 bitlion. The disposal was in line with the strategy to dispose of non-core

business.

Set forth below is the split between the continued and the discontinued operations of Telenor Media:

{in NOK mitlions except per share data) 2001 2000
Net income for Telenor Media 187 228
Gain on sale of Telenor Media 5.000 -
Tax on gain on sale of Telenor Media (72) -
Effect on net income of discontinued operations 5,115 228
Net income for Telenor Group 7,079 1,076
N2t income from continued cperations {excluding Telenor Media) 1,864 848
Net income per share in NOK from discontinued operations (Telenor Media} 2.886 0.160
Net income per share in NOX from continued operations (excluding Telenor Media) 1.108 0.524

Significant Acguisitions in 2000

Change in Nzt
{ir NOK millions) interest Purchase excess Amortization
Company Country % Business price vatue pericd
0JSC Comincom/Combellga Russia 67.5 Fixed network 806 721 5-20 years
Telenordia AB Sweden 16.7 Fixed network, internet 1,239 1,070" 10 years
DiGi.Com bhd Malaysia 2.9 Mobile telecommunication 393 329 15 years
Fellesdata AS Norway 100.0 Information Technology 2,528 2,421 20 years
Sonofon Holding A/S Denmark 535 Mobile telecommunication 14,201 14,570 5-20 years
Total Access Communication PCL Thailand 299 Mobile telecommunication 4,828 3,350 5-20 years
United Communication Industry PCL ~ Thailand 24.9 Mobile telecommunication 1,720 1,382" 5-20 years
Canal Digital Norge AS Nerway 16.0 TV-distribution 170 172" 10 years
BDCAS Norway 62.0 Information Technology 67 62 10 years
XTML Lid UK 80.92 Internet 229 337 5 years
CIX Ltd UK 100.0 internet 70 78 5years
alfaNETT AS Norway 100.0 TV-distribution 499 415 10 years
EuroCom Holding Aps Denmark 75.0 Information Technology 83 83 5years

" Net excess value is included in the book value of associated companies and joint ventures.
Significant Disposals in 2000
Telenor disposed of its ownership in Storm Communications Ltd. in the beginning of 2000 and recorded a gain of NOK 3028 mil-

lion before taxes. Telenor Inkasso AS and Telenor Finans AS were also sold for total gains of NOK 138 million.

Telenor reduced the ownership in the associated company Cosmote S.A. to 18% and recorded a gain of NOK 813 million before



tax. In connection with this transaction Telenor increased its ownershin in Telenor B-Invest to 100%. Telenor 3-Invest owns
Telenor's shares in Cosmota.

Telenor recuced its ownersihip interest in Scandinavian Gnlina AB and recorded a gain of NOK 205 miltion belfore taxes.

Bravida AS was merged with a hoiding comnany of BPA AB and is being accounted for as an associaied company with effeci frem 1
November 2303. Telenor's ownership interest wes 49.7:1% as i 31 Decemiar 2033, No gein was recorded in this transaction.

Pro forme information {uneudited)
The fellowing uneudited nro forma finencial information prasents results as if the acguisition of the subsidiaries in the table
above for 20030 had occurred at the beginning of 2033

{in NDX millions, except per share datal 22323
Pro forma revenueas 38,277
Pro forma netincome 788
Pro forma net income per share in NOK 0.553

The pre foerma nat income is agiustad for Talenor's interest expenses and amortization of excess vaiues and tne net income in
the companies in the period orior (o ine acquisitions. These pro forme figures have been prepared for comparative pUrpsses
on'y and are not necessarily indica*ive of the results of cperations wrich actuelly would have resulted had the purchases been
in effect at the respective perjods or of future resuits.

{in N3IK milions) 20c2 2001 23348

Analog (PSTN)/digital (ISDN and ADSL) 14,188 13,668 12,802
Mobile telephony 17,199 9,531 7,797
Leased lines 1,008 1,065 902
Satellite and TV-distribution 5,903 3,878 3,245
Other network pased activities 2,784 2,633 2,215
Customer equipment 1,528 2,165 2,836
iT service and installations 4,625 5,008 4,738
Advertising, etc - 1,266 1,555
Other 1,431 1,388 1,040
Revenuas 48,588 4C,834 38,532
Gain on disposal of fixed assets and gperations 158 5,436 1,042
Totel revenues 43,828 48,040 37,572

Analog (PSTN)/digital (ISDN and ADSL) includes revenues from trafiic, subscrintion and connection for analog (PSTN) and dig-
ital (ISDN and ASSL). Further, it inciuges revenues from incoming traflic from ciher telephone cperators.

Wiobile telephany includes revenuss from traffic, subscription and connection for mobile telephones, paging, incoming trafiic
fram other mobile pperators, texi messages and content.

Leased lines include raevenues from subscription and connection fcr digital and anelog circuits.

Satellite includas revenues from satellite broadcasting, distribution of TV channels to the Nordic market, satellite-basad net-
work, and revenues from maritime satellite communication. TV-gistrisution includes revenues from subscription, connection
and disiridution of TV channals through cable and satellite, and sale of program cards.

Other network-based activities include ravenues from leased networs, data network services, internet subscriptions, ete.

Customer equipment includes sale of customer equipment (telephcne sets, mabite pnones, computers, PABXs, atc.).

IT service and installations includes revenuas from installations, sales and operaticn of IT-systems, togaethar with consultancy
sevvices and sele of software.,

Advertising, etc. includes sale of advertising related to directory activities and sales of directorias, etc, mainly through our
subsidiary Telenor Media, which we sold as of 1 October 200i.

Other inctudes revenues from coniracting, rent eic.




Mobile comprised the Group's mobile communication comprising voice, data, Internet, content services and electronic com-
merce in the Norwegian and the international markets. Networks comprised the Group's fixed network in Norway and delivars
services including analog (PSTN), digital (ISDN) broadband and leased lines to residential and business customers and io
other network operators, as well as ADSL to service providers. Plus comprised TV-based services mainly within the Nordic
region and provided Internet access, and services including ABSL 1o the residential market in Norway, as well as telephony and
Internet services in Sweden until 31 December 2002. Business Solutions comprised a broad range of communication and
application management solutions to the business market in Norway and selected European countries. EDB Business Pariner is
an Oslo Stock Exchange listed IT group, which delivers solutions, consulting services and operating services. Other Business
units comprised business units as Satellite Services, Satellite Networks, Teleservice, Venture and ltworks, which filed for bank-
ruptcy in 2002. Corporate functions and Group activities comprised activities as Real Estate, Research and Development,
strategic Group projects, Internal IT operations, Group Treasury, international services and cenirat staff and support functions.
Bravida delivers installation, maintenance and operating services to network operators and other customers. From 1 Novem-
ber 2000 Bravida became an associated company of Telenor. Media delivered divectory service in Norway and abroad.
Telenor iMedia was sold with effect from 1 October 2001

The business areas and the amount of each business areas item reported below for 2002, 2001 and 2000 are consistent with
reporting to the chief operating decision-maker in these periods, considered changes in the structure of the business areas in
2001, and were used by the chief operating decision-maker for assessing performance and allocating resources.

Telenor has implemented changes in the business area structure from 1 lanuary 2003. For external reporting, Networks will
consist of the operations of Networks in the 2002 structure, as well as parts of the operations of Business Solutions, the IT-
operations from Corporate functions and Group activities and the Internet part of Plus. The remaining Broadcasting part of
Plus will be reported as a separate business area. Nextra International and the software operations, both transferred from
Business Solutions will be reported under other business areas. iMobile remains unchanged.

Deliveries of network-based regulated services within the Group are priced based on cost prices in negotiations between the
units. For contract-based services, product development etc., prices are negotiated between the parties based on market
prices. All other deliveries between the business areas are 10 be based on market prices.

Gain and loss from Group internat transfer of business, Group contribution and dividends are not included in the profit and loss
statements for the business areas. Eliminations of profit and loss are primarily sales and purchases between the business
areas. Balance sheet eliminations are primarily Group internat receivables and payables.

Profit and loss 2002

Depreciation, Cper- Asscciated Profit {loss)

amortization ating Companies Nzt before taxes

Externat and write- arofit and joint financial and mincrity

{in NOK millicns} Revenues” revenues”  ERITDA? dowas {toss) ventures ftems interasts
Mobite 20,346 19,079 7,482 6,068 1414 (2,030)  (2.050) (2,666)
Networks 16,488 13,761 5717 3,191 2,526 - (329) 2,197
Plus 4,852 4,378 139 1,022 (883) (270) (815) (1,968)
Business Solutions 6,157 4,444 26 1,833 (1,807) 1 (54) (1,860)
EDB Business Partner 4341 3,386 348 757 (409) (5) {(86) {500)
Other business units 3,978 3,320 274 364 (90) (132) (866) {1,088)
Corporate functions
and Group activities 2.850 458 (477) 708 (1,185) (n 1,929 743
Elimination {10,196) - (40) (154) 14 (13) (95) 6
Total 48,825 48,826 13,459 13,769 (320) {2.450) (2,386} (5,736}

"Revenues include gains on disposal of fixed assets and operations.
% EBITDA is operating profit (loss) before depreciation, amortization and write-downs.



Balance arnd investments at 31 December 2002

Long-term
liabilities Shert-
Fixad Asscciated Current Total incl. term invest-
(in NOK millions) assets companies 2s3els assets  provisions  Uebilities mants
Mobiie 36,644 8,532 8,833 54,000 36,846 23,377 12,625
Networks 12,824 - 4318 17,142 7,564 7479 1.853
Plus 7,465 711 3,971 12,147 11,803 2,887 2,925
Business Sotutions 3,945 9 4,543 8,497 5,475 2,999 1,104
EDB Business Partner 2,433 17 1,495 3,945 921 1,358 255
Other business units 3.234 210 2,715 6,159 4,281 1,475 1,028
Corporate functions and Group activities 70,987 i 19,135 90,123 22,507 25,245 1.588
Elimination (72,859) 9 (29,714)  (102,564) (58,043) (43,104) (79)
Total 64,673 9,489 15,298 82,458 3C,454 21,716 27,300
Profit and loss 2001
Depreciation, Oper- Associzted Prafit {{css)
amaortization aiing Compenies Net beforetaxes
External and write- profit andjeint financial and minority
{in NTK mitlions) Revenues” revenues" EBITDA? dovas {loss) venlures tems interests
Mobile 12,558 11,260 4,057 1,572 2,495 9,677 (495) 11,676
Networks 16,568 14,112 5,666 3,491 2,175 - (149) 2,025
Plus 3,386 2,954 248 1,082 (841) (547) (410} (1,798)
Business Solutions 5,940 4,616 (828) 2,140 (2,968) (874) (316) (4,158)
E0B Business Partner 4811 3,353 447 1,655 {1,208} 130 (94} (1,172)
Madia 1,343 1,263 313 51 262 (12) 21 21
Other business units 4,033 2,995 (37 649 (686) (80) (402) (1,168}
Corporate functions and
Group activities 7,890 5,491 4,593 454 4,139 (30) 686 4,795
Etimination (10,489) {4) (219) (28) (181H) (27) 1 217
Taotal 458,040 46,040 14,250 11,073 3,177 8,237 (1,159} 10,255
"Revenues include gains on disposal of fixed assets and operations.
2 EBITDA is operating profit (loss) before depreciation, amortization and write-downs.
Balance end investments at 31 December 2001
Long-term
liztilities Short-
Fixed Asscciated Current Total incl. term Invest-
{in NOKX mitlions) assets Companies assets assets  provisions  lakbilities ments
Vobite 29,281 13,078 15,485 57,844 19,418 34,899 7.211
Networks 14,246 - 4,441 18,687 4,520 6,658 3,719
Plus 4,996 850 2,456 8,302 5,324 2,997 1,741
Business Solutions 4,257 7 4572 8,836 2,052 8,723 1572
EDB Business Partner 2,957 29 1,684 4,670 1,081 1,431 923
Madia - - - - - - 183
Qther business units 3,424 247 2,378 5,049 3,480 1.324 728
Corporate functions and group activities 40,545 - 20,772 61,317 13,118 30,997 2,769
Elimination (47.857) 35 (35,260) (83,082) (29,347) (69,735) -
Total 51,849 14,248 15,528 82,623 19,646 17,294 18,842




Profit and loss 2000

Depreciation, Oper- Asscciated Profit {loss)
amortizaticn ating Companies Net before taxes
External and write- profit and joint financial &nd minority

(in NOK mittions) Revenues" revenues”  EBITDA? downs {loss) ventures items interests
Mobile 9,799 8,267 2,720 1,126 1,594 (460) (821) 313
Networks 16,685 14,318 5,672 2,625 3,047 - (72) 2,975
Plus 2875 2,500 611 476 135 20 (8) 147
Business Solution 4316 3,358 (600) 573 {1.173) (69) (161) (1,403)
EDB Business Partner 3,966 2,461 554 353 201 (21) (19) 161
Media 1,655 1,557 359 58 301 6 33 340
Bravida 4,225 1,798 80 89 (9) - (amn (20)
Other business units 4,033 2,582 261 442 (181) (167) 142 (206)
Corporate functions and Group
activities 3,809 852 445 429 16 (1) (34) (19)
Elimination (13,791) (82) (539) (237) (302) - 17 (285)
Total 37,572 37,572 9,563 5,934 3,628 {692) {934} £003
¥ Revenues include gains on disposal of fixed assets and operations.
2 EBITDA is operating prafit (loss) before depreciation, amortization and write-downs.
Geographic distribution of revenues based on customer location”
(in NOK millions} 2002 2001 20C0
Norway 31,044 36,555 31,466
Other Nordic 3,298 2.235 2,018
Western Europe 1,588 2,061 1.579
Central Europe 5,348 800 84}
Eastern Europe 1,619 828 160
Asia 4,409 2,346 584
Other countries 1,520 1,215 914
Total revenues 48,826 458,040 37,572
Geographic distribution of revenues based en company lecation”
{in NOX millions) 2002 2001 2000
Norway 33,224 39,453 34,235
Other Nordic 2,492 878 641
Western Europe 1,580 2,144 1,246
Central Eurape 4,966 505 337
Eastern Europe 1.427 705 286
Asia 4,295 2,088 537
Other countries 842 267 290
Total revenues 48,828 48,040 37,372

" Revenues include gains on disposal of fixed assets and operations. Gain on disposal of foreign subsidiaries is recorded as relating to
the country in which the subsidiary was located.

Assets by geographical location of the company

{in NOK millions}
Norway

Other Nordic
Western Europe
Central Europe
Eastern Europe
Asia

Other countries
Total assets

Tangiole assets

2002
28,102
1,495
164
2,881
2,363
5,584
413
41,002

2001
30,004
562
225
318
758
5717
23
37,608

Total essets
2002 2001
33,290 31,788
7,508 8,126
13,997 15,572
13,827 3,569
6,646 3914
13,184 19,145
1,005 509
82,458 82,623
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{in NDX millicns) 2cs2 2001 2C20C

Traffic charges — network capacity 5,463 4,853 3.688
Traffic charges — satellite capacity 1,527 1,180 805
Cost of materials etc 4,495 4,161 5,113
Total cost of materials and traffic charges 12,483 10,204 S.E06
. TUIN ISR TARTA ;

{in NOK millions} 2002 200t 2CCT
Cost of materials etc 29 220 357
Salaries and personnel costs 303 396 657
Other operating expenses 235 386 510
Totel own work capitalized 357 1032 1,544
3. 84! AN CSPERSONNELTIDE TS

{in NOK millians) 2002 2001 oT0
Salaries and holiday pay 7,659 7.897 8,109
Sacial security tax 1,168 1,132 1,212
Pension costs including social security tax 789 591 538
Other personnel costs 488 508 654
Totzl salaries and personnel costs 10,1C4 10,128 0,513

The average number of employees was 23,000in 2002, 22,4C00 in 2001 and 24,950 in 2000.

TOOENSI ONCSIUEAITONS

Telenor provides defined benefit pension plans for substantially all employees in Norway. in addition, the Norwegian govern-
ment provides social security payiments to all retired Norwegian citizens. Such payments are calcuiated by reference to & base
amount annuatly approved by the Norwegian parliamant. Benefits are determinec based on tha employee's length of service
and compensation. The cost of pension benafit plans is expensed over the period which the employee renders services and
secomes eligible to receive benefits.

r

13.288 of the Group's employees were covered through Telenor Pension Fund as of 31 December 2C02. The Group has a few
group pension schemes with independent insurance companies and a separate pension planr for executive employess. Puan
assets consisting primarily of bonds and shares fund these pension plans. For empioyeas cutside of Norway, contrigution plans
are dominant.

In addition Telencr has two early retirement pensions plans. The agreament-based early retirement plan (AFP) was estab-
lished in 1897. Undar this scheme employeas may retire upon reaching the age of 62 years or later. The othar plan is an early
retirement plan that was offered to the employees within establishad criteria until the end of 1996. Telenor ASA covers the
cost of early retiremant. The present value of the estimated pension obligation is inctudad in the calculation of tha pansion
obligation presented below. This early retirement plan does not have any plan assets.

Actuarial gains and losses are mainly due to the reduction in discount rate, which was implemented as of 31 December 1999, as
well as lower actual return on plan assets than estimated, due to the reduction in share prices the latest years. In addition
higher salary increases and pensions adjustments than estimated have increased actuarial losses.

{in NOX millions) 2002 2001

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 3,335 2,945

Service cost 543 435

Interest cost 218 186

Actuarial gains and losses 40 105

Acquisitions and sale 5 (108)
Benefits paid (212) (229)

Benefi: obligaticns at the end of the year 3,829 3,338




{in NOK millions) 2002 2001
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 2,400 2,052
Actual return on plan assets (38) 7
Acquisitions and sale 8 (88)
Pension contribution 531 549
Benefits paid {142) (120)
Fair velue of plan asseats at the end of the year 2,759 2400
Funded status 3,17C 935
Unrecognized prior service costs {154) (233)
Unrecognized net actuarial losses (852) {644)
Prepaid social security tax 27 ]
Total provision for pensions 191 64
Assumptions as of 31 December 2002 200t 29CC
Discount rate in % 6.5 6.5 6.5
Expected return on plan assets in % 7.5 7.5 7.5
Rate of compensation increase in % 35 35 35
Expected increase in the social security base amauntin % 30 30 3.0
Annual adjustments to pensions in % 3.0 3.0 30
Components of net periodic benefits cost 2002 2001 200C
Service cost 543 435 375
Interest cost 218 186 189
Expected return on plan assets (185) (164) (148}
Amortization of prior service costs 14 23 23
Amortization of actuarial gains and losses 57 16 25
Social security tax 90 68 58
Net periodic benefit costs 737 564 523
Contribution plan costs 52 27 15
Total pension costs charged te profit {loss) for the year 789 501 538
. OTHER CRPERATING BX{PENSES

{in NOK millions) 2002 2001 2000
Cost of premises, vehicles, office equipment, etc 2,196 2.267 1,939
Operation and maintenance 3,418 2,673 954
Travel and travet allowances 560 750 772
Postage Freight, Distribution and Telecommunication 327 343 365
Concession fees 425 130 91
Marketing and sales commission 2,069 1,787 1,582
Advertising 916 598 586
Bad debt” 337 362 191
Consutiancy fees and external personne{? 1,394 2,246 2,222
Workforce reductions, loss contracts and exit from activities” 982 625 (10}
Other 564 616 674
Tctal other operating expenses 13,188 12,397 9,378

"See note Sand 11 respectively.

? Includes fees for consultants and external personnel, which perform services that are sold to externat customers or capitalized on

fixed assets.



{in NOJX midions) 2002 200t 2022

Provisions as of 1 January 543 462 538
Provisions as of 31 Decembar 643 543 462
Change in provisions for bad dab? 100 Bl {76)
Other changes in provisions for bacd debt"” (119) 60 6
Realized losses for the year 418 264 312
Recovered amounts previously written off (62) (43) (51)
Totel bad debt 337 362 191

" Includes effects of disposal and acquisition of businesses and translation adjustments.
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Research and development costs amounted to NOK 531 million, NOK 916 million and NOK 524 million for 2002, 2601 and
2000 respeactively. Research and development activities relate to new technologies, new products, security in the network and
new usages of the existing networi. It is expecied that research and development costs will create fuiure profitability.
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in 2002, 2001 and 2080, provisions were made for workforce recuction, ioss contracis and exit {rom activities.

Loss contracis relate mainly to contractual obligations no longer of use in the ongoing business, loss on delivery contracts and
toss on property icases.

The following taoles displays roll farward of the accruals from 31 Bacember, 1889:

2000 2001
31.12.1999 2000 amounts  31.12.2000 2001 amounts 31.12.2001
§in NOK mittions) balance additions ytiized balance  additions utilized belence
Workicrce reductions etc” 74 9 25 58 657 209 489

" Inciude expenses for workforce reductions, loss coniracts and exit from activities.

2202 2002 2002

additions in additions 2002 amounts
31.12.2001 profit and directly in amounts takento 3112.2302
{in NOX miliians) belarnce loss belance utilized income balance
Workforce reducticns 112 713 22 183 1 663
Lass contracts and exit from activities 377 308 39 250 39 436
Totel 482 1,022 61 433 40 1,088

Additions in profit and loss in 2002 are as follows: Mobile expensed NOK 117 million and Networks NOK 161 mitlion for work-
force reductions. EDB Business Partner expensed NOK 165 million for worlforce reductions and NOK 5 million for exit from
activities. Plus expensed NOK 55 million for workforce reductions and NOK 18 million for termination of property lease con-
tracts. Business Solutions expensed NOK 58 million for workiorce reductions and NOK 26 million for loss contracts and exit
from activities. Other business units expensed NOK 79 million for workiorce reductions, of which NGK 75 miliion related to
close down of departments in Teleservice. Corporate functions anc Group activities expensec NOK 137 million for warkforce
raductions and NOK 120 million for loss on property lease contracts. Additions directly in the balance sheet related to Utfors
AB, whicn was consolidated as of 31 December 2002, and was a conseguence of events and decisions made in tha company
prior to the time of consolidation. Amounts taken to income in 2002 related to TTYL and in Business Solutions International,
where the outcomes of loss contracts and exit from activities were batter than estimated.

Provisions for worliorce reduction as of 31 December 2001 included more than 250 employees. Costs for workforce reductions
in 2002 included termination of employment of approximately 1,700 employees. The provision of workforce reduction as of 31
December 2002 included aporoximately 1,600 employees.

The additions in 200! are as follows: Plus expensad NOIK 49 million for loss contracts and Business Solutions expensed NOX
229 mitlion for weorkforce reductions, loss contracts and exit from activities, mainly related to the Internet business. EDB
Business Partner expensed NOK 170 million for workforce reauctions, loss contracts and exit from activities, and additionatly
recorded NOK 42 million in the batance sheet in connaction with the purchase price allocation in a businass combination.
Other business units and corporate functions exnensed NOK 177 million in 2033, of which NCK 74 million related to transfer of
activity in the Telemuseum to a foundation, NOK 42 million for restructuring and workforce reductions in itworks and NOK

47 million for exit from the activities in TTYL. Of the provision related to the dismantling of the NMT 9GO mobile network as of
31 Becember 2003, NOK 27 million was reversed in 2001 without incurring related expenses.
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{in NOX mittions} 2002

2007 2000
Dividends from satellite organizations - 97 196
Interest income 476 740 573
Other financial income 91 60 59
Total financial income 567 8e7 §28
Interest expenses (1.801) (1.638) {(1.965)
Other financial expenses (96) (53) (96)
Capitalized interest 164 295 140
Totat financial expenses {1.833) {1,385} {1,920
Net foreign currency gain {loss) {311) (432} {64)
Gain on sate of financial assets 59 491 376
Loss and write-downs of financial assets (848) (749) (153}
Net gain {loss) and write-downs of financial assets {788) {258) 223
Net finencial items {2,363} {1,159} {9343

During 2002 and 2001, write-downs of NOK 817 and NOK 599 million respectively were made on shares and other financial

assets, for diminution in values other than temporary. The write-downs were triggered by a fall in market vatues. Listed shares
were written down to the quoted market prices. For non-listed shares the values were based on individual estimates of the fair
values. in 2002, the value of the capital coniribution to Telenor Pension Fund was written down by NOX 78 million to the book

value of the equity in the fund as of 31 Becember 2002.

L TRES

(in NOK millicns) 20062 2001 2000
Profit (loss) before texas and minority interasts

Norway (1,150) 2,683 3,300
Outside Norway" (3,986) 7572 (1,297)
Total profit {loss) before taxes and minority interests {5,135) 10,253 2003
Current taxes

Norway 2,769 1,826 1,184
Dutside Norway 1,478 1,758 12
Totai current taxes 4,247 3,584 1,198
Beferred taxes

Norway {4,005) (555) 81
Outside Norway (722) 858 (416)
Totel deferred taxes {4,727) 3i3 {335)
Total income tax expense {income) (480) 3,897 861

" Includes associated companies and subsidiaries outside Norway. Gains and losses from disposal of companies are related to the
countries in which the disposed companies were located. The gains and losses are, however, to a large extent liable to tax in Norway.,

except the sale of VIAG Interkom in 2001.




Effective taxrate

{in NCK milticns} 2002 2001 2300
Expected income taxes according to statutory tax rate (28%)” (1,438) 2,871 561
Net losses from associated campanies and suosidiaries outside Norway? 1,012 1,778 674
Net non-deductible expenses and (non-taxable income) 85 (1,404) (79)
Amortization and write-downs of goodwill 850 398 100
Previous not recognized deferred tax assets (725) (205} (410
Not recognized tax assets current year 73 470 -
Tax claim related to Sonofon 2,409 - -
Court case in Greece 414 - -
Ligquidation of Telenor Digifone Hold'ng AS (3,.227) - -
Othar 67 (12) i5
Income tax expanse (incomea) 1480% 3,837 861
Effective taxratein% NJA® 3330 4390

" Norwegian nominal statutory tax rate is 28%.
@ Includes amortization and write-downs of Telenoi's excess values in respect of associated companies.
? There was a loss bafore taxes and minority interests in 2002, aind a tax income.

The tax income in 2002 was lower, and the tax expense for 2001 and 2000 was higher than the nominal statutory tax rate
should imply. This was due to valuation allowances, mainly on losses in associated companies and subsidiarias outside Nor-
way, togetner with the amortizaticn and write-downs of part of the net excess values {mainly goodwill). A large portion of the
amortization and write-downs of goodwill in EDB Business Partner in 2002 and previous years have reduced taxes in 2002 and
previous years.

tn 2002, Telenor realized tax iosses on the simultaneous liguidation of Telenor Digifone Holding AS and Nye Telenor Communi-
cations i AS. Telenor Digifone Holding AS was the company that realized the sale of shares in Esat Digifone in 2801 The tax-
able loss was due to a high cost price for tax purposes for the shares owned by Telenor ASA. Furtharmare, in 2002 Telersr
sold, or entered agreements to sell, some companies on which valuation aiiowances had been recordzd in previous years,
mainly companies in Business Solutions International. These effects have been recorded in the reconciliation line item " Pravi-
ous not recognized deferred tax assets”. In cases where subsidiaries still are consolidated valuation allowances in subsidiaries
is listed in the note below and devaluated.

During the ordinary assessment for 2002, the tax assessment authorities in Norway notifiad Telenor Communication AS (now
Tetenor Eiendom Holding AS) that its tax return for the financial year 2001 had not been accepted insofar as the loss deriving
from the disposal of the shares in Sonofon Holding A/S was concerned. As a result of this tax claim, the current tax for 26C1
was increased by NOX 2.47 billion, which was expensed in 2002. Telenor recognized this tax loss upon the disposal of shares in
Sonofon Holding A/S to Dansk Mobil Holding AS, a sister company of Telenor Eiendom Holding AS. The disbosal was carried
out as an integral part of the overall restructuring of our Group. Telenor has in January 2003 initiated proceedings against tha
Norwegian Tax Authorities. The change of our tax return has increased the RISK adjustment (adjustmant of the taxabls cost-
price, that only aifect Norwegian investors) for Telenor ASA as of 1 January 2002 by NOK 3.44 per share. Any subseguent
reassessimant as & result of a court ruting in favor of Telenor will decrease the RISK adjustment with effect from 1January in
the year of reassessment.

In 2002 Telenor expansed NOK 0.4 billion related to a court ruling in Greece, where the disputed amount reduced taxes
payabtle in 2000. "elenor will appeal the judgment.

In 2001, Telenor recordad deferred tax assets on some of the write-downs of goodwill in EDB Business Partner and on some
other businesses outside Norway due to agreements to sell these activities. In addition, Sonofon was realized in 2001 for tax
purposes, and redaced our estimaied current taxes by NOK 2.4 billion. As mentioned above, the tax authorities in 2002 chal-
ienged the tax return for 2001. In 2801 Telenor recorded current taxes of NOK 4.6 billion on the gains on sale of VIAG Interkom
and Esat Digifone, in addition to deferred taxes on these sales of NOK 1.5 billion. There was also a low taxable gain from the
sale of Telenor Media due to a high cost price for tax purposes estabtished in connection with the formation of the new helding
company Telenor ASA in 2000, where the new tax values established was based on estimated merket valuas at that time.

In 2000 deferred tax assets related to the accumulated losses from VIAG Interkom and Esat Digifone were recorded as these
coimpanies were sold in 2C0%. Furthermore, the gain on sale of Storm Communication Ltd was not taxable.

Tax losses carriad forward is to a iarge extent reiated to subsidiaries outside Norway, but in 2002 Telenor realized a large tax
lass to be carried forward, related mainly to the liquidation of Telenor Digifone Holding AS. Tax loss carriad forward in Norway
was NOX 11.8 billion as of 31 December 2002. Amounts carried forward expire as follows:




Tax losses carried forward
(in NOK miltions)

2003 78
2004 33
2005 114
2006 989
2007 198
2007 and later 12,324
Not time-limited 3,656
Total tax losses carried forward 17,383
Deferred taxes

Assets Liabitities Assets 1 rzbilities
{in NOI( mitlions) 2002 2002 2001 200
Tangible and intangible assets 2,669 (1,342) 1,716 (1,113)
Associated companies 3,368 (704) 1,819 {9)
Undistributed earnings from foreign subsidiaries - (76) - 823
Other long-term items 534 (868) 210 (170}
Totel iong=-term essets and Labilities 6,571 (2,220} 3,745 {2,215)
Current assets 195 (51) 290 (138)
Current liabilities 508 (147) 315 (85)
Total current assets and liabilities 703 {128) 223 (222)
Tax losses carried forward 4,943 - 1,282 -
Deferred taxes 12,217 {3,188) 5,738 {2,437}
Veluation allowances {4,879} {3,188}
Net deferred taxes 4,330 103
Of which deferred tax assets {note 14) 4,866 600
Of which deferred tax liabilities (note 19) (516} (495)

Deferred taxes have not been recognized on undistributed earnings from domestic entities, which can be remitted tax-free as
dividends or undistributed earnings from investments in foreign subsidiaries that are considered essentially permanent in

nature.

Preliminary RISK regutation (regulation of the taxable cost price) per share for Telenor ASA for 2002 is calculated to be

negative by NOK 0.56 per share.

NLINTENGUS R ASSET
Acc.
Amaort. amort.
Foreign and ang
Accurnul. anchange verite- write- Bosoi Book
cost Additions adjustra.  Disposals dewns dovns velue velue
{in NGX millions) 01.01.02 2002 2002 2002 2002 31.i2.02 30.i2.02 31..2.0%
Geodwiil 10,970 7,488 {1,039) (305) {3,634) (6,282} 10,100 7,439
Other intangible assets
Customer Base 420 2,383 (57) (17 (448) {492) 2,237 383
Licenses 1,581 306 (46) (74) (492) (737) 1,030 1,339
Trademarks 167 446 (35) - (43) (48) 530 162
Other 512 1,219 (12) (153) (375) (418) 1,148 277
Total other intangible assets 2,680 4,354 {130) (244) (1,358) (1,895) 4,245 2,161
Total 13,658 11,810 (1,189) (549}  (4,822) {8,877) 13,245 9,602
Deferred tax asses - - - - - - 4,888 €02
Totel intangible assets 13,650 11,810 {1,189) (549} (4,882) (8,377) 19,017  10,20C

The additions of other intangible assets in 2002 are mainly related to Pannon GSM, Kyivstar and Canat Digital.



Specification of amortization and write-downs:

{in NOKX millions} Goodwill Other intangble assets
2002 2007 2CCC 2002 2001 2300
Amortization 1,002 668 496 962 317 124
Write-downs 2,632 2,265 - 395 126 13
Total 3,634 2,834 435 1.358 443 137

Changes in the carrying value of goodwill for the year ended 31 December 2002:

Business [ECB Business Cirer

(in NOK mitticns) Mabile Plus Solutions Partner units Total
Balance as of 1 January 2002 3,849 512 739 1,979 360 7,439
Goodwill acquired during the year 5,749 1,969 (307" 83 (68) 7,456
Translation adjustments (840) (i2) (146) (27) (14) (1,039)
Amortization (509) (135) (150) (166) (42) {1,002)
Write-downs (impairment losses) (2,138) - (1582) (356) 24 (2,632)
Goodwill written off related to sale

of business units - {48) - (15) (59) (122)
Balance as of 310ecember 2002 6,111 2,316 (26) 1,498 2C1 10,.00

" Includes nagative goodwill related to Utfors AB, see the table below.

The write-down of goodwill in Mobile was related to DiGi.Com as a result of continued low publicly quoted share prices. The
write~down was based on the publicly quoted share price at 31 December 2002, adjusted to reflect a control premium. The
write-downs of goocdwill in ZDB Business Partner were based on a review of all individual goodwil: items based on discounted
future cash fiows. The write-down in Business Solutions was partly related to Nextra International basec on evatuation of the
profitability in each company.

Goodwill relates to the following sussidiaries and operations:

{in NI millions) Bookveluz 31.12.02 Amartization period  Year of acguistian
Pannon GSM 5,124 10—-20 years 2002
Canal Digital Group 1.929 10-15 years 2002
Kyivstar 325 12-20 years 2002
Utfors AB" (351) 18 years 2002
DiGi.Com bhd 641 15-20 years 2001
Sweden On Line AB 109 10 years 2001
Unigrid AB 105 10years 2601
Marlink (former SAIT Communications S.A) 60 10 years 2001
DnB IT Operations 334 7 years 2001
Fellesdata AS 915 20 years 2000
0JSC Comincom/Ccmbellga 306 10 years 2000
Telenor Avidi AS (alfaNETT) 189 10 years 2000
Others 414 3-20years

Tatal 10,100

"The allocation between goodwill and other net excess values and amortization periods are preliminary estimates.




Dapre- Acc.

ciation depr.

and and
Accumul Translation write- write- Beak Beok
cost Additions adjustm. Disposals downs downs value value
{in NOK mittions) 0160102 2002 2002 2002 2002 311202 311262 211201
Local, regional & trunk networks 34,968 3,004 (256) (17 (2,005)  (26,940) 10,849 10,000
Mobile telephone network and switches 11,632 5.452 (838) (12) {1,753) (6,609) 9.625 6,759
Subscriber equipment 315 28 (8) (9) (33} (244) 82 104
Switches & equipment 15,073 589 (63) (1,168) (1.166)  (11,096) 3.335 3,993
Radio instaltations 1,669 17 (7N (M (15) (644) 1.034 1.040
Cable TV equipment 1,685 a9 (2) (50) (192) (746) 9396 1,140
Land 710 143 an (7) (2) (7 822 704
Buildings 7,750 2,804 amn (274) (368} (3.852) 6,417 4,182
Support systems 8,696 4,326 (105) (1,501) (3.140) (7.101) 4,315 3,686
Satellites 2,176 14 (3 (1) (123) (1,397) 789 eol
Total” 84,684 16,566 (1,310) (3,040) £8,797)  (58,5638) 38264  32,3%9
Work in progress? 5,089 (2.207) (144) - - - 2,738 5.089
Total 89,773 14,358 (1,454) 13.040) (8,797)  {58,628) 41002 37,608

"Includes book value of NOK 1,870 million for capital leases as of 31 December 2002, mainly switches, GSM Mobile telephone network
and satellites.
% Net additions.

Accumulated capitalized interest (cost) was NOK 1.116 mitlion as of 31 December 2002.

Specificaticn of amortization and write-downs:

{in NOK millicns) Tangible assets

2002 2001 2000
Depreciation 8.272 6,266 5.201
Write-downs 525 1,430 1600
Total 2,797 7,528 3,301

In 2002, write-downs of NOK 276 million were recorded in Business Solutions on operating platforms and equipment, botn
used in the internal operations and used in operating contracts. Equipment related to operating contracts were evaluated
based on expected cash flows from the operating contracts including terminal value at the end of the contract period. Internal
operating platforms and equipment were written down when they no longer were in use. Similar evaluations were made in
Tetenor's internal IT-environment in Corporate functions and Group activities, resulting in write-downs of NOK 42 mitlion in
2002. In Mobile, write-downs of NOK 133 million were made, to a large extent on equipment no longer in use in the IT-system
portfolio in Mobile in Norway. In Plus, write-downs of NOK 52 million were made, primarily related to equipment for TV-distri-
bution due to the low demand in the SMATV market in Denmari and Sweden.

The Group has entered into Cross Border Tax Benefit Leases for digital telephony switches and for GSM Mobile network with a
book value as of 31 Decembar 2002 of NOK 699 million. The agreements called for the prepaymenits of all amounis due dy
both parties under the leases to financial institutions. The financial institutions then release the payments over the life of the
leases in accordance with their contractual terms. During the course of the lease, Telenor maintains tha rights and benefiis of
ownership of the equipment. Telenor has received benefits of NOK 320 million since the parties can depreciate the equipment
for tax purposes. The amount has been deferred over the expected lease periods.

ANCIALASSTYS

(R

{in NOK millions) 2002 2001
Long-term receivaoles’ 1.299 965
Shares and other investments™ 2,461 3,076
Associated companies and joint ventures™ 9.48% 14,246

Totel financial assets 13,242 18,287




*} Long term receivables

(in NCK miltions) 2222 2001
Incerest beering

Receivables on associated companies and joint ventures" 1,169 783
Loans to employees 31 27
Other long-term receivables 63 49
Provision for bad debt (4) -
Non-interast bearing

Receivables on associated companies and jaint ventures 4 21
Other long-term receivablas 36 95
Provision for bad debt - (10$)
Totzl long-term receivadles %299 235

"In 2002, interest tearing receivables on assaciated companies and joint ventures related mainly to Bravida and Scnofon.

) Shares end other investments:
Specification of other shares and investments in 2002:

{in NOX thousands) No. of shares owned by Telerar Share owned in % Soox veluz
Inmarsat Ventures Plc 15,000,000 15.0 1,435,000
Intelsat Ltd. 6,855,530 4.1 441,544
New Skies Satellites N.V. 4,709,400 3.7 130,801
Expert ASA 3,190,000 10.0 116,435
Eutelsat S.A. 4,127,130 0.4 35,458
Cosmo Holding Albania Sacietet Anonyme 48,000 3.0 23,283
Larrot Communication AS 1,162,791 5.3 10,000
GolfaXess ASA 486,500 12.0 5,405
Energivekst AS 45,000 4.3 4,750
RKS AB 194,401 2.0 3,840
Bank VPB 7,600 19.0 3,086
Bank Rosprombank 10,000 2.0 2,877
Norsk Helse Infarmatiki AS 140,000 17.3 2,300
Extend AS 319,400 42.6 2,000
Industream AS 488,047 12.4 1,206
IT Fornebu AS 76,200 16.3 1,657
Serlandske Teknologisenter AS 1,300 18.0 1,300
Smart Club ASA 2,500,000 2.1 1,200
TELAS 1,000 10.8 1,030
Sponsor Service ASA 900,000 1.7 -
Capital contribution to Telenor Pensjonskasse 219,755
Other 16,084
Totel other shares and investments 2,480,811

New Skies Satellites N.V., Expart ASA and RKS AB are listed companies. The market values as of 31 December 2002 for
Telenor's shares were NOK 131 million, NOIK 105 million and NOK 1 midlion respectively. Other includes shares in campanies
where Telenor owns more than 16% with insignificant book values.

) Associated companies and joint ventures

in N3 mitiicns) 2002 . 2001
Balance 1 January 14,186 390,088
Investments 883 2,319
Transferred to/from other investmants and disposal (1,420) (34,625)
Net income 341 (318}
Gains (losses) on disposal” 36 21,579
Amortization of net excess values (862) (1.427)
Write-downs of net excess values (1,965) (11,597)
Equity and translations adjustmants (1,760) (832)
Balance 31 December 9,432 14,88
Of which investments carried with a negative value (classified as provisions) 50 60

Taotal assccizted compantes and joint ventures 9,482 14,245




Associated companies and joint ventures are carried at negative values where Telenor has a corresponding liability above and
bayond the capital contributed.

" Specification of gains and losses on disposal:

{in NCIK millions)

2002

fatats

il 8
VIAG Interkom - 10,705
Esat Digifone - 10,740
Ephorma AS - 100
European Medical Solutions Group AS - 41
Extel 40 -
Other (4) n
Tetal 36 21,579
Specifications of investmen?ts in essoclated companies and joint ventures:
Invest- Amortization Equity
ments/ and write- and trans- Net
Share Boolt disposals Share dovrns of lation Bool excess
{in NOX thousands) owned value during of net netexcess adjust- value velues
Company in % 3t.12.01 2002 incama™® values® ments 31.12.02 31.12.02
Sonofon Holding A/S ¥ 53.5 5,555,930 - 139,177 (1,489,189)  (458,627) 3,747,290 3,828,304,
VimpelCom®™ 29.0 1,806,770 - 313,714 {41,673)  (445,365) 1,633,447 209,232
VimpelCom-Region * 17.5 - 432442 {41,368) 391,074 -
COSMOTES.A 2 180 803,179 (2,115) 358,115 (4,959) (143371) 1010847 94,892
DTAC &0 40.3 1,849,365 - 34,862 (950,172)  (380.058) 553,998 338,052
ucom= ™ 24.9 385,761 - (709) (89,432) (76,621) 218,999 255,007
Connect Austria GmbH & Co * 175 821910 - (6,636) - (70,145) 745,128 -
European Telecom S.A (ProMonte) ® 441 144,831 406 57,520 - {31.008) 171,749 -
StavTeleSotJ.S.C" 49.0 (894) - 38,336 - (5,346) 32,095 -
Oniway® 200 267423 217,231  (459,984) - (24,670) - -
Kyivstar 6.S.M. JSC - 554,131  (645,796) 171,894 (31,672) {(48,657) - -
Extel Kaliningrad J.S.C. ™" - (7.007)  (44,376) 36,509 (712) {4,404) - -
Pannon GSM” - 729137  (740,284) 14,934 (3,787) - - -
ZebSign 50.0 26,900 - (7.392) - - 19,509 -
Wireless Matrix Corporation 253 173,188 - (64,835) (66,283) (20,682) 21,388 67,030
Nordialog Oslo AS 48.0 8,427 - 1,693 - - 10,120 -
Triggerduck 335 7,777 - (445) (4.122) - 3,210 1,050
Oslo Lufthavn Tele & Data 53.0 6,779 - 2,475 - - 9,254 -
Glocalnet AB ™ 37.2 - 104,064 - - - 104,064 50,284
Canal Digitat Group * - 144,721 7,734 (143,778) {8.677) - - -
A-pressen ASA™ 29.1 497,844 - 16,591 (30,828) - 483,607 238,950
Otrum Electronics ASA ™ 331 184,481 . - (4,836) (83,831) - 95,814 -
BitCom AB 48,0 4322 3,974 395 (335) 306 8,051 2,781
AXON AS - 7,733 (6,700) (557) (476) - - -
TIBE Reklame Holding AS 340 12,346 - - (2,856) - 9,490 7.120
Logan-0rviss Int inc. 440 8,793 - (908) (306) - 7,579 322
World Wide Mobite Communications AS 40.0 61,474 - 6,318 - (25,102) 42,690 -
Bravida ASA 46.4 135,693 90,825 (76,711) - - 149,808 -
TeleVenture Management AS 239 12,638 - 884 - (2,016) 11,505 -
Doorstep AS 50.0 7,537 - (2,395) - - 5,143 -
TN Renhold & Kantine AS 50.0 538 - 2,650 - - 3,188 -
Ajourit AS - 9,423 19,236 (28.659) - - - -
Other - (34,753) 25,987 (41,339) (18,148) 18,206 (50,047) 5,880
Total 14,186,387 (537,373) 376,983 {2,827,457) {1,759,541) ©,438,889 5,0€90%4

"Includes pretax gains on disposal and Telenor's share of the companies' net income after taxes.

# Share of net income after taxes are partly based on preliminary results for some of the companies. Actual figures may deviate from

the preliminary figures.

* Jointly controlled according to a shareholders agreement.

“With effect from 30 June 2002, the Canal Digital Group was consolidated as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Telenor.

* European Telecom S.A. has an ownership share of ©1.1% in ProiMonte GSM and Telenor owns 44% of European Telecom.

® In 2002 the following significant write-downs were recorded; Sonofon NOK 1,800 million, DTAC NGK 829 mitlion, UCOM NOK 52 million.
Furthermore, the engagement in OniWay was written down by NOX 316 million to zero based on an evaluation of the values in the com-



pany and Telenor has no longer significant influence in the company. The write-downs were triggered by a significant fall in the market
values for telecommunication companies. For DTAC and UCOM the write-downs were made to the quoted market price as of 31 Decem-
ber 2002. The fair value for Sonofon was estimated based on estimates of future cash flows and comparison to similar companies.

” On 4 February 2002 Pannon GSM became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Telenor.

®Telenor had a veting interest of 25% plus 13 shares in VimpelCom as of 31 December 2002.

¥ In addition to Tetenor’s direct ownership of 1 7.5%, VimpzalCom has an ownarship interest in VimpelCom-Region of approximately 65%.

' The ownership interest in DTAC includes the direct ownership interest of 29.9% and Telenor’s indirect ownarshin through Telenor’s
24.8% ownership share in UCOM.

" Telenor's ownersh’p interests in Extel was sold in December 2002, and StavTeleSot was sold in January 2003 to VimpelCom-Region.

'2 Accounted for as associated companies due to significant influance in the companies based on shareholders’ agreements and repre-
sentation in the Boards of Directors.

? Market values as of 31 December 2302 for listed associated companies: VimaatCom: NOX 3,475 million, Casmote: NOK 4,033 million,
DTAC: NOK 554 mitlion, UCOM: NOK 21 2 million, A-pressen ASA: NOK 288 million, Otrum Electronics ASA: NOK 44 million, Glocalnet
AB: NOK 131 million.

' Net excess values at the date of acquisition are tha differences between Telenor's acquisition cost and Telenor's share of equity of the
associated companies.

{in NDI{ milians] 2002 2001

Accounts receivables

Accounts receivables 6,481 6,579
Provision for bad debt (585) (501)
Tolal accounts receivables 5,823 6,078

Other current recelvebles
Interest-bearing

Raceivables from associated companies and joint ventures 16 170
Receivables on emgloyees 3 -
Receivables from others 17 115
Non-interest-bearing

Receivables from associated companies and joint veniures 182 85
Receivable on employees 27 36
Othar short-term receivables 330 1,300
Provision for bad debt (54) (32)
Total ather current receivables 321 1,674
Prepaid expenses and accrued revenues

Prepaid expenses 772 538
Accrued revenues 1,679 1,410
Total prepaid exgenses and accruced revenues 2,451 1,94€
Tota! current recejvables, etc 3,853 9,701

Due to the large volume and diversity of the Group's cusiomer base, concentrations of credit risk with respact to trade
accounts receivablas are limited.
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{in NOX millions) 2002 2001
Bonds/Commercial paper 260 159
Shares" 272 316

Total short term invesiments 532 475




" Specification of shares classified as current assets as of 31 December 2C02.

No. of shares

{in NOX thousands} cwned by Teleror
incatel AS 144,082
Telenostra AS 91,157
Blue Chip Communication AS 3,926,466
Data Resnons ASA 2,000,000
Necrth Node AB 586,984
Locus Holding ASA 15,212,118
Viva Technologies AS 33,266,009
Q-Free ASA 2,500,850
Virtual Garden AS 2,009,820
Maritech AS 4,652,481
Nordisk Sprakteknologi AS 3,221,793
Roxen AB 2,224,420
Voice Provider AB 45217
Sonat AB 52,063
Travelintelligence Group AS 3,033,270
Melody Interactive Solutions AB 283,408
Seven Mountains Solutions AS 37,500
Trondelag Vekst AS 19,355
MRT Micro ASA 723,511,597
Proseq AS 240,333
Oirect Distribution Center AB 15,000
Crest Computer Sweden AB 8.624,486

Other shares etc.”
Total shares classifled as current assets

Share
owned in%
775
355
53.6
75
44.7
60.4
25.2
55
16.9
9.4
258
22.5
25.9
27.6
435
4.1
12.7
2.9
50.9
70.0
Q18
83.0

Beok
value
54,769
34,721
25,718
16,679
16,168
13,246
12,367
11,890
10,535
8,625
7,650
5,648
5972
5,682
5,033
3,854
3,000
3,000
2,275
2,000
1,205
1,085
19,727
274,850

" Includes companies where Telenor owns more than 1 0% with insignificant book values.

The above shares are mainly owned by Telenor Venture AS and Telenor Venture It ASA. Q-Free ASA and Data Respons ASA are
listed companies. The market value as of 31 December 2002 for Telenor's shareholdings was NOK 12 million and NOK 10 million

respectively. Mutual funds are included in other shares with a market value of NOK 16 million as of 31 December 2002.

am g
2L FROVISIONS

{in NCX millions)

Provisions for pensions

Deferred tax liabilities

Workforce reductions etc."

Negative values associated companies
Other provisions

Totat provisions

2082
191
516
264

50
155
3,176

2081
54
495
85

60

57
761

"Provisions for workforce reduction, loss contracts, exit from activities and legal disputes.




{in NOK rmiilions) =imit 2cze2 20201

Eurc Commercial peper program (ECP) USD 500 - -
U.S. Commarcial paner program (USCP) UsSD 1,000 - -
Norwegian Commercial paper - 1,105 1,930
ENMITN prograim USD 6,000 17,563 10,887
Japansase Privaie Placements - - 412
Norwagian Bonds - 3,142 706
Capitel discount related to bonas - (40) (30)
Darivativas reiated to long-term interesi-beering liabilities” - (300) (722)
Revouving credit facility USD UsD 1,000 - -
Revolving credit facility ZUR EUR 1,000 - -
Totel leng-term interast-bear mg ligbilicles Telenor ASA 21,470 13,181
Leng~term interest-2earing Jaililies subsidiaries? 7,335 5,316

Tole iong-tarm interest-bearing Ligbilitizs Telency Group 28,815 18,427
Sheri-term interast Learm@ lletilities subsidiaries 3,587 672
Tota: Interest-tearing tadilities Telenor Sroud 32,388 19,169

" Foreign currency derivatives used to convert the cash flows of a deot instrument into another currency.
@ Specified below.

Long-lerm interest-bearing Uabllities Telencr ASA
The USD revolving credit facility matures in 2003, The EUR revolving crecit facility matures in November 2033, but Telenor
has a one year term-oui option for the outsianding amount as of November 2C33. The EUR-fecility includes a financial

covenant in the te"m-out period. if Telenor’s rating falls tc BBB or Baag, the relationship between net deot and EBITODA must

e egualto or lower than 3.5:0.

According te Telenor's Finence Pelicy, these committed credit {acilitias should at any timea serve &s refinancing scurce for gll
ouistanding commercial paper. Commercial papar is classified as long-term, irrespective of the actual maturity date.

he mejority of commercial peper (ECP, USCP and Norwegian), Eurs Macium Term Notes and Norwegian bands were criginally
issuad by Teienor Communication AS (now Telenor Eiendom Holding AS). In reiation to the reorganization of the Telenor Group
tha gorrowings ware iransferred to Telenor ASA with consent from tha creditors as of 15 Anril 20C2. All borrowings in Telenor
ASA are unsecurat. The financing agreements except commerciat naper, contain provisions restricting the pledge of assets to
secure future borrpwings without granting a similar secured status to the existing lenders (nagative pledge) and alse contain
covenants limiting cisposals of significant sutsidiaries and assets.

The teble balow shicws the debt instruments issued by Telenor ASA. Hedging instruments related to these borrowings are not
inciuded in the tadle.

Averege interest Arnount [n Amount in Amount in
{in milllons) } rate 21.12.02 currency 31.12.02 NOK 3%12.02 NOK 31.22.97
Nerwegian commmercizl peper
NBK 7.01% 1,105 1,105 1,930
ZWMTN programme
AUD 4.45% 37 146 170
CHF 3.21% 798 4,002 4,292
EUR 5.69% 1,235 9,001 1,480
Py 2.26% 31,600 1.818 1,785
SE! 4.60% 150 119 -
usp 5.50% 350 2,437 3,154
Naorveglan bonds
NOK 7.73% 3,142 3,142 700
japanese Private Piescemants
PY - - - 412

Tokel Telenor ASA 21,770 13,803




The tabte below includes debt instruments, cross currency swaps and interest rate swaps. When the currency- or interest rate
exposure of the underlying borrowings has been altered through the use of derivatives, this is reflected in the figures in the table.

Average interest Ameount in Amount in Amaount in
{in miltions) vate 31.12.02 currency 30.12.02 NOX 31.72.02 NOK 31.12.01
Morvregian commerciat paper
NOK 7.01% 1,105 1,105 1,930
EMTN programme
ZK 4.17% 451 107 -
EUR 4.01% 848 6,183 5.093
GBP 5.38% 13 146 -
NOK 7.69% 6,497 6,498 2,469
SEX 4.74% 1,187 944 658
uso 2.44% 491 3.422 1,932
Demestic tonds
EUR 3.86% 135 981 699
GBP 4.86% 20 224 -
NOK 7.74% 1,860 1,860 -
Jepanese Private Placements
NOK - - - 400
Total Telenor ASA 21,470 13,181
Long-term interest-bearing liabilities in subsidiaries
{in NOK millicns) Average interest
Company D2kt instrument Currency rate3112.02 31.12.02 3..12.0%
DiGi.Com Borrowings from financial institutions usp 3.08% 226 410
DiGi.Com Borrowings from financial institutions MYR 7.66% 1181 1,197
GrameenPhone Borrowings from financial institutions usn 6.90% 262 429
GrameenPhone Borrowings from financial institutions NOK 4.76% 75 75
Kyivstar Vendor fingncing uspD 7,30% 113 -
Kyivstar Bonds uso 12.75% 596 -
Pannon Bonds HUF 13.78% 1,040 -
EDB Business Partner Borrowings from financial institutions NOK 7.50% 500 719
EDB Business Partner Borrowings from financial institutions SEK 4.00% 147 201
EDB Business Partner Finance lease NOK 8,03% 64 -
Business Solutions Finance lease NOK 7.00% 200 -
Business Solutions Vendor financing — SW licenses NOK 8.00% 656 879
Satellite Services AS Finance lease” NOK 7.25% 1,114 1.228
Canal Digital Finance lease? » 550 -
Tetenor Eiendom Holding AS  Norwegian Commercial Paper NDK 7.01% 435 -
Miscellaneous 56 178
Tetal long-term interast bearing liabilitles in subsidiaries 7.335 5,315

"Satellite leases (Thor Il and IIl). This financing is guaranteed by Telenor ASA
3 This financing is guaranteed by Tetenor ASA. Denominated in DKK, EUR, NOK, SEK and USD.

The interest bearing liabilities in subsidiaries are generally not guaranteed by Telenor ASA and are subject to standard finan-
cial covenants. The covenant required & minimum interest coverage. The lender had at 31 December 2002 vaiwed this breach,
which does not trigger cross default according to Telenor ASA’s loan agreements.

Telenor entered into Cross Border Tax Benefit Leases for digital telephony switches and for GSM Mobile telepnone neiwork in
1928 and 1999. Telenor has prepaid all amounts due to financial institutions under these agreements. The leasing otligations
and the prepayments are netted in the balance sheet, and are not reflected in the tables. See note 15 and 31.




Short-term interast-bearing labilities in subsidizgrizs
Average interest

(in NTK miliiens) rate 30.12.02 31202 31.12.01
Telenor Eiendom Halding AS Provision tax claim 12.00% 2,409 -
Telenor Mobile Communication AS Provision court case 12.00% 530 -
DiGi.com Vendor financing and term loans 8.00% 362 -
Kyivstar Bonds and vendor financing 8.44% 144 -
Miscellanaous 146 672
Total short-term interest-bearing Uabilities ‘ 3,581 672

At the end of 2002 Telenor increased short-term interest-bearing liabilities by NOK 2.4 billion related to a tax claim regarding
the sale of Sonofon Holding A/S and NOK 0.5 billion related to the court case in Greece.

Telenor has providad a guarantee for the tax claim of NOX 2.4 billion. As a result of Telenoi’'s decisicn to expanse the tax claim
at the end of 2002, 12% interest in arrears on the tax claim is expansed as long as the guarantee is provided. The Tax Authority

can initiate collection of the claim if Telenor ASAs credit worthiness bacomes materially weaker.

Maturity profite of interest-bearing labilities as of 31 December, 2002

Tetal as of After
{in NOK millizas) 311202 2003 2004 2003 2006 2007 2008 200g¢ 2C10 2010
Norwegian commercial paper 1,105 1,105 - - - - - - - -
EMTN program 17,300 1,688 1,089 1,320 3,131 2,917 1,003 2.220 - 3,922
Domestic bonds 3,065 - - 1,006 - 1,861 - - - 198
Telenor ASA, tctal 21,470 2,733 3,088 2,325 3,131 4,778 43C3 2222 - 4,12
Subsidiaries, short-term 3,591 3,591 - - - - - - - -
Subsidiaries, long-term 7.335 889 1,986 2,238 844 725 294 231 128 -
Subsidiaries, tatal 13,926 4,480 1,986 2,238 844 725 234 231 128 -
Telenor Group 32,283 7,273 3,085 4,584 3,873 5,803 1,297 2,431 128 4,120
S ENANTIAL INETRUNENTS AN T RISUNA SN

Telencr’s group treasury function (Telenor Finans) is responsible for funding, foreign exchange risk, interest rate risi and credit
risk management for the parent company and for companies owned more than 90%. Subsidiaries owned lass than 90% no:-
mally have standaione financing.

Telenor has limited activity related to interest rate and currency trading. As of 31 December 2002 Telenor dic not have any
outstanding open trading positions.

[mterest rate risk

Telenor is exposed to interest rate risk through funding and cash management activities. Changes in market interest rates
affecis the fair value of assets and liabilities. Interest income and interest expense in the profit and loss statement, as well as
interest payments, are influsnced by interest rate changes.

The objective for interest rate risk management is to minimize interest cost and at the same time hold the volatiiity of future
interest paymeants within acceptable limits. To achieve this Telenor use a simutation model that takes into account market
variables and the portfolio composition. The duration band of the portiolio is 0.5 - 2.5 years.

Telenor apolias interast rate derivatives to manage the interest rate risk of the debt portfotio. This typically involves interest
rate swaps, whereas forward rate agreements and interest rate options are used in certain situations.

Below is a sensitivity analysis that shows the change in fair value due to a one percentage point increase in interest rates. The
matrix is dividec into time intervats. The interest rate risk is allocated to the next rate fixing cate for floating rate instruments,
and to the maturity date for fixed rate instruments. Consequentty, the matrix shows the interest rate risk distribution of the
porifolio.

The table below includes cash, shart-term interest bearing invesitments, interesi rate derivatives, currency derivatives and
interest bearing ligbilities.




{in NOK millions equivatent as of 31 December 2062 Decrease in fair value due to 1% increase in interest rates
Average  Average

Value vyearsto duration 0-1 -2 3-4 4-3 6-7 7-8 8-2 Beyond
Currency face maturity inyears years years years years years years years 9years
CzK 250 3.44 0.45 0.48 - - - - - - -
OKK 65 4.48 1.66 - - - - 1.06 - - -
EUR 7.241 371 1.27 10.85 (6.98) 24.11 337 21.32 - - -
GBP 425 5.56 0.35 1.34 - - - - - - -
HUF 1,409 1.58 1.38 - 25.64 - - - - - -
MYR 1,543 497 0.72 7.88 - - - - - 3.07 -
NOK 9,124 5.66 2.32 24.30 10.28  32.27 11.81 75.68 893 2468 100.84
SEK 1,441 3.46 1.48 279 - 413 - 5.38 - 8.45 -
uspb 5,374 4.04 1.00 18.44 - 1882 1.73 13.06 - - -
Net interest bearing
liabilities 26,872 4.47 1.57 65.08 2884 79.33 4725 116.30 893 320 100.84

Exchange rate risi

Telenor is exposed to changes in the value of the Norwegian kroner relative to other currencies. Telenor has invested in com-
panies that have other functional currencies than Norwegian kroner. in addition, companies that mainly operaie in Norwegian
kroner will have transactions denominated in currencies other than Norwagian kroner.

The boolk value of Telenor's net investments in foreign entities varies with changes in the value of Norwegian kroner compared
1o other currencies. The net income of the Group is also affected by changes in exchange rates, as tnhe profit and loss contribu-
tions of foreign entities are translated to Norwegian kroner using the average exchanga rate for the period. If these companies
pay dividends, it will typically be done in their local currency. Management's strategy to handle exchange rate exposures relat-
ed to net investments is to issue financial instruments in the currencies involved. Combinations of money market instruments
{commercial paper and bonds) and derivatives (foreign currency forward contracts and currency swaps) are typically used for
this purpose.

Norwegian entities will also be exposed to exchange rate risk rising from revenues or operating expenses in foreign currencies.
This exchange rate risk is normally not hedged by Telenor.

Exchange rate risk also arises when Norwegian entities enter into other transactions denominated in foreign currency, or when
agreements are made to acquire or dispose of investments outside Norway. Committed cash flows equivalent to NOK 50 mil-
lion or higher are hedged economically using options or forward contracts. Hedge accounting is often not permitted for these
kinds of hedging relationships, which leads to gains and losses on the transactions being charged directly to profii and loss.
Exchange rate risk related to debi instruments in foreign entities is also a part of the risk exposure of the Telenor Group.

Hedging as described above is only carried out in currencies that have well-functioning capital markets.

The table below shows the currency distribution of the Group’s interest bearing liabilities and derivatives in other currencies
than Norwegian kroner as of 31 Cecember, 2002:

Face value in miilions,

tecal currency AUD CHF CZK DKK EUR GBP HUF IPY MYR SEX usd
Interest bearing liabilities (37) (798) - (66)  (1,370) (99) - (31,000) (853) (745)  (570)
Currency swaps 37 798 (461) - 376 66  (31,000) 31,000 - {1037 (14n

Forward contracts - - (620) - - (5}  (10,000) - - (30) (60)
Total - - {1,081%) {63) (S24) {38) (41,000) - (833) (1,812 (7TH)




Credit risk
Creali risk is the less which the Group would suffer if a counterpart feiled to perform its financial obligations.

There is limited credit risk related tc the account receivables duz to the high number of customers.

Telenor has entered into Cross Barder Tax Benefit Leases for digital telephony switches and for GSM Mobile network. The
agreemants called for prepayments of all amounts due by Telenor. Pregeyments as of 31 December 2002 of NOK 3.5 billion is
deposited in creditworthy financial institutions. The amount is not included in the balance sheet, see note 20.

Telenor invasts surplus liguidity in shori-term interest bearing assefs. Credit risk is inherent in such instruments. Financial deriv-
atives with positive replacement valua for Telenor, taking into account legal natiing agreaments, also reprasent cradit risk.

Credit risk arising from financia! transactions is reduced througn diversification, through accepting counterparts witn high
credit ratings oniy and through setting strict limits on aggregated cradit exposure towards each counterpart. Telenor ASA has
legal netting agreaments (ISDA agreemeants), which allows gains 1o be offset against losses in a defauit situation with 15 of the
16 banks that are counierparts in derivative transactions. As of 31 December 2002 Telenor ASA has collateral agreements with
two banks that frequantly are counterparts in derivative transactions. Both ISDA agreemenis and collateral agreements are
means to reduce overall credit risk.

Fair velue of derivatives with positive replacemant value for Telenor ASA was equivalent NOK 1,498 million as of 31 December
2082, taking into eccount netting agreements. Credit exposures for Telenor ASA is monitored on a daily basis.

Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that companies in the Group do not have liquidity available to pay their obligations on time.

The Group has established Group account systems in Norway, Sweden, Denmark, Hungary and the United Kingdem tc manage
the cash flows in the Group as efficient as possible. Efficient cash management also involves using currency swagps when
appropriate.

Surplus liguidity within the Group account systems is invested in interest bearing instruments with short time to maturity ana
fow defau:t risk. Telenor ASA has also established two credit facitities to minimize the Group’s liguidity risk, see note 20.

Management empnasizes financial flexibility. An important part of this is to minimize liguidity risk through ensuring access to &
diversified set of funding sources.

Other market risiks
Telenor is exposed to eguity market risk ghrough investmants in eguity instruments.

Fair values of financial instruments

The estimated fair values of the company’s financial insirumenis are based on market prices and the valuation methodologies
described beiow. However, prudence is recommended in interpreting market data to arrive at an estimated fair vaiue. Accord-
ingly, the estimates presented herein may only be indicative of the amounts the company couid rzalize at this date.

Fair values of d2bt instruments issuad by Telenor ASA and Telenor Siendom Holding AS have been calculated using an interest
rate curve, which incorporaies estimates of the Telenor ASA credit spreads as of 31 December 2032. The credit cuive has been
extrapolated from trades abserved in the secondary mariket cf Telencr ASA dabt instruments with different maturities.

Feir value of debt instruments issued by sudsiciaries has been determined by market quotes wnere such are available. Fair
value of other floating rate instruments in subsidiaries is assumed to de equal to the book valua.

For all other interest bearing liabilities fair values have baen estimated using the Telenor ASA credit curve described above.

rair values of currency swaps, foreign currency forward contracts anc interest rate swaps are estimated Dy the present value
of future cash flows, calculated by using quoted swap curves and excnange rates as of 31 December 2002. Options are revai-
ued using approgriate option pricing modals.

Fair values for listed shares are based on quoted prices at the end of the relevant years. Listed companies consolidated in the
Telenor Groun or accounted for by using the eguity mathod, are not incluged in the table below.




The table below shows book value and fair value of financial instruments as of 31 December 2002 and 2001:

Book value Feir value Beck vaive Falrvelue

{in N2K millions) 2002 2002 2007 200t
Financial assets

Listed shares 296 275 428 466
Cash and short-term money market investments 5,524 5,524 5711 5711
Financiat ligbilities

Long-term interest bearing liabilities" (28,105) (29,813) (19,219) (19.422)
Short-term interest bearing liabitities {3,591) {3.591} {672) (672)
Instruments used for interast rate and exchange rate risik management

Gain interest rate swaps - 205 - 83
Loss interest rate swaps - (214) - (112)
Loss forward rate agreements - - - -
Gain interest rate options 2 1 1
Loss interest rate options - (4) - -
Gain cross currency interest rate swaps" 1,153 1,528 1,200 1373
Loss cross currency interest rate swaps” {853) {697) {478) (385)
Gain foreign currency forward contracts 34 34 13 13
Loss foreign currency forward contracts (167) (167) (26) (96)
" These items are included in long-term interest-bearing liabilities in the balance sheet.
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{in NCX miilicns) 2002 2001
Accounts payable 3,072 2,762
Government taxes, tax deductions etc 2,198 2,002
Dividends payable 799 621
Current taxes 2,717 3.421
Accrued expenses 5315 4,731
Prepaid revenues 2,647 1,701
Provision for warkforce reductions etc.” 977 590
Other current liabilities 399 794
Total current non-interest-bearing tiabitities 18,125 8,522
Long-term non-interest-bearing liabilities 473 388
Totel non-interest-bearing liabilities 12,398 ©7,010
"The provisions are related to workforce reductions, loss contracts, exit from activities and legal disputes.
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{in NOX millicns} 2002 2001
Mortgages

Inventories, receivables, tangible assets, etc 9,892 5,000

As of 31 December 2002 NOK 3,278 million of the interest-bearing liabilities of the Group was secured by pledged assets, with
a bool value of NOK 9,892 million. The mortgages and the liabilities related mainly to DiGi.Com, Kyivstar, GrameenPhone and

the satellite leases (Thor It and Thor [li).

{in NOK millions) P
Guerantees e

200t
2,71

Guarantees provided, where the related liability is included in the balance sheet are not shown in the table. Furthermore, guar-
antees related to unused drawing rights in Group companies and purchased bank guarantees are not included. Guarantees as

of 31 December 2002 are described below.

In 2000, when Bravida was still a subsidiary, Telenor provided a performance (fulfillment) guarantee in connection with Bravi-
da's deliveries to the project Sodra Lanken in Sweden, with an original project limit for Bravida of NOK 515 million. The project

is expected to be completed in 2004/2005.

in 2001, Telenor provided a guarantee to Intelsat of USD 117 million (NOK 815 miltion as of 31 December 2002} for the fulfill-



ment of the committed investment of NOK 1.052 million in satellite capacity in 2004, included as contractual investments in
note 25.

In 2002, Telenor’s previous contractual commitmant to contribute capital to the associated company Connect Austria was
renlaced with a guaraniee for up to approximately EUR 68 millicn (NOK 483 miilion as of 31 December 2002). The guaraniez is
in favour of the tenders of interest-bearing financing to Connect Austria, and payment may be reguired if the financial
covenants in these loan agreements are breached.

Telenor has provided & guarantee of USD 25 million (NOK 174 million) for a termination fee of the Cross Berder Tax Benefit
L ease-agreement for GSiM mobile networks, see note 15. The leasing period ends in 2015.

Teienor has provided a guarantee for a termination fee of the satellite leases (Thor Il and Thor If) of NOK 171 mitlion. The leas-
ing periods end ir 2008 and 2010,

As of 31 December 2002, Telenor had provided a guarantee of USD 10miilion (NOK 70 million) for the tiabilities in the associ-
ated company StavTeleSot. StavTeleSot was sold in the baginning of 2003, and Telencr was reliaved from the guarantea.

Telenor has provided a guarantea up to NCK 165 miltion for potentiaily future capital contrigution to Telenor pensicn fund.

in addition, Telenor has orovided performance and nayment ouaraniees {or subsidiaries of an aggregate amount of approxi-
mately NOK 110 miltion.

arising in connection with the conduct of Telenor’s business. Provisiors have been made {0 cover unfavorable rulings or
deviations in tax assessments, pending the ocuicome of appeals by Te.enor against these decisions, as described balow. Further-
more, provisions nave been made (o cover the expecied auicome of the other proceedings o the exient that negative oui-
comes are liely, and reliatle estimaties can be made. However, mesi of ihe proceedings against Telenor are of such a nature
that provisions cannot b2 estimated. While acknowizdging the uncertainiies of litigaiion Telenor believes that, based on ine
information available to date, thesas matiers will be resolvad withaut any material negative effect on Teienor's financial position.

InJanuary 2003, Telenor initiated proceedings against the Narwegian tax authorities before the Jslo District Court relating to
the non-recognition of a tax loss deriving from an intra-group sale of shares in Sonofon Ho'ding A/S. Tha disputed amount is
approximatewy NOK 8.6 billicn, which results in a tax charge of NOK 2.4 billicn. The Oslo District Court has not yei s2t a date for
the court proceedings.

In Aprit 200, the company S&A Telecom Cyprus Ltd., on behalf of WR Com Enterprises Lid., initiated legal proceedings against
Telenor bafore the civil court of Athens, Greece, claiming approximately NOK 444 millicn plus interest related to dispuies
under several agreements entered into in connection with ownership interests in Cosmote. In lanuary 2003, the court ruled
that Telenor is obliged to pay WR Com Enterprises Lid. approximately NOK 444 million plus interest. Telenor will appeal the
ruting. WR Com Erterprises Ltd. had also commenced arbitration precaedings in Oslo based on similar grounds in the same
complex of cases, but witharew the arbitration case in October 2002,

In July 2002, TDC Tele Danmark AS, Telia Mobile AB, Scnera AB ang Iceland Telecom Lic. initiated in legal proceedings against
Telenor before & court of arbitration. The claimants are asking for compensation of 36.65% of the market value (o be dater-
minad in a separate arbitration to take place later based on the assumption of joint ownership of the earih stations) of the
“INMARSAT earth stations at Eix and associated activities” as per 31 December 2002. The arbitration panel has bean estab-
lished, and the hearing is schaduled for October and November 2003.

in August 2007, the Norwegian State Railways (Norges Statsbaner, NSB) initiated legal proceedings against Telenor before
tha Oslo Qistrict Court claiming that an agreement previously entered into between the parties concerning the allocation of
costs related 1o contamination of & site used for the treatment of telephone poies with creosote is not binding for NSB. NS3's
claim is for MOX 122 million plus interest. The hearing was held in March 2003.

In 1987, Teietopia AS initiated iegal proceedings against Telenor before the Oslo District Court claiming, among other things,
that the termination of agreemeants entered into with Teletopia in 1985 was invalid and that Telenor should be ordered to nay
compensation as determined by the court. In April 2801, the Oslo Bistrict Court rulec that Telenor was 1o pay compeansation of
NOK 23.5 million to Teletopia. Telenor appealed the decision and Teietopia cross-appeeled requesting additional compensa-
tion. Teletopia has now estimated its claim to be up te NOK 230 million olus interest. The main hearing before the Court of
Appeal is scheduied to be neld during ten weeks starting September 2003.

TeleZ has initiated several proceedings against Telenor relating to Telenor’s allegedly delayed implementation of carrier pres-




election, a requirement which the Norwegian Post and Telecommunications Authority (Post-~og teletilsynet, PT) introduced in
1888.The most substantial proceedings still pending is the proceeding filed at Oslo District Court in May 2002, in connection
with which Tele2 claims NOK 102 million plus interest in damages. As a result of an arbiiration based on similar grounds on 11
April 2002, Song Networks was awarded compensation of NOK 15 million of a claim of NOK 52 million.
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The Group has entered into agreements with fixed payments in the following areas as of 31 December 2002:

{in NOK millions) 2003 2004 2005 2006 2087  After 2007
Rent of premises 746 546 425 372 332 931
Rent of cars, office equipment, etc. 107 56 29 " 4 g
Rent of satellite capacity, etc. 945 173 605 53 32 37
{T-related agreements 420 231 0 15 1 -
Other contractual obligations 679 186 160 9 - -

Commited investrnents

Associated companies 4 19 - - - -
Properties and equipment 348 2 2 2 2 -
Other contractual investments 269 1,056 - - - -
Total contractual obligation 3,518 2,288 1,322 432 374 877

The table does not include agreements under which Telenor has no binding obligation to purchase, or future investments due
to the UMTS license in Norway. Rent of satellite and networks capacity includes payments for a MVNO-agreement {Mobile Vir-
tual Network Operator) with NOK 358 million and NOK 517 million for 2003 and 2005, respectively.

Other contractual investments for 2004 include NOX 1,052 million for investment in satellite capacity. This investment has
been postponed to 2004 as a result of delayed launch.

Telenor ASA is 77.7% owned by the Norwegian state (including treasury shares).

The Norwegian telecommunications market is governed by the Telecommunications Act and other regulations issued pursuant
to this Act, as well as by concessions (licenses) for certain activities. According to the concession on fixed network and the
public telephony service, Telenor must provide and maintain Universal Service Obligations (USO) — PSTN tetephony to all
nouseholds and companies, public pay phones, services for the disabled, emergency services — and Special Service Obliga-
tions (SS0) — the defense of Norway, ccastal radio, services concerning Svalbard, wire services for ships, provisions of emer-
gency lines for the police, fire department and ambulances — at a certain level. Telenor receives no compensation from the
state for the provision of USO services, whereas compensation is given to Tetenor for the provision of SSO. [n 2002, 2601 and
2000 Telenor received NOK 82 mitlion, NOK 80 million and NOK 78 million, respectively, under this agreement. Telenor paid
NOK 200 million to the Norwegian state for a UMTS license in 2000.

In addition, Telenor provides mobile and fixed telephony services, leased lines, customer equipment, Internet connections, TV
distributions and installation and IT operations/services to the state in the normal course of business and at arm's-length prices.
In 2000 Telenor sold its headguarters for NOK 550 mitlion to Entra Eiendom AS, a2 Norwegian government-owned entity, and
Selmer ASA. Telenor leased back the administrative premises pending the completion of our new headquarters at Fornebu.

Telenor pays an annual fee to the Norwegian Post and Telecommunications Authority (“PT") for delivering tetephony and
mobile services. The fee was NOK 81 million in 2002, NOK 81 million in 2001 and NOK &1 mitlion in 2000, respectively.

Canal Digital is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Telenor, performing satellite Broadcasting. The company was ownad 5G% by
Telenor up to 30June 2002, when Telenor completed the acquisition of the remaining 50% of the company and started con-
solidating the company. Canal Digital has agreements to sell products and services to other Telenor companies, mainly satel~
lite broadcasting and cards for TV-decoders. The total amount invoiced for these products and services was NOK 223 million
in 2002 (half year), NOK 475 mitlion in 2001 and NOK 282 million in 2000, respectively. The transactions were based on
arm's-tength agreements.

Associated companies abroad hire personnel from Telenor. A total of NOK 21 mitlion, NOK 28 million and NOK 24 million was
invoiced for these services in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Bravida has been an associated company from 1 November 2000, when Bravida was merged with BPA AB. Telenor’s ownership
share was 456.4% as of 31 December 2002. According to a shareholders agreement entered into at the time of the merger,
Telenor shall decrease its ownership share in event of a listing of Bravida, and Telenor’s ownership share may increase if cer-




tain snecified assets (“referred to as “non-cere asseis”) of tha ‘ormar BPA show a shorifall in value compared to the velue
that wes esiimated in the merger. In 2C02, Groun companias purcnased goods and services for NOK 2,256 miltion from Bravi-
da, N0 2,535 millicn in 2831 and NOK 481 million for two months in 2833, mainiy for installation and other services. NOX B3
miltion, NOK 450 mitlion and NOK 173 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, rescectively, were invoiced from Group compeanias to
Bravida Tor sale of customer ecuipment and administrative sarvices. Bravida aiss has agresments which ensuras that Bravida
is awarded a ceriain share of ine purchases Telenar Netwarks will make related to installation and other services untii the end
of 2003, The transactions are tased on arm's-length prices, Telenar had provided guarantees related to Bravida of NOK 515
million as of 21 December 2002 related to & fulfiiiment guarentes regarding Sodra LEnken, which is a project in Swaden.
Telenor nad ouistanding ioens of NCK 442 million to Bravida as of 31 December 2032, af which approximately NGK 430 million
was [ong-term. As of 31 Becembar 2002, Telenor had outstanding liabilities to Bravida of NOK 20 million. In February 2CC3,
Telenor provided a shori-term convertiole loan of NOX 150 million to Bravida. In February 2003 Telenar arovided a financial
guarantee ic Svensk Eksporikraditt of SEK 331 million plus interest reiated to the Bravida engagement, in ccnnection with
which external perties have providad collateral security in the ferm of mortgages of shares.

Tne asscciated company TeleVeniture Management AS performs management services for Telenor Venture and Telenor Veniure I,
TeleVenture Managemant AS ‘nvaicad NCK 20 miltion in 2022, NOK 17 million in 2001 and NOK 32 miilion in 2030.

Zedsign, establishad in 2007 with 50% ownarship by Telenar, delivers services for elecironic identification and signatura. in
2382 Z=0sign had revenues for sale to other Teiencr companies of NCK 41 millicn and NCK 43 million tn 2801. As ¢f 31 Decem-
3er 2302, Telenor had a purchase commitment of NOK 45 miilion.
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With ihe exceptizn of cartain comsanies, the Group has established tax deduction guarantees for payment of the employees'
tax deductizns. The Grouo has established Group bank accounts with two banks. Uncer these agreements, Telenar ASA is the
Group account holder, wheraes the other companies in the Groun are sub-accourt holders or participants. The banks can set
off balances in thair favor against depaesits, so thet the net position represents the net talance tetween the bani and the
Group account hotder.

Restricted bank accounts

{in NO millicns] 2C02 2001 20C0
For employess' tax deduction 88 114 24
Other 45 179 52
Totel 133 223 76

Waterial non-menelary trensections

(in NOK{ millians) 2002 200: 2000
Investments in bus.nesses 105 678 -
Financial leasas 346 - -
Purchase of sofiware licenses - - 1,005
Tolal 457 578 1,203

lon Fredril Balksaas was appointed as President and Chief Executive Officer and Tormod Hermansen withdrew as President and
Chief Executive Officer on 21 june 2002, Some ciher changsas in the Group management have also baen imalemenied during
the year. The nsw Group management from 6 Decembar 23022 consists of Jon Fredrik Baiksaas, Arve Johansen, Torsiein
#oland, Berit Svendsen, Jan Edvard Thygesen, Stig Eide Sivertsen ard Morten Karlsen Szroy (new).

Angregate ramuneration for the board of direciers and the corparate assembly for 2002 wes NCK 1,475,030 and NCK
437,300, respectively. The memaoers of the board of directers o not have any agreemants waich entities them to exiraordi-
nary ramuneretion in the event of termination or change of office, or agreements for banus, profit sharing, options or similar.
The annual salary for the President and Chief Executive Officer Jon Fredrik Balsaas was NOK 3,200,000 in 2002. Telenor paid
pensicn premiums of NOK 734,223 (from 21 June 2032), and ather compensation of N0 51,478, Jon Fradrik Balisaas has no
annual bonus agreement, but was grantec 100,080 share options on 2i Feoruary 2002, 150,800 share options on 22 Juna
2002, anc 250,300 share options an 21 February 2003. The pansion plan gives the right to retire at the age of 60 with a sup-
plementery pension, making the pansion 65% of NOK 3,030,000, adjusted annually with the Consumer Price Index. lon Fredrik
Baksaas has th= right to receive satary for 24 months if Telenor terminates the emoloyment, under the condition that he doss
not take cther amployment (in such case, the payment is reduced by 75% of the salary of tne new emsloyment). The termina-
tion payment does not ouaiify for noliday allowance. The agreed pariod of notice is six months.

The annual salary for Tarmed Hermansan was NOK 3,153,000 11 2002, Telensr zald pension premiums of NCK 725,884 and ather
compenseticn of NOIK52,136 (until 21 June 2002). rurthermore, an end paymeant eguivalent to 3 months salary (NOK 1,575,000)




was paid, and this amount also qualifies for holiday allowance. The end payment was set based on an agreement at the time of
withdrawal between the Board of Direciors and Tormod Hermansen, and covers annual bonus for 2007, plus compensation for not
participating in bonus programs for 2002. Tormod Hermansen also has an agreement requiring him to be available for Telenor
ASA one year after withdrawal from the CEO position, agreed upon prior to the date of withdrawal. During this year, the salary and
other work conditions are upheld. During this period, Tormod Hermansen is not allowed to take other employment. Furthermore,
he cannot take on tasks (or duties) for Tetenor competitors. Tormod Hermansen had earned full pension rights at the date of with-
drawal (66% of salary at the time of withdrawal), and a “top-up” of NOK 536,010 was paid in addition to the pension payments for
the period in 2002 after withdrawal, according to the above-mentioned agreement of uphalding of full salary conditions.

The table below shows information attached to each member of the Group Management, except for Jon Fredrik Baksaas, which

is mentioned above.

Agreed Share
perisd Sevarance Pension Annual Cpticns

Namel/titie of notice Pay benefits® Bonus2002" 2002}
Senior Executive Vice President 6 months 6 months 66% of salary at The bonus frame is 1% of fixed 100,000 +
Arve johansen? the date of retire- salary. In addition, overperformance 100,000

ment with the right  may result in bonus payments

toretire attheage  exceeding the bonus frame by

of 60. maximum 50%.
Senior Executive Vice President 6 months 6 months 66% of salary at The bonus frame is 33.3% of fixed 100,000 +
and CFQ, Torstein Moland” the date of retire- salary. In addition, overperformance 100,000

ment with the right  may result in bonus payments

toretire attheage  exceeding the bonus frame by

of 60. maximum 50%.
Executive Vice President 6 months - 66% of salary at The bonus frame is 16.7% of fixed 100,000 +
and CTO, Berit Svendsen the date of retire- satary. In addition, overperformance 75,000

ment with the right  may result in bonus payments

foretire attheage  exceeding the bonus frame by

of 62. maximum 62.5%.
Executive Vice President 6 months - b6% of salary at The bonus frame is 72.5% of fixed 75,000 +
Stig Eide Sivertsen the date of retire- salary. In addition, overperformance 75,000

ment with the right  may result in bonus payments

toretire atthe age  exceeding the bonus frame by

of 62. maximum 50%.
Executive Vice President 6 months 6 months 66% of pension- The bonus frame is 33,3% of 70,000 +
Morten Karlsen Serby qualifying income annual salary 75,000
{irom 6 December 2002) at the date of retire-

ment with the right

ta retire at the

age of 62.¥
Executive Vice President 6 months 6 months 66% of salary at The bonus frame is 72.5% of fixed 75,000 +
lan Edvard Thygesen the date of retire- salary. In addition, overperformance 75,000

ment with theright  may result in bonus payments

to retire at the age
of 62.

exceeding the bonus frame by
maximum 50%.

"1f the budget is reached (for any given bonus criteria), 50% of the bonus frame is paid. Bonus targets are siretched and overperfor-
mance can result based on financial targets or adjustments {up or down) based on non-financial targets. In the table, both these
effects are referred to as overperformance, showing maximum bonus attainable. Overperformance may onty result from exceptional
performance. Arve Johansen, Stig Eide Sivertsen and Jan Edvard Thygesen had their salary reduced in 2002 in exchange for an
increase of the yearly bonus frame. '
In 2003, the possibilities to obtain bonus based on overperformance based on financial targets will be withdrawn.

# Arve Johansen and Torstein Moland, both have agreements which entitle them to a possible transfer to other tasks within the organi-
zation with the right to compensation of half their salary. These agreements relate to a specified time period up to the age of retire-
ment. The future pension benefits are based on the salary at the time of transfer to other work.

* The table shows the share options granted in 2002 and 2003 respectively. The share option programs for 2002 and 2003 are

described in note 29.

4 The Pension-gualifying income will be equal to the salary of 31 December 2002, with an annual regulation according to the

consumer price index.

% Pension-qualifying income will be adjusted in 2003 for the Group Management. Morten Karlsen Sgrby has already the pension term
that will be effective for the rest of the Group Management as of 1 January 2003.



Tote! loans to employees were NOK 50 million as of 31 December 2002. The loans were mainiy provided to finance cars pur-
chased by the employees as an alternative to company cars and loans were proviced in connection with the purchase cf
shares in the empoyee stock ownarship nrogram in December 2032 (NOK 15 million). The loans for purchease of shares were
limited to NOK 5,879 per empioyea aiter ciscount. Loans for purchase of shares are non-interest bearing and have terms of
one year. As of 31 December 2032, the three employee represantatives on tive beard of girectors each have such loans of NOK
5,879, respectively.

Tne number of shares owned oy the members of the board of directcrs, the corporate assembly end the Group managament as
of 3t December 2002 is shown below. Shares owned by the board of directors and tha Groun management includes closely
related parties.

The Board of Directors Numoer of shares as of 31.12.208

Thorileif Enger (chairman from March 2003) 2.000
Ashild Marianne Bendiktsen 682
Harald Stavin 3,258
Per Gunnar Salomecnsen 1,436
Irma Tystad 754
The Corparate Assembly Nurmbder of sharesaso? 31.12.2832
Ragnar Klevaas 682
Eystein Gjalsvik 275
Stein Erik Olsen 754
Berit Kopren 275
Jan Riddervold 1,578
Arne Jensen 437
The Sroup Menagement Number ol sharesesc? 31.12.2032
lon Fredrik Baksaas 20,275
Torstein Moland 11,640
Arve johansen 24,556
Berit Svendsen 4,297
Jan Edvard Thygesen 30,702
Stig Eide Sivertsen 28,189
Morten Karlsen Sarby 3218

Fees to auditors
The table below summarizes suggested audit fees for 2002 ang fees for audit related services, tax services and other services
invoicad to Telensor during 2002. Fass include boin Norwegian and foreign subsidiaries.

{in NOX mitlion excluding YAT) Audit fees Auditreleted fees  Fees for tax services Cther fees
Telenor ASA
Group Auditor 2.5 5.4 1.5 0.9

Other Group companies
Group Auditor 16.1 5.7 3.0 0.7
Other Auditors 8.1 2.4 1.8 7.1

In the Telenor Group there are thiee share options programs: Cne {or shares in Telenor ASA, one for the listed subsidiary com-
pany EDB Businzsss Partner ASA and one for the listed subsidiary Utfors AB.

Option proagram for shares in Telenor ASA
In 2002, 85 managers and key personnel were granted oaticns, and 110 managers and key personnel werz granted options in
2003.

For options granted in 2002: One third of the eotions are vested each of the three years subsecuent to the date of grant. The
latest possible exercise date is seven years suaseguent tc the date cf grant. The exercise price corresponds to the average
closing price at Oslo Stock Exchange five trading cays prior to the dete of grant, increasing with an interest per commenced
month corresponding to 1/12 of 12 months NIBOR (Norwegian Interoank intervest raie). Tnhe cptions may only be exercised four
timas a year, durirg a ten-day period aiter the publication of the company's guarterly resuiis. Latest possible exercise price is
NOK 5C.96 for options granted on 21 February 2002 and NOK 42.12 for options granted 21 june 2002.




For options granted in 2003: One third of the options are vested each of the three years subsequent to the date of grant and
are exercisable if the stock price at the time of exercise is higher than the average closing price at Oslo Stock Exchange five
trading days prior to the date of grant, adjusted with 5.38% per year. The latest possible exercise date is seven years subse-
quent to the date of grant. The exercise price corresponds to the average closing price at Oslo Stock Exchange five trading
days prior to the date of grant (NOK 26.44). The options may only be exercised four times a year, during a ten-day period after
the publication of the company's quarterly resulis.

Share

options

Options granted in 2002 (21 February) 2,520,000
Options granted in 2002 (21 June) 150,000
Options exercised in 2002 -
Options forfeited in 2002 55,000
Balance as of December 2002 2,465,000
150,000

Options granted 21 February 2003 2,850,000

Exercise price at the
end of opticn life"
50.96

42.12

50.96

50.96
42,12
26.44

Remaining
opticn life

6 years
6 years
7 years

Onticns exercisable
as af 371 December 2002

" Exercise prices for the share option programs of 2002 are calculated at the latest possible date of exercise, and based on 12 month
NIBOR implied forward rates calculated of the spot curve (20 February and 20 June each year, respectively). For the share option pro-

gram of 2003, the exercise price is fixed throughout the options’ term, and is NOK 26.44.

@ First possible exercise was February 2003 for 1/3 of the options.
¥First possibte exercise is July 2003 for 1/3 of the optians.
“ First possible exercise is February 2004 for 1/3 of the options.

Option prograrm for shares in EDB Business Partner ASA
The subsidiary EDB Business Pariner ASA has stock compensation plans for its employees. The exercise price is based on the
share price when the option was granted and is increased by 1% for each subsequent month until the date of exercise. Most of
the options that are not exercised according to the plan can be carried forward to the next year. Options granted had one to

four year terms, where one-third of vested options become exercisable each year. Options vest over a one to three year period
of continued employment. Vested but unexercised options can be carried forward to May 2004 or expire.

The share option plan has the approval of the shareholders of EDB Business Partner to grant options for the year ended 31
December 2002. The continuation of the plan for 2003 and 2004 requires, and is subject to, additional shareholders approval.
Norwegian taw requires shareholder approval of share issues, and the board of directors cannot obtain power of attorney to
execute such plan due to the longevity of the exercise period. For the purpose of the financial statements these grants should

be considerad effective.

Balance at 31 December 1999
Options granted in 2000
Options exercised in 2000
Options forfeited in 2000
Batance at 31 December 2000
Options granted in 2001
Options exercised in 2001
Options forfeited in 2001

Balance at 31 December 2001
Options granted in 2002
Options exercised in 2002
Options forfeited in 2002

Balance at 31 December 2002

Optiens
9,360,560
6,277,134
2,722,448

590,768

12,324,478

699,070
1,400,594
1,667,104
9,955,850

269,445

528,620
9,696,675

Weighted average
exercise 2rice
54.46

179.07

30.79

53.45

121,63

106.33

62.90

134.00

126.72

67.01

129.59

124.9



The tabie oelow datails EDB Businass Partnei's options ouistanding by reiatec option exercise price as of 31 December 2002
andis ga sed on “ne final exercise cates. Scme options undear the naw glan may be exercisad prior te the terminaticn of the
otan.

Weighted Average Ixercise Options Welghted Averege Cptions Exercischie
Price I'n NTK Cutstanding Remeining Life inyears as of 31 December 2002

62 3.876,203 1.3 -

183 4.561,286 1.3 -

137 389,271 1.3 -

105 627,670 1.3 -

67 242,245 1.3 -

124.2 9.283,872 -

Crlicn program for shares in Utlers AB
Utfors AB had e share option program. The pragram is now closed. The {ollowing ootions was ouistancing s cf 31 Zecember 2222,

Weighted Average
Weighted Average Exercise Cptions Remaining Life Cotions Exercisacte
Z+{ca (in SEX) Tutstanding {in menths) g5l 31 Jzcembar 2332
138 216,666 0.5 216,665
300 60,000 6 50,000
25 1,120,000 2.5 1,120,000
173 216,667 12.5 216,667
82 200,000 i2.5 200,000
31 840,000 14.5 840,000
89 200,000 24 200,000
217 216,567 24.5 216,667
38 840,000 26.5 840,000
105 200,600 36.5 200,000
1,189 4,110,000 4,110,802
e N 28 SN ARESTLIDERS TS

Telenor ASA han as cf 31 December 2002 a shar'= capitel of NOK 10,820,557,032, divided into 1,803,426,172 ordinary shares
with a nominal value of NOK & each. All shares have equal voting rights and the right to receive dividends. As of 31 December
2002, the company had remaining 28,103,172 treasury shares of the iotal of 30,080,0C0, which were issued to Telenor as
treasury shares to be used to grart additional bonus shares to retail investors in Norway nursuant to the global offering in
December 2003. On 4 Decemoer 2001, 1,826,828 treasury shares weare transferred as additional bonus shares to retail
investors. The general meeting held in 2001 granted an authority to the Board of Directors that the remaining shares cou'd be
used for othar nurposes.

t the general meating held on 8 May 2002, it was resolved to grant a authority to the board of directors to increase the share
cap.tm with an amount up to NOK 1,064,776,488 through issuance cf up 10 177,452,748 ordinary shares of NCK & nominal
value 2ach. Such authority lasts untit 1juty 2003. The Board of Directors may waive the pre-emptive rights of sharehatders to
such shares. The authority includes the issuance of shares against consideration other than cash and the issuance of shares in
a mergar. The purpose of the authority is to place the company in a better positian for future growth. Such an increase in share
capital may also be used in share option plans for managers and key personnel and stocik ownership programs for employees.
An employee stock cwnership program took place in 2001 and 2002, under which 695,520 shares at a nominal vatus of NOK 6
each were subscribed for in Becember 2002. Telenor ASA established a share option plan on 21 February 2002, see note 29.
At the general meeting in May 2002 approval was given for the Board of Directors to acquire up to 90,136,532 own shares with
a nominal value toialing NCK 540,819,1S2. The amount paid per share shall be & minimum of NOK 6 and a maximum of NG
2303, Such authority tasts until 1 Juty 2003.

The following shareholders had 1% or more of the total number of 1,775,323,000 outstanding shares (excluding the 28,103,172
mitlion treasury shares) as cf 31 December 2002.

Name of sherehoidars Number of shares g
Ministry of Trada and Industry 1,430,000,000 78.86
National Insurance Scheme Fund 44,524,000 2.51

Siate Street Bank (nominee) 21,512,077 1.21




SITRD STAVIS ZENER : SN ATETUNTIN :
The Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared under Norwegian GAAP, which differs in ceriain respects
from US GAAP. The principal differences between the Group's accounting principles under Norwegian GAAP and US GAAP are

set out below:

I RINCIHES

Reconciliation of net income (loss) from Norwegian GAAP 2o US GAAP
(in NOK millions, except per share amounts) Note 2002 2007 2020
Net income (loss) in accordance with Norwegian GAAP (4,298) 7.079 1,076

Adjustments for US GAAP:

Depreciation of capitalized interest associated companies 1 (3) (38) (4)
Pensions 2 (24) (25) (25)
Amortization of license costs and related goodwill 3 (2) en (3)
Temporary investments in entities 4 12 43 (38)
Gains on subsidiaries equity transactions and disposal of shares

in subsidiary 5 - - 393
Stock compensation 7 - 52 (194)
Sale and lease back of properties 8 49 36 (153}
Derivative financial instruments 9 47 7 -

- Goodwill amortization 10 1631 39 -
Goodwill impairment 10 (390) - -
Measurement date 1 12 - -
Sale of software 12 (345) - -
Tax effect of US GAAP adjustments 13 (68) (56) (48)
Minority interests 7 (279) {270) 78
Netinceme (loss) in eccordance with US GAAP {3,658) 7004 1,082
Net income from continuing operations {excluding Telenor Media) - 1,88¢ 834
Netincome (icss) per share
~ From continuing operations (excluding Telenor Media) - 1.056 0.599
- Cumulative effect on prior years of change in accounting principle - 0.033 -
- In accordance with US GAAP (basic} (2.061) 3.952 0.759
— In accordance with US GAAP (diluted) (2.061) 3.848 0.759
Revenues in accordance with US CAAP 47,879 40,581 36,481
Reconciliation of sharghelder's eguity from Norwegian GAAP to US GAAR
{in NOK milticns) Note 20382 2021
Shareholder's equity in accordance with Norwegian GAAP 33,685 42,144
Adjustments for US GAAR:

Dividends 14 799 621
Capitalized interest associated companies 1 25 28
Pensions 2 116 140
Amortization of license costs and related goodwill 3 20 22
Temporary investments in entities 4 (98) (110)
Gains on subsidiaries' equity transactions and disposal of shares in subsidiary 5 700 700
Marketable equity securities net of tax 6 (7 27
Stock compensation 7 (172) (172)
Sale and lease back of properties 8 (68) (1n
Derivative financial instruments 9 (114) (30)
Goodwill amortization 10 1.670 39
Goodwill impairment 10 (390} -
Measurement date 11 683 -
Sale of software 12 (345) -
Minimum pension liability 2 (34) -
Tax effect of US GAAP adjustments 13 (223) {188)
Minority interests 5 (438) (160)
Sharshelder's equitly in accordance with LS GAAP 35,7809 42,944
Total assets in accordance with US GAAP 97,511 90,129

Long-term interest-bearing liabilities in accordance with US GAAP 33,957 24,758



The following table reflects the components of comprehensive income under US CAAR
{in NOK milligns) 2002 2001 2000
Net incoma (loss) in accordance with US GAAP {3,658} 7,004 1,082

Other comprenensive income

- Unrealized gain {loss) on available for sale securities, net of tax (42) ag (210}
— Translation adjusiment (2,818} 47 (349)
Minimum person ligbility, net of tax (24) - -
Tote! other comprehensive income (2,834) 143 {339]
Comprehensive income {6,542) 7,120 523

(1) Capitalized interest
Under Norwegian GAAP the Group has expensed interest incurred in connection with the financing of associated companies.

Under US GAAP interest incurred on equity funds, loans and advances 1o associated companies, under a period which the
associated company is undergoing activities necessary to start its pianned princinal operations and sucn activities includes the
use of funds to acqguire qualifying assets for its operations, shall be capitalized.

(2) Pensions
In 1295 the Group began to account for pensions according to the accounting standard which is substantially consistent with
US GAAP. The change in accounting principle was offset directly against shareholder's eauity.

Under US GAAP the effect of adopting SFAS B7 would be amortized over the remaining average service periog.

In accordance with US GAAP a provision is recorded divectly against shareholders equity where the accumulated benefit obli-
gation (ABO) exceeds plan assets. This is not in accordance with Norwegian GAAP.

{3) Amaortization of license costs and related goodwill

Up to the end of 1997 the Group amortized license costs and gooawill related 1o acquired licenses over a period not exceeding
10 years. With effect from 1298 the amortization period has been changed to the term of the licensa. In accordance with Nor-
wagian GAAP this change has been accounted for as a change of estimate, with no retrcactive restatement of prior parisds.

Under the US GAAP reconciliation, this revision in the amoriization pericd was accounted for retroactively,

{4) Temporary investment in entities
Investments in entities in which the Group has an ownership that is considered to be temgorary in nature are recorded at cost
or written down to fair value. The Group invests periadically in companies for the purpose of making profits.

Under US GAAP, all temporary investments with an ownership greater or equal to 20% are accounted for under the equity method
or consolidated. The effect on the financial statements of temporary investmants consolidated under US GAAP are immatarial.

Total assets accounted for under the equity method for US GAAP was NOK 14,389 miilion for the year ended 31 December 2001
and NOK 9,627 million for the year ended 31 December 2002

Total assets accounied for under the cost method for US GAAP was NOK 95 million for the year ended 31 December 2007 and
NOK 64 million for the year ended 31 December 2002.

(®) Gainfrom subsidiaries eguity transactions, disposal of shares in o subsidiary and minority interes?
Under Norwegian GAAP, no gains from subsidiary's equity transacticns and disposal of snares in a subsidiary are recognized.

Under US GAAP, the Group records gains from subsidiary eguity transactions (SAB 51 transactions) and disposal of shares in a
subsidiary througa income.

Under Norwegian GAAP, the minority interest is measured at fair value of the consideration paid from the minority. The difier-
ence between the racorded eguity in the subsidiary and value of the consideration paid by the minority will be amortized or
written down through allocating results to minority.

This aliocaticn is not consistent with US GAAP.
The following information relates to the issuance of subsidiary shares in 2000, 200t and 2002 under US GAAP:

Telenor reduced i’s ownership stake in EGB Business Partner ASA when £EDB Businass Partner ASA issued shares to minority
sharenholders for cash in two iransactions in February and May 200G, recucing Telenor's ownership 0y 7.3%. In particular, EDB




Business Partner ASA issued 6.9 million shares in February 2000 at a price per share of NOK 137. Telenor did not participate in
this issue, and Telenor's ownership was reduced from 59.6% to 54.2%. EDB Business Partner ASA issued another 10 million
shares in iiay 2000 at a price per share of NOK 100. Also during May 2000, 2.7 million share option subscriptions by employ-
ees took place at an average price per share NOK 37.73. Telenor's ownership was thereby reduced from 54.2% to 52.6%. Total
consideration received from minority shareholders was NOK 1,449 million and recognized gain under US GAAP was NOK 393
million. In May 2001 1.4 million shares were issued by the employees share option subscriptions at an average price of NOK
48.26 per share. Taxes have been accrued in the tax effect line item of US GAAP adjustments.

(6) Marketable equity securities

For investmenits in marketable equity securities classified as current assets that are managed as a portfolio, adjustment in the
book value are only made if the aggregate holdings have a lower estimated fair value than the original cost. Other marketable
shares are valued at the lower of cost or fair market value. Investment in marketable equity securities classified as long-term
are valued at historical cost or possibly fair value if the decline in value is not temporary.

Under US GAAP, marketable equity securities are valued at their fair value for each security. For marketable equity securities
classified as available for sale, unrealized gains and losses after tax are recorded directly to shareholder's equity. All listed
shares are classified as available for sale in accordance with SFAS 115.

As of 31 December 2001 and 2002, available for sale securities at cost amounted to NOK 384 mitlion and NOK 280 million,
respectively, with uniealized holding gain of NOK 38 million for 31 December 2001 and NOX 21 mitlion for 31 December 2002,
respectively. For the years ended 31 December 2001 and 2002, proceeds from the sale of available for sale securities was NOK
94 million and NOK 19 million, respectively. The gross realized toss from such sales was NOK 238 million in for the year ended
31 December 2001 and NOK 5 miltion for the year ended 31 December 2002, respectively.

{7} Stock compensation
In 2002, Telenor introduced a share option program granting options to 85 managers and key personnel to subscribe up to
2,670,000 of Telenor's shares

The subsidiary EDB Business Partner ASA also has a stock compensation plans for its employees.

In accordance with Norwegian GAAP, the Group did not recognize expense for stock options with no intrinsic value that were
granted to employees.

In accordance with US GAAP, the measurement date for determining compensation costs for stock options is the first date at
which the number of shares the employee is entitled tc receive and the exercise price of the options are known.

\When Telenor ASA granted the stock options the number of shares was known at the grant date, however, the exercise price to
be paid was not known when the employee would exercise the option. Accordingly, variable plan accounting for these options
would apply under US GAAP and the intrinsic value of the options at the end of each reporting period, based on the presumed
exercise price and the quoted market price of Telenor’s stock, would be calculated and recorded as compensation expense
over the vesting period.

When EDB Business Partner ASA granted stock options, the number of shares was known at the grant date, however, the exer-
cise price to be paid was not known gecause it was not known when the employee would exercise the option. Accordingly, vari-
aole plan accounting for these options would apply under US GAAP and the intrinsic value of the options at the end of each
reporting period, based on the presumed exercise price and the quoted market price of EDB Business Partner's stock, would be
calculated and recorded as compensation expense over the vesting period.

Options for EDB Business Pariner ASA are vested over a one to three year period of continued employment. Vested but unex-
ercised options can be carried forward to May 2004 or expire. Of the total options outstanding at year-end, options for 1.7
million shares have been accounted for as fixed plan awards. In fixed plan awards, the measurement date occurs on the grant
date when both the number of shares of stock that may be acquired and the price to be paid by the employee are known. The
options for the remaining 8.0 million shares of stock are considered variable plan grants because terms do not define the uiti-
mate exercise price of the options.

Telenor and EDB Business Pariner have elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees” (APB 25) and related interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options. Howevey, pro forma
information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by FASB Statement No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” (SFAS 123), and has been determined as if Telenor and EDB Business Partner had accounted for its employee
stock opticns under the fair value method of that Statement. The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of
grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions. The assumptions for
2002 were risk-free interest rates of 5.85%; dividend yield of 2% for Telenor and of zero for EDB Business Partner; volatility



factor of the exnacted markst orice of 32% for Telenor's common shares and 30% for ED3 Business Partner's common shares;
and a weighteg-average expected life of the options of 6.3 years for Teienor and 1.3 years for EDB Businass Pariner. The
Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options thet have no vest-
ing restrictions and are fuily transferaoie. in addition, option valuatich modals reguire tha input of highty sugjective assumo-
tions including the expecied stoci price volatility. Because {12 employea stock options have characteristics significantly dif-
ferent from those af traded cptions, and decause changes in tha sudeciive input assumations can materiaily affect the fair
valuz estimate, in management's opinion, the axisting medels do not necessariy provide a reliable singla maasure of the fair
vatua of its emplovee stock options. Had compensation cost for these plans bean determined consistent with SFAS 123, the
Group's net inceme (loss) accorcing to US GAAP woutd have been the fotlowing:

in NOX million {excer? per shere amounts) 2002 el 2000
Net Inceme (loss) gs reported (3,658) 7,004 1,082
Deduct stock basad employee compensation expense included in reported

nat income, nat of tax effects - (52) 124
Add stock based employee comnensation expense determined undar fair

value based method for all awards, net of tax {34) (94) (133)
Pro ferma net income (loss) in accordance with US GAAP 13,692) 3,858 1,43

Net incocme {loss) per share in eccardence with US GAAP

Basic as reported ir accordance with US GAAP (2.061) 3.952 0.759
Basic proforma in accordance with US GAAP (2.081) 3.870 0.802
Oiluted as reported in accordance with US GAAP (2.051) 3.948 0.75¢
Diluted pro forma in accordance with US GAAP (2.081) 3.866 0.801

The stock options may have a dilutive effect.

A summary of Teienor's and ED3 Susiness Pariner's stock option progrems and related information for the years ended 31
Decemoer are given in note 28.

{8) Sale and iease back of properties
] a

Undar Norwagien GAAP the Group recognized gains from sale and lease back of properties whan tha leasa back agrezamant is
an operating lease agreament.

Under US GAAP only gain from sale and lease back of properties that exceed the net presant value of the lease back agree-
ment can be recognized as gains. Tha remaining gains must be deferved over the lease periods.

(8) Berivative financial instruments

Effective 1 January 2001, US GAAP introduced Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133, "Accounting for
Cerivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amandec 8y SFAS No. 138. This acceunting standard requires that all dariv-
ative instruments de recorded on the balance sheet at fair value and establishes criteria for designation and effectiveness of
hedging re.ationships for which hadge accounting is applied.

interest rete derivatives not hald for trading purposes arz carried at cost under Norwegian GAAP. Under US GAAP all deriva-
tives are now recorded marked-to-market and recognized on the baiance sheet at fair value.

Under Norwegian SAAP Telenor may combine more than sne instrument in hadging of nat investments. Under US GAAP there
are more stringent requirements of what instruments can be designaied as hecging instruments, and foreign exchange gains
or lossas are i0 a greater extent reported through earnings under US GAAP than Norwegian GAAP. Telenor's policy is to use
insiruments that may be used as hedging under both Norwegian GAAP and US GAAP, as long as this is cost effective.

The following information relates to derivative financial instruments under SFAS 133:

Derlvative (end nonderivative) instruments designated s fair value hedging nstruments

A significant portion of the debt issued by Telenor is fixed rate bonds (88% of outstanding bands as of 31 December 2002).
Fixed rate bonds with long maturities impose a greater interest rate risk — in terms of merk-te-market risk — than management
wisnes (e take on. As such the interest rate exposure on these bonds is often altered through entering into a derivative instru-
ment that ailows Telenor to receive a fixed interest and pay a specified fioating interest rate. Telenor has designated these

derivatives as {air vaiue hedging relationships.




A comimon strategy for Telenor is to issue a fixed rate bond in the currency in which funding is to be raised and consequently
enter into a "receive fixed/pay floating” interest rate swap. These fair value hedging relationships typically qualify for short cut
freatment, as the requirements set out in paragraph 68 of SFAS 133" are met.

A second hedging strategy for Telenor is to hedge a fixed rate bond issued in currency other than Norwegian Kroner with a
receive “fixed non base/pay floating” base cross currency interest rate swap. In these cases the hedged risks would be bench-
mark interast rates and exchange rates®. The swap would be the hedging instrument and the bond would be the hedged object
in the fair value hedging relationship. In certain cases a combination of swaps are designated as the hedging instrument. Short
cut treatment would not be applicable using this strategy. Still the hedging effectiveness for these hedging relationships has
proven to be close to 100%, which has been in line with management's expectations given the cash flows of the transactions
involved.

Dervetive instruments designated as cash flow hedging instruments
Telenor has not designated any cash flow hedging relationships during the fiscal year 2002.

Berivative (and nonderivative) instruments designated as hadging instruments of a net investment in a foreign
operation

As described in Note 21 to the financial siatements Telenor hedges net investments in foreign currency by issuing debt in the
various currencies or through entering into derivative transactions. Material hedging positions have been designated as net
investment hedges. In 2002 the instruments involved have been bonds and forward contracts. To the extent these hedging
relationships have proven to be effective, transtation adjustments on these hedging instruments have been reported in the
Cumulative Translation Adjustment section of equity.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

Telenor has a duration-based target for interest rate risk management. Interest rate swaps are used to periodically rebalance
the portfolio in order to be in line with the duration target. These derivatives do not qualify as hedging instruments, and are
marked-to-market-through earnings.

Foreign currency swaps are frequently used for liguidity management purposes. No hedging relationships are designated in
relation to these derivatives, and any changes in fair value are recognized through earnings.

Quantitative information

Feir value hedging relationships; in NOX millicns
Net loss recognized in 2002 earnings hedged items: 124
Net gain recognized in 2002 earnings hedging instruments (129)
Amount of hedge ineffectiveness (5)

No components of the derivative instruments' gain or loss have been excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness.

Hedges of foreign currency exposure of a net investment in a foreign operation;
Net amount of gains on hedging instruments included in the cumulative translation adjustment during 2002 was NOK 1,138
million.

For forward contracts the forward points have been excluded in determining hedge efiectiveness. The hedge ineffectiveness
charged to profit and loss in this context is immaterial.

Cash flow hedging relationships;
Not applicadte.

(1C) Goodwil amortization and impairment of goodwill

Effective 1 July 2001, Telenor adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 {SFAS 141), "Business Combina-
tions” and effective 1January 2002, Telenor adopted the full provision of Statement 14} and Statement No. 142 (SFAS 142),
“Goodwill and Dther Intangible Assets”. SFAS 141 requires all business combinations initiated after 30 June 2001 to be
accounted for under the purchase method. SFAS 141 also sets forth guidelines for applying the purchase method of accounting
in the determination of intangible assets, including goodwill acquired in a business combination, and expands financial disclo-
sures concerning business combinations consummated after 30 June 2001.

" A number of requirements are outlined in this paragraph. Among others; the notional amount of the swap matches the principal
amount of the interest-bearing asset or liability, the fair value of the swap at its inception is zero, the formula for computing net
settlements under the interest rate swap is the same for each net settlement.

2The benchmarl interast rates in this instance would be the swap rates.




Undar SFAS No. 142, goodwill will no longer be amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life, ut will b2 test-
ed for impairment on an annual basis and whenever indicators of imaairment arise. SFAS No. 142 orescrives a two-phase
process for impairment testing of goodwill. In the first phase Telenor identifies reporiing units whare goodwill must be tested
for impairmant by comparing net assets of each reporting unit to the respective fair vatue. In the second phase (if necessary)
the impairment is measured by determine the fair value of goocdwiil by assigning the unit's fair value to each assets and liabiti-
imntied fair value of goodwill. Telenor completed its first phase impairment analysis during the fourth quarter of 2002 and
founc one reporting unit with a carrying value in excess of tha fair velue based on the public guoted stock price agjusted (o
reflect a control premium. Accordingly, the second testing phase was nacessary and was performed with assistance of externzl
valuation exparts. This resulted in impairment loss of goodwill of NCX 2,252 million recorded under US GAAPR.

In accordance with Accounting Principles Board (“AP3”) Oginion No. 20, “Accounting Changes,” the effect of this accounting
chenge is reflected prosnactively. Supplemental comparative disclosure according to US GAAP, as if the change had bee
retroactively appliad, is as follows:

(in NOX miliions, except per share amounts) 2001 2000
Reported net income 7,3C4 Loe
Goodwill amoitization, net of tax and minority interasts 1,840 1,179
Adjusted netincame 8,844 2,251

Earnings per share

Reparted earnings per share 3.952 0.759
Goodwill amortization per share net of tax and minority interests 1.037 0.826
Adjusted earnings per share 4,989 1.585

Under Norwegian GAAP goodwill is amortized. At year end 2002 gocodwill was also considered to be impaired ‘or the reporting
entity based on the same valuation 1s under US GAAP. An impairmeant loss of NOiK 2.1 billion was recorded as the difference
between the carrying value and the fair value based on the guoted market share zrice adjusted to reflect a contro! premium.
The second step of the goodwilt impairment test is not consistent with Norwegian GAAP.

(11) Measurement date
Under US GAAP the measuremant date is the date assets are received and other assets are given, liabilities are assumed or
incurred, or eguity interests are issued, which is consistent with the date of consolidation

Under Norwegian GAAP the measurement cate is the date the risk for the company’s resuils of operations is transferred. The
acquired company's results, amortization of net excess values and calcuiated financing expenses have been recoraed girectly
againsi the Group's shareholders’ aquity in the period between the date for transfer of risk and the date of consolidation. The
date of consolidation is consistent with US GAAP. This has resulted in a charge directly to snareholder’s equity under Nor-
wegian GAAP that is not consistent with US GAAP and a difierent valuation of tangible and intangible assets under Norwegian
GAAP compared to US GAAP and therefore also differences in subsequent cepreciation and amortization.

{12) Sele of software
Telenor is a providar of full servicz application and IT operating systems services. Under Norwegian GAAP, revenue from sale
cf software licenses and software upgrades. Is recognized unon the delivery of the software licenses and software upgrades
under US GAAP, revenue from sale of software lisences and software ungrades is dafarred and recognized as revenus over
remaining software maintenance pariod as the customer doas not have access to the sofiware unless Telenor provides soft-
“ware maintenance. In addtior, in conjuction with these contracts, the Company may deveiop additional appiications that are
not essential to tha use of the software. Under Norwegian GAAPR, the fees for the development of the additional sofiware are
recognized based on the percentage of completion method of accounting. Under US GAAP, these development fees are also
deferred and recognized as revenue over the remaining software maintenance peariod.

(13) Taxes
The income tax effects of US GAAP adjustments are recorded as deierred taxes.

(14) Dividends
Undar Norwegian GAAP, dividends payaole reduce shareholdar's equity for the year in which they relate.

Under US GAAP, dividends payable are recorded as a reduction of shareholder's equity when approved.
{13) Cross Lordar tex benefit leases

The Group has offset the future lease obligations under the digital te.ephone switches and the GSM Mobite telephone natwork
cross porder tax benefit lease transaction against the unused prepayments on depesits ai {inancial institutions.




Botnh under Norwegian GAAP and under US GAAP Telenor have deferred the gain from the transactions since there is more
than a remote possibility of loss of the gain due to indemnification or othar contingencies.

Under US GAAP, assets and liabilities may not be offset except when there exists the {egal right to offset the asset and liability.
The legal right to offset the prepaid lease amount against the future lease obligations does not legally exist. Therefore, under
US GAAP, the prepaid lease amounts and the Group's future obligations under the sales-leaseback transactions are recorded
gross on the consolidated balance sheet as financial assets and long-term interest-bearing liabilitias in the amount of
approximately NO 4,830 million for the year ended 31 December 2001 and financial assets and long-term interest-oecring
tiabilities of NO 3,557 million for the year ended 31 December 2002. This does not affect the profit and loss statement or
shareholder's equity.

At 31 December 2002 future minimum annual rental commitmeants under capital iease liabilitizs ave as follows under US GAAP:

{in NOXL mitizns) As cf 3] Decamver 2002
2003 517
2004 839
2005 641
2006 658
2007 814
Later years through 2006 2.894
Total minimum lease payments 8,163
Less amount representing interest 662
Capital lease obligation under US GAAP 5,501
Capital lease obligation under Norwegian GAAP 1,928
Deferred gain (both Norwegian and US GAAP) 208

Capital lease property is included in tangible assets as follows (&t net book value):

{in NOK miilicns) 2002 2001
Switches 221 355
GSM mobite telephony network 478 737
Satellites 732 790
Set top boxes 334 -
Other 105 -
Total 1,870 1,862

(16) Revenue recognition
Under Norwegian GAAP gains on the sale of fixed assets and operations are included in totat revenues. Under US GAAP such
gains would be included below other operating income.

Under Norwegian GAAP revenue from telecommunications installation fees and connection fees are recognized in revenue at
ihe time of the sale and all initial direct costs are expensed as incurred. Under US GAAP, such connection and installation fees
thal do not represent a separate earnings process should be deferred and recognized over the periods that the feas are earned
which is the expected period of the customer retationship. Initial direct costs to the extent of the deferred revenue should also
be deferred over the same period that the revenue is recagnized. The effect on net income of this difierence is not material.

SAB 101
The Company nhas considered the effect of SAB 101 and determinad that it would not have a material effect on net income for
any period presented.

New U.S. Accounting Standards

In November 2002, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue 00-21, addressing how to account for arrangements that involve
the delivery or performance of multiple products, services, and/or rights to use assets. Revenue arrangements with multiple
deliverables are divided into separate units of accounting if the deliverables in the arrangement meet the following criteria: (1)
the delivered item has value to the customer on a standalone basis; (2) there is objective and reliable evidenca of the fair
value of undelivered items; and (3) delivery of any undelivered item is probable. Arrangement consideration should be allocat-
ed among the separate units of accounting based on their relative fair values, with the amount allocated to the delivered item
being limited to the amount that is not contingent on the delivery of additional items or meeting other specified performance
conditions. The final consensus will be appticable to agreamenis entered into in fiscal periods beginning after 15 June 2003
with early adoption permitted. Telenor has not determined the impact that the statement will have on revenues or operating
result.

in June 2002, the FASB issuad SFAS No. 145, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” wnich is effective




for financial statements where exit or disposal activities are initiated after 31 December 2002. This statement nullifies EITF issue
24-3, “Liabiity Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and cther Costs to Exit an Activity,” which allowed recogni-
tion of a liability for exit and disposal activities upon management's intent to exit o dispose of an activity. This statement reguires
that a lisbllity for costs assaciated with an exit or disposat activity 0e recognized when the ii2bility is incurred. Telenor will adopt
this statement for exit or dispose! activities initiated from 1 January 2003.

in Becember 2002, the FASB issuad SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Basea Compensation — Transition and Disciosure.”
This Statement amands SFAS Nas. 123, “Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a velun-
tary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based amployee compensation. In addition, this State-
ment amends the disclosure reguirements of SFAS No. 123 to reguire prominent disclosures in botn annual and interim finan-
cial statemants about the method of accounting for stock-dased employee compensation and the effect of the method used
on reporied resulis, The disciosure provisions of this Standard are effective for fiscal years ending after 15 Decembar 2002
and have been incorporated into these financial statements and accompanying footnotes.




=NT O
Telenor ASA
1 lanuary — 31 December for2082 and 200 % 21July - 31 Cecember for 2000

{in NOK mitlicns}) Note 2002 2001 2002

Revenues 605 270 -

Gains on disposal of operations 03 5,158 -

Tota: revenues G568 5,428 -

Operating expenses

Salaries and personnel costs 2,3 350 148 8

Other operating expenses 4 671 381 24

Losses on disposal of operations 5 1,390 - -

Depreciation and amortization 39 6 -

Total cperating expenses 2,450 535 22

Operating profit (loss) (1,782) 4,893 {32}
Net financial items 6 (3,494) 5,854 5,585

Profit (loss) before taxes {5,275) 10,847 5,533

Taxes ' 7 2,650 (4,947) {1.549)
Net income (lass) (2,626) 500 3,834

Proposed dividends 729 621 532

Group contribution distributed, net after taxes 137 9,363 2,342
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Telznar ASA &t 31 December

{in NDK milions) Note 2002 2021
Assets

Deferred tax assets 7 2,285 -
Other intangible assets 205 223
Tangible assets 46 43
Financial assets 8 85,495 18,706
Totel fined assets 82,011 18,270
Interest-bearing receivables on Group companies - 23,005
Non-interest-bearing receivables on Group companias 258 137
Reczivable Group Contribution - 16,336
Non-interest-bearing receivables external 102 131
Cash and cash equivalents - 395
Total current assels 380 43023
Totzl assetls 88,371 58,8978

Equity end Liabitities

Equilty 2232 42608
Provisions - - g
Long-term interest-bearing liabilities 9 21,470 -
Long-term non-interest-bearing liabilities 195 212
Tots! long-term Listilities 21,5633 212
Short-term interest-bearing liabilities 9 25,583 -
Shori-term non-interest-baaring liabilities 10 1,821 16,150
Total short-term Uabilities 27,504 - 18,730
Total eguity and tfabilities %8,377 38,976
Mortages - -
Guarantee liabilities 11 6,934 1,871

Oslo, 18 March 2003

%L‘pﬂ Jo %d«m 5é @Lowm M% WJ/MM

Thaorleif Enger Ashild M. Bendikisen Hanne de Mora Einar Forde lorgen Lindegaard
Chairman of the Board Vice-chairmon of Board member Board member Board member
of Directors the Board of Directors
Byt Haratd S 2 G Satomarsn. Juune. Vst
Bjarg Ven Harald Stavn Par Gunnai Salomonsen lrma Tystad
Baard memaber Board member Baoard member Board member

~ QMZJY %z‘lﬂ“’]

Jon Fredrik Baksaas
President & CEQ
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Telenor ASA

i january — 31 December for2002 and 2001 21 luly — 31 December for 20C0

{in NCI ritlions) 2C02 2001 2300
Profit before taxes {5,276) 10,847 3,533
Taxes paid (1,303) (507) -
Net (gain) loss 1,341 (5.158) -
Depreciation and amortization 39 6 -
Group contribution - {16,336) (5.487)
\Write-down of shares 5,893 11,705 -
Currency gain not relating to operating activities (457) - -
Changes in accruals etc. (63) (51) {46)
Net cash flow from cperating activitites 174 306 -
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets (12) (39) -
Cash receipts from sale of subsidiaries 16 5,326 -
Cash payments on establishing new companies (2,250) (52) -
Cash payments on establishing receivables on Group companies (3,754) (7,550) (15,378)
Purchase of other investments (753) (93) -
Net cash fiow from investment activities {6,733) {2,408) (15,378}
Proceeds from long-term liabilities 11,012 - -
Proceeds from short-term liabilities 1,081 598 -
Payments of long-term liabilities (6,935} - -
Payments of short-term liabilities (300) - -
Proceeds from issuance of shares 13 21 15,583
Paid costs in connection with capital increase - (54) (205)
Payments of dividend (621) (532) -
Proceeds from Group contribution 5,682 5,485 -
Payments of Group contribution (3,702} (3,220) -
Net cash fiow frem financing activities 5,236 2,298 18,378
Effect on cash and cash eguivalents of changes in foreign exchange rates (53) - -
Net change in cash and cash equivaients (343) 323 -~
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 396 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December - 396 -
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Telenor ASA

Cther
Share maid Cirer  Treasury
Nom Cezhal ceaitel 2quily shares Totel
Number  Amount {NTK i (NT! INCK
af shares LNOX) it} mill} mitl)
Egulity &t establishment considering
comtripution in itind 3 Ccteber22I0 1,400,000,000 6 8,400 5,600 4,611 - 18,511
Shares cividend issue 10 November, 2000 30,000,600 ) 180 (180) - - -
Treasury shares - 5 183 - (180} -
Shares issus Bacambar 2000 372,151,89¢ B 2,233 13,013 - - 15,246
Net income for 2300 (21.07-31.12) - - - - 3,984 - 3,984
Dividends - - - - (532} ~ (532)
Batarce as of 3t December,2230 .,8C2,'31,88¢ G IC,213 18,613 8,063 {180) 37,338
Nat incomz for the year 2001 - - - - 5,800 - 5,e00
Bividends - - - - (621) - (621)
Employee share issue 578,753 5 3 17 - - 20
Distribution of own shares - 5 - (1) - (1 -
Balznce as of 31 December, 23C1 802,723,352 3 13,813 18,618 13,342 (138 42,808
Net income for the year 2002 - - - - (2.626) - (2.625)
Dividends - - - - (792) - (799)
Employee share issue 695,520 6 4 15 - - 19
Belance as of 37 Cecember, 2032 %8L3,428,172 & 10,828 18,334 g,917 (132} 3220

3ANLEE ~
Telanor ASA is a holding compeny end contains ‘tha roup Managemsnt and corporate functions. As of 15 Anrit 2002, Telenor's
internal bani (Telengr Finans), among other entities, was transferred from Telenor Communications AS (now Telenor Eiendom
iHolding AS) with assets and ligbilitizs, including guarantee liabilities. Furthermore, in 2002 Telencr ASA started some strategic
Grous prejects, mainty Telenor's program for improving the efficiency of operations, Delta 4. Canseguently the figures for
2002 are not directly comparaote tc 2331 The Group Management wes transterred from Telenor Communications AS asof |
lanuary 2301, and corporate functions as of 1Juty. in the first six months of 2005, Telenor ASA naid a service fee to Telenor
Communicaticns AS for corporate functions.

in 2001, Telensr ASA owned shares in Telenor Communications AS, and Telenar Communications AS owned shares in a number
of subsidiaries. As a part of the reorgansza’uon of the Telenor Group a number of holding companies were estaolished in 2001,
in 2082, tne shares in Telenor Comimunications AS were deimergac and distriouied to the holding companies.

Revenues are mainly managemen: fee from tha Telenscr Group and saie of consuitancy services to other Group companies.
Purchases frem otiver companias within the Group consist mainly of consuitancy fees in sirategic Groun proiacts, sroperty
lease, [T-cperaticns and maintenance.

Telenor ASA conducts the main part of the external debt finencing in Telensy, and provideas loan to, and recelves ptacements of
liguid assets from Group companies. See noie 2010 the cansclidated financial statements.

Shares in sudsidiaries and loans provided to these are evaluated at cost. Investments in subsidiaries are 2valuated as @ whole,
and aajustments in the 000k vaiue are only made if the aggregated holcings have a tower estimated {air vaiue than the origi-
nal ces® or & loss in valuzs for e separate investment is other than & temporary dacline. The valuz of the invesiments in sub-
sidiaries must o2 viswed tcge ther with the values in the consolideted accounis. Write-downs of the values cf Teienor ASAs
investments in sugsidiaries nave been performed to detter reflect the valuss in the consclidated {inancial statements. The

write-cowns are ciassified as financiat items in the pi’OflL ¢ loss statement.




Telenor ASA’s accounting principles are similar to the accounting principles for the Telenor Group, as described. Whare the
notes for the parent company are substantially different from the notes for the Group, these are shown below. Otherwise refer
to the notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Group. All profit and loss figures for 2000 covers the period from

21 July through 31 December.

2084 18 ANG PERSONNEL CTEVS

The Group’s Chief Executive Officer and the Board of Directors have the same position in Telenor ASA. We refer to note 28 to
the consotidated financial statements for the Group for further information on the compensation to the Board of Directors,

management, auditor etc. for the year 2002.

Salaries and Personne! costs 2002 2001 2000
Salaries and holiday pay 213 g8 -
Social security tax 36 14 -
Pension cost including social security tax 58 24 -
Other personnel costs 43 12

Total sataries and personnel costs 330 148

3 PENSION TRLICATIONS

{in NCK miltions} 2002 2001
Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 170 -
Service cost 29 18
Interest cost 24 6
Actuarial gains and losses 8 14
Transfer of businesses 216 131
Benefits paid (81) -
Benefit cbiigations at the end of the yeer 363 17C
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the vear 129 -
Actual return on plan assets (5) 16
Transfer of business 141 91
Pension contribution 42 22
Benefits paid (12} -
Falr velue of plan assets at the end of the year 294 128
Funded status 72 41
Unrecognized prior service costs"” (118) (2)
Unrecognized net actuarial losses” (104) (35)
Accrued social security tax (20) 1
Net accrued (prepald) bensfit cost {178} 5
Assumptions &s of 31 Becember, see note 7 in the consclidated {inancial statements for the Group

Ccmpenents of net periodic benefits costs

Service cost 29 19
Interest cost 24 6
Expected return on plan assets (20) (5)
Amortization of prior service costs 13 -
Amortization of actuarial gains and losses 4 1
Social security tax 6 3
Net periodic benefit costs 35 24
Contribution plan costs 2 -
Totel pensien costs charged te the year's result 38 24

"The substantial part of unrecognised prior service costs and net actuarial losses arose from transferring employees from other

Telenor companies in the years 2002 and 2001 . The change in scheme (unrecognised prior service costs) is related to implementation

of the early retirement scheme (AFP scherne) as of 1 January 1997 for wholly owned subsidiaries. The implementation effect is

expensed over the estimated remaining service period. Change in scheme that is not expensed as of 31 December 2002 amounted to

NOK 131 million. This amount is included in financiat assets, see note 8 below.



£, CTUHER TEERATIND EXPENSES

{in NOK miltions) 20¢2 200" 2000
Cost of premises, vehicles, office equipment etc. 56 13 -
Operation and mair.tenance 47 14 -
Travel and traval allowances 38 24 -
Marketing, representation and sales commission 33 17 -
Consultancy fees and rent of personnel 326 27% -
Worliorce reductions 27 - -
Bad debt 18 - -
QOther 126 37 24
Total other operating expanses 671 387 24
Of whicn internal within Group companies 195 152 -

G ermenear 193] reTae
2. LUSSES DN ZIE0T

Losses on disposa!l of operations in 2002 were mainly related to the simultaneous liguidation of Nye Teienor Communications |
AS, and Digiione olding AS, see note 7 below.

S

!

In connaction with the liguidations a deferred tax asset arose, reccrdaed as tax income, which mare than compensated fcr the
fiquidation loss.

1
1
3

AT EHPENSES

{in NOX millions) 2002 2005 2330
Interest income from Group companias 3,614 1,301 78
Groun contribution fram Group companies” (66) 16,336 5.487
Totel finencial income 3,548 17,837 5,583
Interest expanses exiernal (923) - -
Other financial expanses (8) - -
interest expenses to Group companies (661} - -
Write-downs? (5.863) (11,705) -
Total finencial expenses (7,455} {11,783} -
Net foreign gains 457 - -
Nzt gains (losses) an financial assets (44) 22 -
Totel Financial inceme and expenses (3,424) 5,054 5,385

" Negative Group contribution 2002 is a correction of received Group contribution 2001 .

@ Write-downs of tha vatues of Telenor ASAs investmenis in subsidiaries have been performed to better reflect the values in the con-
solidated accounts. Groun contribution distributed (net after taxes) has initially increased the book values of subsidiarizs. The boolt
values have been written down in 2001 as the Group contributions in 200! and 2000 are distributed to cover losses in the relevant
subsidiaries.

7. TRXES

{in NOX miltions) 20a2 2001 2000
Prolit bafore taxes in Norway (5,278) 10,847 5,533
Current taxes in Norway 3 4,941 1,548
Deferred taxes in Norway (2,653) 6 -
Tetzl income tax expense (income) (2,630} 4,247 1,548
{in NCX millions) 2002 2201 2000
Effective tax rate

Expected income taxas according to statutory tax rate (28 %) (1,477} 3,037 1,548
Non-taxable income - (1.368) -
Non-deductable expenses 1,667 3,278 -
Liguidation of Nye Telenor Communications | AS (2,843) - -
Insufficient taxes calculated earlier years 3 - -
Tax expense {income) (2,683) 4,847 1,542

Effective taxrate in % N/A 45.5% 28%




eierred taxes

Assets Liabilities Assets Liadilities
{in NOX millicns) 2002 2002 2007 2003
Long-term assets 14 (3) - (5)
Cuyrent assets - - - (1)
Long-term liabilities - (678) 5 -
Short-term liabilities 10 - - -
Tax losses carried forward 2,922 - - -
Deferred taxes 2,948 (681} 5 {€)
Valuation allowances - - - -
Net deferred taxes 2,265 - - (N

In 2002, operations were transferred to Telenor ASA with a deferred tax liability in the balance sheet in the amount of NOK
388 million. This was mainly related to unrealized exchange gains on long-term liabilities in Telenor Finans. in 2002 a tax loss
of approximately NOK 11.5 billion corresponding to a deferred tax-asset of apprcximately NOK 3.2 villion, was realized in con-
nection with the liquidation of Nye Telenor Communication | AS and Digifone Hoiding AS, see note 13 to tha consolidated
financial statements. In 2002 an accounting loss before taxes on the same shares of NOK 1.3 billions also was realized. In
2002, no Group contributions have bean provided to Telenor ASA to cover the tax loss, as taxable income in subsidiaries in the
tax Group in Norway have been utilized to cover tax losses in other subsidiaries in the tax Group. It is expected that Group con-
tributions in future years will entail utilization of tax losses carried forward in Telenor ASA, and is therefore reported as a
deferred tax asset in the financial statemenis for 2002. Tax losses carried forward as of 31 December 2002, was NOK 10,437
million, and expire in ten years.

in 2001, income of NOK 4,885 miillion was not taxable, mainly related to the gain on the sale of Telenor Media. No deferred tax
asset was calculated on the write-downs of investments in subsidiaries in 2002 and 2001. The current taxes in the balance

sheet for 2001 and 2000 were reduced with taxes on Group contribution distributed.

B, FINANUIAL ASSETS

{in NOX millicns} 20G2 2001
Shares in subsidiaries” 15,714 18,584
Receivables on associated companies 440 -
Interest bearing receivables on Group companies” 68,072 -
Other long-term shares and other investments 90 13
Changes in pension plan scheme 131 -
Net plan assets 39 -
Other receivables 2 109
Total thancial assets 85,423 18,705
"Seenotel2

4 Interest bearing receivables on Group companies are loans from Telenor Finans.

9. INTEREST-BEARING LIABIE

{in NOK mitlions} 2002 2001

Short-term interest-bearing liabilities to Group companies 24,499 -
Drawing on Group bank account 1,081 -
Other short-term interest-bearing liabitities 3 -
Total sheri-term interest-dearing tabitities 25,583 -
Long-term interest-bearing liabilities 21,470 -
Total interest-bearing liabilities 47,053 -

Long-term interest bearing liavilities are external. See note 2010 the consolidated financial statements.




TCL SEONT-TERE NOR-INUERAS ) -EEARING LARILITIES

(in NOK millions) 2002 2030t

Accounts payable i0 14
Government taxes, tax deductions etc. 45 32
Dividends payable 798¢ 621
Accrued expenses 540 41
Current taxes - 1,301
Liabilities to Group companies 160 995
Group contribution 190 13,005
Other liabilities 177 141
Total short-term non-interest-bearing labilities 1,921 13,132
1L EIARANTES UARILIVIES

‘n NOX millions 2C02 2001
Guarantee liabilities 6,934 1.871

The table does not include purchased bank guarantees or guarantees wnare the corresponding liabilities are recorded in the
company’s batance sheet. The increases in the gurarantee liabilities exceeding new guarantees in 2002 is due to transfer of
activities from subsidiaries to Tetenor ASA. Reference is made 1o note 23 in the consolidated financial statemants for the
Group regarding guarantee tiabilities for Bravida with NOK 515 mitlion, Intetsat with NOK 815 million and the termination fee for
the Cross Border Tax Benefit Lease of NOK 174 million and a guarantee towards Telenor Pensjonskasse of NOK 165 million.
Telenor ASA has provided guarantees for NOK 2.458 million in 2002 in connhection with & tax claim, see note 13 to the consoli-
dated financial statements for the Group. Telenor ASA has submitted guarantees of NOK 1,420 million for the satellite-leases
Thor Il and Thor I, including termination fees of NOK 171 million. The leasing agreemants end in 2008 and 2010. The leasing
liability as of 31 December 2002 recorded in subsidiaries was NOK 1,114 million. Telenar ASA has submitted guarantees, limited
up to NOK 958 million for financial leasing liabilities of NOK 550 million in Canal Bigital. These leasing agreementis end in the
period of 20603 — 2007. in 2000, a fulfillment guarantee for deliverias betwean subsidiaries of NOK 333 million was provided.
The guarantee ends in 2007. Furthermore, fulfillment guarantees of approximately NOK 90 mitlion for deliveries and pay-
ments by subsidiaries to external parties have been provided.

12, SHARESIN SUBSIZIARIZS

The table below sets forth Telenor ASA’ ownership interest in its subsidiaries. These subsidiarias will mainly be holding compa-
nias and their directly owned subsidiaries. Several of the subsidiaries named in the second part, own shares in other sub-
sidiaries as descritad in their respective annual reports.

Share Bouolx
{in NCK thousands) Dffice owned in % valuz
Telenor Networks Holding AS Norway 100.0 1,268,207
Telenor International Centre AS Norway 100.0 100
Telenor Management Partner AS Norway 100.0 20.000
Telenot Intercom Holding AS Norway 100.0 1,278,992
Telenor Key Partner AS Norway 100.0 19,000
Telenor Communication I AS Norway 100.0 124,000
Telenor Satellite Mobile Holding AS Norway 1000 262,086
Telenor Mobile Holding AS Norway 100.0 7,352,200
Telenor Satellite Networks Holding AS Norway 100.0 246,579
Itworks Holding AS Norway 100.0 -
Telenor Installasjon Holding AS Norway 100.0 85,767
Telenor Business Solutions Holding AS Norway 100.0 -
Dansk Mobil Holding Il AS Norway 100.0 -
Telenor Inma Holding AS Norway 100.0 110
Telenor Business Partner Invest AS Norway 100.0 870,000
Telenor Teteservice Holding AS Norway 100.0 217,452
Telenor Plus Holding AS Norway 100.0 -
Telenor Eiendom Holding AS Norway 1000 4,159,523
Telenor KB AS Norway 100.0 100
Telenor Struktur [t AS Norway 100.0 120

TOTAL 15,714,236




Shares in subsidiaries owned through subsidiaries

Share

Office owned in %
Telenor Networles Holding AS
Telefonselskapet AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Globatl Services AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Svaltbard AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Privat AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Telecom Solutions AS Norway 100.0
Telenor International Centre AS
Telenor Magyarorszag KFT Hungary 99.3
Telenor Russia AS MNorway 100.0
Telenor Bruxelles SA Belgium 100.0
Telenor intercom Holding AS
Nye Telenor Mobile Communications AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Communication i} AS
Authorization Centre Slovakia j.s.c Slovakia 58.3
Digitania RT Hungary 99.99
Digitania Czech Republic a.s. Czech 100.0
TN Satellite Services AB Sweden 100.0
Argos Maroc S.A Morocco 90.9
CIMECOM S.A. Morocco 99.7
TTYLAS Norway 100.0
Telenor Venture Il AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Forsikring AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Venture Il ASA Norway 50.1
Telenor Venture AS Norway 63.7
Telenor Kapitalforvaltning ASA Norway 100.0
Telenor Irland AB Sweden 100.0
Gintel AS Norway 60.0
Telenor Satellite Mobile Holding AS
Telenor Satellite Services AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Mobil Hotding AS
Nye Telenor Satellite Mobile | AS Norway 100.0
Nye Telenor Mobile Communications 11 AS Norway 10C.0
Telenor Mobile Communications AS Norway 10C.0
Telenor East Invest AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Mobile Sverige AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Greece AS Norway 100.0
Nye Telenor Mobile Communications I} AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Mobil AS Norway 100.0
Wireless Mobile International AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Mobile USA AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Satellite Networlks Holding AS
Telenor Satellite Networks AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Satellite Networks Il AS Norway 10C.0
Telenor Satellite Netwarks Holding |l AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Business Solutions Holding AS
Telenor Business Sotutions AS Norway 31.7
Telenor Bedrift AS Norway 100.0
Nextra Russia Invest AS Norway 100.0
{T Drift AS Norway 99.8
Edisys AS Norway 51.0
Telenor Link Holding AS Norway 100.0



Share

Oifice ownedin %
TBS Infrastructure AB Swaden 100.0
Nye Telenor East invest AS Norway 100.0
Infonet Telecom AS Norway 80.0
Nextra Active AS Norway 100.0
Nextra Massaging AS Norway 100.0
Dansik Mobil Helding Il AS
Dansk Mobil Holding AS Norway 100.0
Telencr Inme Hotding AS
Telenor Inma AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Business Partner Invest AS
EDB Business Pariner ASA Norway 51.8
Telenor Teleservice Halding AS
Kalix Tele 24 AB Sweden 100.0
Telenor Teleservice AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Pius Holding AS
Telenor UK Ltd. Great Britain 100.0
Tetenor Bulgaria o.0.d. Bulgaria 100.0
Telenor Satellite Braadcasting AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Plus AB Swedean 100.0
Canai Digital AS Norway 100.0
Nordic Satellite Distribuiion AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Avidi AS Norway 100.0
Tetenor CTV AS Norway 100.0
Norkring AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Vision International AB Sweden 100.0
Telenor Satellite Services 2 AS . Norway 100.0
Pecheur AS Norway 100.0
ICanal AS Norway 100.0
ABC Startsiden AS Norway 83.3
Conax AS Norway 80.0
Salsamedia AS Narway 85.0
Telenor internett AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Online AS Norway 100.0
Frisuri AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Direkte AS Norway 100.0
Nordic Satelllite Broadcasting S.A. Luxembourg 100.0
Telener Eiendom Heolding AS
Telenor Eiendom Fornebu AS Norway 100.0
Teienor Eiendom Fornebu Kvartal 2 AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Eiendom Fornebu Kvartal 3 AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Eiendom Fornebu Kvartal 4 AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Eiendom Drift AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Eiendom Fornebu Fjordparl Syd AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Eiendom Fornebu Fjordpark Nord AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Eiendom Midt-Norge AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Eiendom Harelazkken AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Eiendom Sar AS Norway 100.0
Telenor Eiendom Vest AS Norway 100.0
Teienor Hellas SA Greece 82.0

Telenor Business Sotutions AS Norway 68.3




AUDITOR'S REPCRT FOR 2002

To the Annual Sharenholders' Meeting of
Telenor ASA

Auditor's report for 2002

We have audited the annual financial statements of Telenor ASA as of 31 December 2002, showing a loss of NOK 2,625 million
for the parent company and a loss of NOK 4,656 million for the Group. We have also audited the information in the Directors'
report concerning the financial statements, the going concern assumption, and the proposal for the coverage of {oss. The
financial statements comprise the balance sheet, the statements of income and cash flows, the accompanying notes and the
consolidated accounts. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s Board of Directors and Chief Execu-
tive Officer. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and on other information according to the
requirements of the Norweagian Act on Auditing and Auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Norwegian Act on Auditing and Auditors and auditing standards and practices
generally accepted in Norway. Those standards and practices require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial state-
ment presentation. To the extent required by law and auditing standards, an audit also comprises a review of the management
of the Company's financial affairs and its accounting and internal control systems. We believe that our audit provides a rea-
sonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion,

othe financial statements, included on pages 72—-130, have been prepared in accordance with law and regulations and present
the financial position of the Company and of the Group as of 31 Becember 2002, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting standards, principles and practices generally acceptied In Nor-
way

-the Company's management has fulfilled its duty to properly register and document the accounting information as required
by law and accounting standards, principles and practices generally accepted in Norway

-the information in the Directors’ report, inciuded on pages 1017, concerning the financial statements, the going concern
assumption, and the proposat for the appropriation of the loss is consistent with the financial statements and comply with {aw
and regulations.

Oslo, March 19, 2003

ERNST & YOUNG AS

Olve Gravrak (sign.)
State Authorised Public Accountant (Norway)

Note: The translation to English has been prepared for information purposes only.

STATEMENT FRCON THE CORPCRATE ASSEMBLY OF TELEMDR
The Corporaie Assembly of Telenor ASA decided 27 March 2003 the foliowing:

The Corporate Assembly recommends that the General Meeting approves the Board of Directors proposed profit and loss
statement and balance sheet for Telenor ASA and for the Group for 2002, and recommended that the General Meeting
approves the suggested appropriation of the net loss for the year 2002.
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SHAREHCLDER INFORMATION

Telenor is committed to building

a close and trusting relation-

shin with its shareholgers. Comprehensive information through
a number cf channels shall ensure that the stock market is kept
informed of important developments in the group.

SHAREHOLDER POLICY

Telenor ASA’s long-term primary objective is to give share-
holders a return on their investment that is at least equal to
alternative investments with a corresponding risk profite. The
return shall be made in the form of a cash dividend in addition
tothe added value of the share. The Telenor share shall appear
as a liquid and attractive investment opportunity.

OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

Telenor had 55,840shareholders at the end of 2002. Of these,
54,180 were private individuals. Non-Norwegian investors
owned approximately 3.4% of the total stock. The Norwegian
State, through theMinistry of Trade and Industry, is the largest
individual owner with 77.6% of the shares.

AUTHORISATION TO ISSUE NEW SHARES

Until the Annual General Meeting in 2003, the Board of Direc-
tors has the authority to increase the share capital by up to
NOK 1,0584,776,488, divided between a maximum of
177,462,748 shares. The Board can determine whether the
shareholders’ priority for the share subscriptions may be devi-
ated from. From these shares, 695,520new shares were issued
as part of the implementation of the Share Programme for
employees in December 2002.

SHARE PROGRAVMME FOR EMPLOYEES

To encourage long-term shareholding among Telenor
employees, all permanent employees in Telenor ASA and Nor-
wegian subsidiaries where Telenor ASA’s ownership share
directly or indirectly is greater than 90%, were given the
opportunity to buy shares for up to NOK 7,500, with a 20%

cash discount. Where the average share price in the last 30
days of trade, up to and including 16 December 2002 (share
price NOK 31.16), is at least 12% higher than a corresponding
average price up to and including 16 December 2002 (NOK
27.82), those who subscribed for shares in this offer will be
allocated “profit bonus shares” for NOK 2,500, provided that
they still hold the allocated shares and are still employees of
Telenor.

Around 22% of the employees who were offered shares took
advantage of the offer. They were allocated 276 shares each
at a price of NOK 27.08, which was the average quoted price
during the last five days of trade up to and including 16 Decem-
ber 2002. After taking account of the discount, the effective
price is NOK 21.65.

SHARE CAPITAL AND OWN SHARES

As of 31 December 2002 Telenor ASA had a share capital of
NOX 10.8 billion, divided into 1,803,426,172 shares, each with
a nominal value of NOK 6. The company holds 28,103,172
shares. As part of the stock dividend issue decided at the
Shareholders’ meeting of 10 November 2000, the company
received 30 million shares to be allocated as bonus shares to
private individuals who bought shares in connection with the
stock exchange introduction in December 2000. 1,896,828
bonus shares were allocated on 4 December 2001 to those pri-
vate individuals who still held the shares they were allocated
at the time of the stock exchange introduction, with one bonus
share for every tenth share held. At the Shareholders’ meeting
in May 2001, the company was authorised to dispose of any
excess shares in a manner to be decided by the Board.

Breakdown of shares per shareholder as of 31 December 2002

Number of Percentage of all Number of Percentage of

Interval shareholders shareholders shares share capital

. 1=1p00 49673 89.0% 19,530,074 1%
~lpoi-tpogoOo 5893 . 10.6% 31,760,311 o 1.8%
..... 100001-1,000000 199 04% . 67306306 . _37%
1,000,001~10,000,000 i o ~ N 1% 190,690,232 _106%
10.000,001-1,400.000000 | _ 4 e BO% 1,494.139,249 - _829%
Total 55,840 100.80% 1,803,426,172 10080%
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DIVIDENDS law, only shares registered in the owner's name can be used for

Itis Telenor ASA’s policy to pay a share of the year’s profits as
dividend to the shareholders. Telenor’s aim is to share out an
annual dividend corresponding to 20-30% of the net income
after tax and minority interests, with adjustments being made
for any non-recurring gains and losses. The amount of the div-
idend can however vary from year to year.

The Board of Directors proposes that a dividend of NOK 0.45
per share be paid out for 2002. The dividend approved at the
Shareholders' meeting will be paid on 23 May 2003 to the
shareholders on the date of the Shareholders' meeting. The
shares will be listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange exclusive of
dividends, from 9 Friday May 2003.

SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE

At the start of 2001, the Telenor share was quoted at NOK
38.50. The highest price during the year was NOK 39.30, and
the lowest was NOK 22.50. At the end of the year, the price was
NOK 26.50. At the end of the year, the price quoted on Nasdaq
was USD 11.020. The market value as of 31 December 2002
was NOK 47.8 billion, which makes Teienor ASA the third
targest company quoted on the Oslo Stock Exchange.

TRADE

The Telenor share is listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange under
the ticker code TEL. The share is also listed the Nasdag in the
US under the ticker code TELN, where it trades through
Telenor's ADR programme. One ADR share corresponds to
three Norwegian shares. The depot bank is Morgan Guaranty
Trust Company of New York.

In 2002, 691 million Telenor shares at a total value of NOK 20.8
billion were traded on the Oslo Stock Exchange. The average
trading volume for Telenor shares on the Oslo Stock Exchange
for the year was 2.8 million shares per day of trading. A round lot
for the Telenor share on the Oslo Stock Exchange is 200 shares.

VOTING RIGHTS AND OWNERSHIP

Telenor has one class of shares and each share carries one
vote. The company does not have any ownership restrictions
beyond those that are stipulated in the Norwegian concession
laws. The Norwegian Public Limited Companies Act regulates
the exercising of shareholder rights. Pursuant to Norwegian

voting. Voting rights can be exercised no earlier than two
weeks after shareholding has been reported to the Norwegian
Central Securities Depaository (VPS).

INFORMATION TO THE STOCK MARKET

Contact with the Norwegian and international stock markets
has high priority in Telenor, and the company wishes to have an
open dialogue with its shareholders and other players in the
stock market. The objective is for the financial markets at any
given time to have sufficient information on the company in
order to form the basis for an accurate share valuation. Infor-
mation that may be important to shareholders and other play-
ers in the Norwegian and international markets is provided in
the form of notices to the Oslo Stock Exchange and through
press releases. Telenor presents its results at its headquarter at
Fornebu outside Oslo every quarter. In addition, regular meet-
ings are held with investors in Europe and the US. Leading
stackbrokers in Norway and abroad follow Telenor’s progress.

RISK ADJUSTMENT

In accordance with Norwegian tax regulations, shareholders
who are subject to taxation in Norway must make a downward
or upward adjustment of the cost price of the shares with a
“RISK” amount (adjustment of original cost of shares by taxed
profits), when calculating sales gains. The RISK amountiis cal-
culated annually based on the change in Telenor’s retained,
assessed capital, divided by the number of issued Telenor
shares. The RISK amount for 2001 was NOK 5.39 per share, and
the preliminary corresponding figure for 2002 has been cal-
culated at NOK -0,56 per share. The final RISK amount for
2002 will be available from 1January 2004. Shareholders who
are not subject to taxation in Norway are not affected by the
Norwegian RISK regulations.

RATING

In March 2003 Telenor was rated by Moody's at A2/P1 for long
and short-term financing respectively. In March 2003 Telenor
was rated by Standard & Poor's at A-/A2 for corresponding
long and short-term financing.

More — continuously updated — information on shareholder-
related matters may be found on the Telenor IR web site:
www.telenor.com/ir



FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2003 A

7 May Results first quarter 2003

7 May Telenor ASA — Capital Markets Day
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23 July Results second quarter 2003
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20 major external shareholders as of 31 December 2002

Nominee Number of Ownership in percentages
Names of sharehglders Account shareholders 31.12.02 31.12.02
Ministry of Trade and Industry 1,400,000,000 77.63%
National Insurance Scheme Fund __ _ 44,524,000 e 2.47%
Telenor ASA ) B e ...281o372 . 1.56%
State Street Bank e K 21512077 o 119%
Phildrew Nominees * ~ggm8011 0.55%
Roval Trust Corporation * 8881728 0.49%
Vital forsikring ASA v/DnB Asset Management =~~~ 8,625,800 - 0.48%
P Mordan Chase Bank o * - 7,151,777 0.40%
IP Morgan Chase Bank e . *» B 5,785,952 . 032%
UBS o 5,394,501 e ... 030%_
DnB Narge o o 4,839,700 027%
StateStreetBank * 4,710,690 0.26%
Clearstream Banking * 4605278 - 0.26%
KAS Depasitary Trust Company * 44499 . 0.25%
The Northern Trust S ® o 4382584 D24%
Gjensidige NOR 4228225 0.23% _
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken * o 4,220,000 o - 0.23%
Deutsche Bank = ) N 4,172,348 0.23%
Storebrand Livsforsikring AS e 4,114,300 _ . 0.23%
EuroclearBank . % 3881713 . 0.22%
Sum 1,583,522,707 87.81%
Sum other 219,203,465 12.12%
Total number of shares 1,803,426,172 100.00%
Total number of shareholders (31.12.02) 55,840
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ELECTED OFFI

CORPORATE ASSEMBLY

Members eleciad by the shareholders
Chuirmaon: Monz Relte, Tensberg
Vice-chairman: Gisle r!anieland. Fadie
Bjzrg Simonsen, Andfiska

Brit Seim fahre, Bslo

Eystein Gjelsvik, Langhus

Hilde Kinserdat, Bergen

Jan Erik Korssjgen, Kongsherg

Randi Braathe, Rygge

Ragnar Klevaas, Sandvika

Ove Andersen, Kolbigrnsvik

Alternate elected by the emplayses
Inger~Grethe Solstad, Stavanger

Members elected by the employees
Berit Kopren, Stavanger

lan Riddervold, Lilleshammer

Astri Skare, Bergen

Stein Erik Clsen, Fiakivsil

Arne lenssen, Trondheim

Alternales slected by the employans
Erling Hierines, Bergen

Esther M. Stramme, Usio

Francisco M. Rasmijn, Mesoddtanoen
Ragnhiid {iolm, Bardu

Observers for the employeas
Grethe Elin Henriksen, Osio
Brit Msthy Fredrikcen, Orztak
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CERS AND MANAGEMENT

HUARD OF DIRECTURS
Membefs elecied by the sharehsoliders
card chafrman; Therleif Enger, Oslo
\/sae-cr;cir::m fsniid M. Bendikisen, Sjgvegan
Hanne de ;v'ci'a Swi?:zeﬁ nd
Einar Farde, Os
largen Lindegaar &'., Copenhagen
Bjerg Ven, Uslo

Mombers siectad by the amployees
Harald Stews, Kongsbarg

l 1]
Per Gunnar Satomonsen, Skien

Alternaies cloctad by the emplovess
Ragnhild Laura Hundere, Sel
Marianne Losnegaard Jensen,
Ragnhild Broen, Trondheim
Roger Raerning, Fidskoy

Helge Enger, Kongsvinger
Higrdis Henriksan, Sortiand
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GROUP MANAGEMENT

Brosident and Chief Sxocutive SHicer

lon Fredrik Haksaas

Serior Execuiive Vice Presiderit

and CEQ of Telenor Mabile:

Lgve lchansen

Senior Executive Vice Prasident

and Chief Fingacial Oificer:

Torstein Maland

Execuiive Vice President

anii £57 of Telenor Broadcast:

Stig Eide Sivertsan

Executive Vice President

grid CEC of Telenor Neiwerks!
lan Edvard Thygesen
xecutlw Vica President
ond LEQ of Telencr Norge:

Marten Kar..sen Saroy

Executive VYice Sresident

and Chief Tachnical Ufficer.

Barit Svendsen

:m@ ihe ﬁmr

which hes been sutrited i@ e g&«nﬁu:r-\@ ane
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“Telenor will emerge from the challenges of 2003 as a
less comptiex company, simplifying the workday of qur
customers.”

lon Fredrik Baksaas, President and CEO of Telenor

For news and investar infarmation please visit aur website: www.telenar.com




